
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 
YPSILANTI BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

May 6, 2025 
 

Regular Meeting – 6:00 p.m. 
 

Ypsilanti Township Civic Center 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 

Ypsilanti, MI 48197 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
DEBBIE SWANSON 

Treasurer 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

Trustees 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

JOHN P. NEWMAN II 
GLORIA PETERSON 

LARESHA THORNTON 
 



APPROVAL OF AGENDA 



Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. HURON RIVER DRIVE•YPSILANTI, MI 48197 

 
SUPERVISOR BRENDA STUMBO • CLERK DEBBIE SWANSON • TREASURER STAN ELDRIDGE 
TRUSTEES: • KAREN LOVEJOY ROE • JOHN P. NEWMAN II • GLORIA PETERSON • LARESHA THORNTON 
 
 

 REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
  TUESDAY, MAY 6, 2025 

6:00 P.M. 
 

Board Meetings are audio recorded and posted on the website. 
 
 

  DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION 
 

 
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
 

4. CONSENT AGENDA FROM APRIL 15, 2025 
 

A. MINUTES OF APRIL 1, 2025 REGULAR MEETING 
 

 
B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 

 
1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR APRIL 15, 2025, IN THE AMOUNT OF 

$946,600.09 
2. CLARITY HEALTHCARE DEDUCTIBLE ACH FOR MARCH 2025, IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $76,809.04 
3. CLARITY HEALTHCARE ADMIN FEE FOR MARCH 2025, IN THE AMOUNT 

OF $1,674.85 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. MINUTES OF APRIL 15, 2025 REGULAR MEETING 
 

B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 
 

1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR MAY 6, 2025, IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$1,257,923.78 

 
6. ATTORNEY REPORT 

 
A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ypsilanti Township Board Agenda   May 6, 2025 

 
  NEW BUSINESS 
 
 
 

1. APPROVE UKG CONTRACT FOR NEW TIME CLOCKS AND SOFTWARE IN THE TOTAL 
AMOUNT OF $25,440.00, BUDGETED IN LINE ITEMS #101-228-977.000, #101-228-
934.000, #101-228-801.000, #101-228-857.100 

 
 

2. RESOLUTION 2025-16, APPROVE YCUA WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS BOND SALE 
 
 
 

3. RESOLUTION 2025-17, APPROVE DISSOLUTION OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESERVE FUND 
AND TRANSFER OF FUNDS INTO RESERVE FOR CONSTRUCTION (TOWNSHIP 
DIVISION) AS REQUESTED BY YCUA 

 
 
 

4. APPROVE DTE FOR EASEMENTS, FOR GAS LINE RELOCATION PROJECT, WITHIN 5365 
BRIDGE ROAD- SOUTH HYDRO PARK (K-11-24-300-011) AND 2599 BRIDGE ROAD-
NORTH HYDRO PARK (K-11-24-300-001) IN THE AMOUNT OF $49,943.00 

 
 
 

5. APPROVE CHANGE ORDER #1- SPILLWAY GATE PROGRAMMABLE LOGIC 
CONTROLLER ISOLATION PROJECT IN THE AMOUNT OF $9,825.00, BUDGETED INLINE 
ITEM #252-535-971.001 

 
 
 

6. RENEW AGREEMENT WITH THE WASHTENAW COUNTY WATER RESOURCE 
COMMISSIONER (WCWRC) FOR VERMIN MANAGEMENT SERVICES FOR UP TO 
$150,000.00, BUDGETED IN LINE #101-445-818.025, CONTINGENT ON BUDGET 
AMENDMENT 
 
 

 
7. APPROVE LITIGATION TO ABATE PUBLIC NUISANCE AT 958 ECORSE RD, BUDGETED 

IN LINE ITEM #101-729-801.023 
 
 
 

8. APPROVE LITIGATION TO ABATE PUBLIC NUISANCE AT 1521 HOLMES RD, BUDGETED 
IN LINE ITEM #101-729-801.023 
 
 
 

9. APPROVE LITIGATION TO ABATE PUBLIC NUISANCE AT 6016 MERRITT RD, BUDGETED 
IN LINE ITEM #101-729-801.023 

 
 
 

10. BUDGET AMENDMENT #6  
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ypsilanti Township Board Agenda   May 6, 2025 

 
 
 

AUTHORIZATIONS AND BIDS 
 

1. ACCEPT THE BID FOR $380,559.71 FROM KAB ENTERPRISES FOR THE APPLERIDGE 
PARK PLAYGROUND REPLACEMENT AND WALKWAY PAVING WHICH IS FUNDED 
THROUGH THE WASHTENAW COUNTY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM 
BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #213-901-974.008 
 

 
 

2. ACCEPT THE BID OF $34,188.45 FROM SUPERIOR GROUNDCOVER, INC. FOR OUR 
ANNUAL PLAYGROUND MULCH INSTALLATION FOR 2025-2026, BUDGETED IN LINE 
ITEM #101-770-818.011 

 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

1. REQUEST TO ENTER INTO CLOSED SESSION FOR DISCUSSION ON 
NEGOTIATIONS WITH THE TPOAM UNION PER MICHIGAN’S OPEN MEETINGS 
ACTS 1976 PA 267, MCL 15.268(c) 
 
 
 
 

2. APPROVE THE TPOAM UNION 2025-2029 CONTRACT 
 
 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
• THREE MINUTES PER PERSON 
• ALL COMMENTS MUST BE ADDRESSED TO THE CHAIR 
• PUBLIC COMMENTS ARE ALSO WELCOMED AS THE BOARD ADDRESSES 

EACH AGENDA ITEM 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 



 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 1, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 
Board Meetings are audio recorded and posted on the website 

 
DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 
Supervisor Stumbo determined a quorum was present. 
 
Township Supervisor Brenda Stumbo called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm in 
the Ypsilanti Township Civic Center Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, 
Ypsilanti Township. 
 
Members Present: Supervisor Brenda Stumbo, Clerk Debbie Swanson, and 

Treasurer Stan Eldridge 
Trustees: Karen Lovejoy Roe, John Newman III*, Gloria 
Peterson*, and LaResha Thornton 
*Trustee Newman and Trustee Peterson arrived after the meeting was called to 
order. Their arrival is noted in the agenda at the appropriate times 

 
Members Not Present:  
                 
Legal Counsel: Wm. Douglas Winters 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited followed by a moment of silent prayer. 
 
FIRE DEPARTMENT HONORS 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
A motion was made by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Trustee Thornton 
to approve the agenda. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. MINUTES OF MARCH 18, 2025 REGULAR MEETING 
 

B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 1, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING   PAGE 2 
 

 
1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR APRIL 1, 2025 IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $1,354,292.15 
 

 
A motion was made by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Trustee Thornton 
to approve the Consent Agenda. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
     
ATTORNEY REPORT 
 

A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 
 

Legal update was provided by Attorney Winters. (refer to audio) 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. ACCEPT AND SIGN THE WASHTENAW COUNTY LEASE AGREEMENT 
FOR TEMPORARY USE OF THE 14A-2 COURTROOM AND OFFICE 
SUITE   

A motion was made by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Trustee Lovejoy 
Roe to accept and sign the Washtenaw County Lease Agreement for the 
temporary use of the 14A-2 Courtroom and Office Suite. (see attached) 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

2. APPROVE RESOLUTION 2025-07, TO AUTHORIZE PROPERTY SALE 
TO CHARLY ABELSON, LOCATED AT 1687 EMERSON 

Clerk Swanson read the resolution into the record. 
 
A motion was made by Trustee Lovejoy Roe and supported by Trustee Thornton to 
approve Resolution 2025-07, to authorize property sale to Charly Abelson, located 
at 1687 Emerson. (see attached) 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 1, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING   PAGE 3 
 

 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

3. APPROVE AGREEMENT WITH MUNIVATE LLC FOR RECONCILIATION 
OF THE BOND AND ESCROW ACCOUNTS IN THE BS&A BUILDING 
MODULE, NOT TO EXCEED $11,100.00, BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM 
#249-371-818.000 

A motion was made by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Trustee Lovejoy Roe 
to approve agreement with Munivate LLC for reconciliation of the bond and escrow 
accounts in the BS&A Building Module, not to exceed $11,100.00, budgeted in line 
item #249-371-818.000. (see attached) 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

4. APPROVE RESOLUTION 2025-08, BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
APPOINTMENTS TO WASHTENAW REGIONAL RECYCLING 
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY (WRRMA) 

 
Clerk Swanson read the resolution into the record. 
 

A motion was made by Trustee Lovejoy Roe and supported by Treasurer 
Eldridge to approve Resolution 2025-08, Boards and Commissions 
Appointments to Washtenaw Regional Recycling Management Authority 
(WRRMA). (see attached) 

The motion carried unanimously. 

Trustee Newman arrived 

5. APPROVE RESOLUTION 2025-09, SUPPORT FOR 2025 MICHIGAN 
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES LAND AND WATER 
CONSERVATION FUND APPLICATION 

Clerk Swanson read the resolution into the record. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 1, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING   PAGE 4 
 

 
 

A motion was made by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Trustee Thornton 
to approve Resolution 2025-09, Support for 2025 Michigan Department of 
Natural Resources Land and Water Conservation Fund Application. (see 
attached) 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

6. APPROVE RESOLUTION 2025-10, SUPPORT FOR 2025 MICHIGAN 
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES TRUST FUND GRANT 
APPLICATION 

Clerk Swanson read the resolution into the record. 
 

A motion was made by Trustee Lovejoy Roe and supported by Treasurer 
Eldridge to approve Resolution 2025-10, Support for 2025 Michigan 
Department of Natural Resources Trust Fund Grant Application. (see attached) 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

7. APPROVE RESOLUTION 2025-11, SUPPORT OF WASHTENAW 
COUNTY OFFICE OF COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT’S 
WOODLAWN CEMETERY RESTORATION 

A motion was made by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Clerk Swanson to 
approve Resolution 2025-11, Support of Washtenaw County Office of 
Community and Economic Development’s Woodlawn Cemetery Restoration. 
(see attached) 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 1, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING   PAGE 5 
 

 
8.  APPROVE AMENDMENT ONE OF THE MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE, 

RECYCLING AND YARD WASTE CONTRACT WITH WASTE 
MANAGEMENT FOR AN EXTENSION OF FIVE YEARS 

A motion was made by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Clerk Swanson to 
approve Amendment One of the Municipal Solid Waste, Recycling and Yard 
Waste contract with Waste Management for an extension of five years. (see 
attached) 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

9.  APPROVE THE CONTRACTS WITH DESTINATION ANN ARBOR FOR 
ROWFEST 2025 AND THE FORD LAKE REGATTA CUP TO BE HELD ON 
FORD LAKE 

A motion was made by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Trustee Thornton 
to approve the contracts with Destination Ann Arbor for Rowfest 2025 and the 
Ford Lake Cup to be held on Ford Lake, contingent upon attorney review. (see 
attached) 

The motion carried unanimously. 

Trustee Peterson arrived while Agenda item number 9 was being discussed. 

 
AUTHORIZATION AND BIDS 
 

1. ACCEPT THE BID FOR $364,000.00 FROM THE DIAMOND FIRM, INC 
FOR THE APPLERIDGE PARK PLAYGROUND REPLACEMENT AND 
WALKWAY PAVING WHICH IS FUNDED THROUGH THE WASHTENAW 
COUNTY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM 

 
A motion was made by Trustee Lovejoy Roe and supported by Trustee 
Thornton to accept the bid for $364,000.00 from the Diamond Firm, Inc for the 
Appleridge Park playground replacement and walkway paving which is funded 
through the Washtenaw County Development Block Grant Program. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 1, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING   PAGE 6 
 

 
The motion carried unanimously. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was 1 public comment. 
 
 
BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were 3 board member comments. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
A motion to adjourn was made by Trustee Lovejoy Roe and supported by 
Treasurer Eldridge. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at approximately 7:18PM 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor                  Debra A. Swanson, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti                  Charter Township of Ypsilanti 



SPACE USE AGREEMENT 

AGREEMENT is made this 1st day of April, 2025, by the COUNTY OF WASHTENAW, 
a municipal corporation, with offices located in the County Administration Building, 220 North 
Main Street, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48104 (“County” or “Lessor”) and 14B District Court located 
7200 S Huron River Dr, Ypsilanti MI 48197 (“14B District Court” or “Lessee”). 

1. LEASED PREMISES: the County hereby leases to 14B District Court and Lessee
hereby rents from County approximately 1700 sq. feet on the first floor of the building
located at 415 W. Michigan, Ypsilanti MI 48197  (“Premises”).

2. TERMS: The lease term shall begin on the date of this agreement and ending when
the construction/remodeling of 7200 S Huron River Dr has been completed, estimated
to be no later than December 21, 2025.

3. USE:  14B District Court shall only use the Premises for administrative, office use and
other uses related to their operations.  No in person public services offer at the 415
Michigan location.

4. ACCESS TO PREMISES: During the term of the Lease County shall provide
access to Premises twenty-four hours per day, seven days per week. The County
reserves the right to access the Premises for the purposes described in this
agreement and otherwise. Where possible, and excepting emergency situations,
the County will provide 14B District Court with 24 hours’ notice of building access,
unless such access is at 14B District Court’s Request.

5. RENT: 14B District Court agrees to pay the County an annual rental amount of zero
($0.00) dollars.

6. UTILITIES and GENERAL MAINTENANCE: The parties agree that gas, electricity,
water, and basic janitorial and maintenance services provided by the County shall be
included in 14B District Court annual rental, provided, however, that all costs associated
with 14B District Court’s purchase and/or use of existing or future telephone equipment
and lines shall be paid for by 14B District Court.

7. PARKING:  The County will not provide any parking accommodations, 14B District
Court is responsible for all employee parking.

8. EMERGENCY NOTIFICATION: The County will be notified of any Premises related
emergency immediately after the emergency has been reported to the appropriate local
responding authorities. Notification will be made to: 1) the contact information listed at
the conclusion of this contract; and 2) the County Help Desk at (734) 222- 3737.



9. MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS: The County at its expense and discretion will be 
responsible for maintaining the structure of the Premises; this includes walls, 
windows, roof, building exterior, and foundation unless such damage is caused by 
14B District Court, including its staff, agents, or guests in which event 14B District 
Court shall pay for such repairs.  14B District Court shall pay for the cost of repair 
to any interior damage caused by 14B District Court.  The County will also maintain 
existing fire suppression, mechanical, electrical, elevators, and plumbing systems 
for the Premises. 14B District Court will be responsible for reporting non-
emergency maintenance needs to the County within three (3) business days of 
when such needs are identified. The Lessee will undertake all reasonable efforts to 
ensure the good maintenance and care of premises. 14B District Court will report all 
facility related incidents, emergencies, damages that are beyond normal wear and 
tear to the afterhours Help desk 734-222-3737 within 2 hours of the incident. 14B 
District Court will also submit an incident report to the County within 24 hours of 
the incident and follow the standard county process to report damages. A review 
of the incidents and claims will be discussed at the annual meeting. 

10. FURNITURE: 14B District Court shall have the sole responsibility to purchase and 
maintain furniture for the premises. The County is not responsible in any way for 
equipment supplied by the 14B District Court. Any fixtures or equipment which are not 
attached to the Premises and were not purchased by the County must be removed by 
14B District Court upon vacating the Premises.  Any County owned/purchased items 
must remain within the Premises upon expiration or termination of the Lease. 

 

11. BUILDING SECURITY: The County will be responsible for the selection, 
installation, and maintenance of building security related hardware. This includes 
doors, badge readers, keys, and security camera systems. These systems will be 
at the expense and discretion of the County.  Lessee’s employees, volunteers, 
and consultants will be required to wear County-issued badges at all times within 
the Premises and use the badges at any card reader location. Lessee’s personnel 
must notify the County Helpdesk (734-222-3737) immediately if a badge is lost or 
stolen.   

12. SECURITY AND CAMERA SYSTEMS: Security cameras are in operation outside and 
in common interior spaces. The cameras will be for evidentiary purposes only and not 
regularly monitored.  

13. COMPLIANCE WITH EXISTING LAW: The County agrees to keep the Premises 
in compliance with all federal, state and local laws, ordinances and regulations. 
The Lessee will not interfere with this obligation. 

14. INSURANCE: 14B District Court shall maintain at its expense during the term of 
this Lease, the following insurance: 

Commercial General Liability and Umbrella Liability Insurance:- Lessee shall 
maintain commercial general liability (CGL) insurance, and, if necessary, 
commercial umbrella insurance with a limit of not less than $3,000,000 each 
occurrence. 
1. CGL insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form or a substitute form 

providing equivalent coverage and shall cover liability arising from premises, 



operations, independent contractors, products-completed operations, personal 
injury and advertising injury, and liability assumed under an insured contract. 

2. County of Washtenaw shall be included as an additional insured under the 
Lessee’s Commercial General Liability Policy.  Lessee and their insurance 
company waive all rights against the County of Washtenaw and its agents, public 
officials, employees, and volunteers to the extent these damages are covered by 
the CGL or commercial umbrella liability maintained pursuant to this agreement. 

15. INDEMNITY: 14B District Court will protect, defend and indemnify the County, its 
officers, agents, servants, volunteers and employees from any and all liabilities, 
claims, liens, demands and costs, including legal fees, of whatsoever kind and 
nature which arise from injury or death to any persons, including 14B District Court 
own employees, and for loss or damage to any property, including property owned 
or in the care, custody or control of the County in connection with or in any way 
incident to or arising out or 14B District Court’s occupancy of the premises 
resulting in whole or in part from negligent acts or omissions of 14B District Court, 
its subcontractor[s], or any employee, agent or representative or 14B District Court 
or its subcontractor[s] caused by the Lessee or the Lessee’s employees, 
contractors or agents. This obligation survives expiration or termination of this 
Lease.  

16. SUBROGATION: In the event of fire or other damage to the Premises or personal 
property, the parties mutually waive their rights of subrogation and recovery 
against each other, their agents, employees or subleases to the extent that they 
are insured or are required to carry insurance for such loss.  The County agrees 
to maintain insurance and/or assume the responsibility for loss or damage to the 
building and personal property owned by the county including the loss of rents.  
The coverage shall be on an all risk of physical loss abasis in the standard 
insurance form.  14B District Court shall maintain insurance and/or assume 
responsibility for personal property owned by 14B District Court unless the loss is 
attributable to the county in which case 14B District Court shall be covered by the 
County policy. 

17. DEFAULT: If either party breach any provisions of this Lease, that party shall be in 
default, In the event of default, the party not in default shall give the defaulting party 
notice of the default and thirty (30) days to correct the default. If such default is not 
corrected within thirty (30) days, the party not in default may terminate this Lease 
and pursue its remedies available under Michigan law, provided, however, that if 
Lessee fails to procure or maintain the insurance coverages and endorsements 
required by this Lease, the County may immediately cancel this Lease and seek 
whatever damages to which it may be entitled under Michigan law. Moreover, if 
correcting a breach takes more than thirty (30) days to complete, the party 
correcting the breach shall be given an opportunity to complete such corrections 
beyond the thirty (30) day period referenced above, provided that party diligently 
pursues such correction to completion. 

18. TERMINATION: Either party may unilaterally terminate this Lease for any reason 
by giving the other party three (3) months written notice of such termination. The 
Lessor may terminate this lease for cause by giving 14B District Court three (3) 



months’ written notice of such termination. Cause shall be considered a violation 
of this contract or illegal conduct by 14B District Court 

19. QUIET POSSESSION: Upon performing the covenants, conditions and provisions 
of this Lease, 14B District Court shall have quiet possession of the Premises for 
the entire Lease period. 

20. EXTENT OF CONTRACT: This Lease memorializes all the prior discussions, 
understandings and agreements involved in negotiating this Lease. No provision 
of this Lease may be amended or added to except by agreement in writing signed 
by both parties. This Lease shall not be effective or binding until signed by both 
partied.  

21. SEVERABILITY: Any provision of this Lease which is found by a competent court 
of law to be invalid, void or illegal shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate any 
other provision contained in this lease and such other provisions shall remain in 
full force effect. 

22. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM: This Lease shall be governed by Michigan law. 
The parties further agree that Washtenaw County, Michigan is the proper forum 
for any litigation arising out of this Lease, 

23. NOTICES: All notices or demands which may or are required under this Lease 
must be in writing and shall be sent by United States mail, postage paid, to the 
following addresses: 

  

As to County: Washtenaw County 

  220 North Main Street 

  Ann Arbor, Michigan 48104 

  Attention: Director of Facilities Management 

  Emergency Phone Number: 734-222-3737 

 

 

 

As to Lessee: 14B District Court 

  7200 S. Huron River Dr. 

  Ypsilanti, Michigan 48197 

  Attention: Hilary B. Braley 

  Emergency Phone Number: 734-544-3722 

 



 
 
ATTESTED TO:    WASHTENAW COUNTY: 
 
 
By:____________________________ By:______________________________ 
     Lawrence Kestenbaum (DATE)      Gregory Dill     (DATE) 
     County Clerk/Register        County Administrator 
 
 
CONTRACTOR:    CONTRACTOR: 
 
 
By:____________________________ By:______________________________ 
     Brenda Stumbo       (DATE)        Debra A. Swanson         (DATE) 
    Ypsilanti Township Supervisor    Ypsilanti Township Clerk  
 
   
CONTRACTOR: 
 
 
By:____________________________ 
 Hilary B. Braley             (DATE) 
 14B District Court Administrator 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:   
 
 
By:____________________________  
     Jason Fee       (DATE)         
    Facilities Management Director     
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By:____________________________   By:______________________________ 
     Michelle K. Billard       (DATE)  Wm. Douglas Winters  (DATE) 
     Office of Corporation Counsel   Ypsilanti Township Attorney 

 

      



 1 

RESOLUTION 2025-07 
 

Authorizing the Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
to Sell to Purchaser Charly Marie Ableson One Vacant 

Parcel Located at 1687 Emerson Avenue 
 

  
 WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti holds title to a vacant 

parcel located at 1689 Emerson Ave., title of which includes the legal 

description of the vacant parcel as follows: 

K-11-14-482-002, 1687 Emerson Avenue, Ypsilanti, MI 48198 with 

a legal description of YP#104-890 lot 1210 Watsonia Park Sub and 

the N ½ of the vacated street located S of said lot; and 

 WHEREAS, on January 28, 2025 Charly Marie Ableson requested 

of the Ypsilanti Township Assessing Department to purchase the vacant lot 

as described above which she intends to combine with her residential 

property located at 1669 Emerson Avenue, and; 

 WHEREAS, at a regular Board meeting held on the 1st day of April, 

2025 the Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees authorized the sale of the 

vacant lot which according to the “Market Valuation Report” prepared by 

Deputy Assessor Brian McCleery dated January 28, 2025 was valued at 

$4,000, and; 

 WHEREAS, on the 18th day of March, 2025 Purchaser Charly 

Marie Ableson signed the proposed “Purchase Agreement” (a copy of 



 2 

which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference) in which the 

Purchaser will remit to the Township the sum of $4,000 in accordance with 

the Market Valuation Report dated January 28, 2025.  

 NOW, THEREFORE THE YPSILANTI CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:  

 1. That the Township Board accepts the Purchase Offer 

submitted hereto and authorizes the execution of the “Purchase 

Agreement” by Supervisor Brenda L. Stumbo and Clerk Debra A. 

Swanson. 

 2. That the Township authorizes Supervisor Stumbo and Clerk 

Swanson to execute all documents required by Cislo Title to effectuate the 

transfer of the vacant parcel to Purchaser Charly Marie Ableson once a 

closing date has been scheduled. 

 3. That a certified copy of this Resolution be forwarded to Cislo 

Title as set forth in Paragraph 23 of the Purchase Agreement. 

 

 

 

I, Debra A. Swanson, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of 
Michigan hereby certify the above resolution is a true and exact copy of Resolution No. 2025-07 
approved by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular 
Meeting held on April 1, 2025.  

 

Debra A Swanson, Clerk                                                                   
              Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

 

























-1-  

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
FOR HOURLY SOFTWARE REVIEW AND CONFIGURATION 

THIS AGREEMENT is dated as of the_ day of  , 20("_Agreement'') 
and is by and between Ypsilanti Charter Township a Michigan Township ("Township'') and the 
Consultant identified in Subsection 1A below. 

IN CONSIDERATION OF the recitals and the mutual covenants and agreements set forth 
in the Agreement, and pursuant to the Township's statutory powers, the parties agree as follows: 

SECTION 1.  CONSULTANT. 

A. Engagement of Consultant. The Township desires to engage the Consultant 
identified below to provide hourly professional consulting services. 

Munivate ("Consultant'? 
11242 N Meridian Rd 
Pleasant Lake, Ml 49272 
Telephone: 517.614.3643 
Email: kkeyes@munivate.com 

 
B. Project Description. The Consultant is to provide hourly services, as proposed 

in Exhibit A, to allow the Township to perform in-depth analysis of Bond and Escrow accounts 
and develop report with findings and recommendations for reconciliation across BS&A systems. 

C. Representations of Consultant. The Consultant has submitted a cost proposal 
to the Township, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit A to this Agreement ("Services''). The 
Consultant represents that it is financially solvent, has the necessary financial resources, and is 
sufficiently experienced and competent to perform and complete the professional consulting 
services set forth in Exhibit A in a manner consistent with the standards of professional practice 
by recognized consulting firms providing services of a similar nature. 

0. Agreement Amount. The total amount billed by the Consultant for the Services 
under this Agreement shall not exceed $11,100.00, as outlined in Exhibit A, unless authorized by 
the Township or amended pursuant to Subsection 8A of this Agreement. 

SECTION 2. SCOPE OF SERVICES. 

A. Retention of the Consultant. The Township retains the Consultant to perform, 
and the Consultant agrees to perform, the Services. 

8. Services. The Consultant shall provide the Services pursuant to the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement. 
C. Commencement. This Agreement shall commence upon receipt of written notice 

from the Township that this Agreement has been  fully  executed  by the Parties (the 
"Commencement Date''). 

D. Reporting. The Consultant shall report to the Accounting Director, or their 
designee, regarding the progress of the Services during the term of this Agreement. 

SECTION 3. COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT. 

mailto:kkeyes@munivate.com


-2-  

A. Agreement Amount. The total amount billed for the Proposal during the term of 
this Agreement shall not exceed the amount identified as the Agreement Amount in Subsection 
1D of this Agreement, without the prior express written authorization of the Township. 

B. Invoices and Payment. The Consultant shall be paid as provided in Exhibit A. 
The Consultant shall submit invoices to the Township for those portions of the Services performed 
and completed by the Consultant. The amount billed in any such invoice shall be based on the 
method of payment set forth in Exhibit A. The Township shall pay to the Consultant the amount 
billed within 30 days after its receipt and approval of such an invoice. 

C. Records. The Consultant shall maintain records showing actual time devoted and 
shall permit the authorized representative of the Township to inspect and audit all data and 
records of the Consultant for work done under the Agreement. The records shall be made 
available to the Township at reasonable times during the Agreement period, and for one year after 
the termination of the Agreement. 

D. Taxes, Benefits and Royalties. The Agreement Amount includes all applicable 
federal, state, and local taxes of every kind and nature applicable to the Services as well as all 
taxes, contributions, and premiums for unemployment insurance, old age or retirement benefits, 
pensions, annuities, or similar benefits and all costs, royalties and fees arising from the use on, 
or the incorporation into, the Services, of patented or copyrighted equipment, materials, supplies, 
tools, appliances, devices, processes, or inventions. All claim or right to claim additional 
compensation by reason of the payment of any such tax, contribution, premium, costs, royalties, 
or fees is hereby waived and released by Consultant. 

E. Final Acceptance. The proposed Service is Consultant time (hourly) and the 
Services shall be considered complete and accepted on the date and time of delivery, or 
performance of the service. 

 
SECTION 4.  PERSONNEL: SUBCONTRACTORS. 

A. Key Project Personnel. Kevin Keyes will primarily be responsible for carrying out 
the Services on behalf of the Consultant. The Key Project Personnel shall not be changed without 
the Township's prior written approval. 

B. Availability of Personnel. The Consultant shall provide all personnel necessary 
to complete the Services including, without limitation, any Key Project Personnel identified in this 
Agreement. The Consultant shall notify the Township as soon as practicable prior to terminating 
the employment of, reassigning, or receiving notice of the resignation of, any Key Project 
Personnel. The Consultant shall have no claim for damages and shall not bill the Township for 
additional time and materials charges as the result of any portion of the Services which must be 
duplicated or redone due to such termination or for any delay or extension of the Time of 
Performance as a result of any such termination, reassigning, or resignation. 

C. Approval and Use of Subcontractors. The Consultant shall perform the Services 
with its own personnel and under the management, supervision, and control of its own 
organization unless otherwise approved by the Township in writing. All subcontractors and 
subcontracts used by the Consultant shall be acceptable to, and approved in advance by, the 
Township. 

D. Removal of Personnel and Subcontractors. If any personnel or subcontractor 
fails to perform the Services in a manner satisfactory to the Township, the Consultant shall 
immediately upon notice from the Township remove and replace such personnel or subcontractor. 



-3-  

The Consultant shall have no claim for damages, for compensation in excess of the amount 
contained in this Agreement or for a delay or extension of the Time of Performance as a result of 
any such removal or replacement. 

SECTION 5. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 

A. Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information" shall mean 
information in the possession or under the control of the Parties relating to the technical, business 
or corporate affairs of the Parties; property; user information, including, without limitation, any 
information pertaining to usage of the Party's computer systems, including and without limitation, 
any information obtained from server logs or other records of electronic or machine readable form; 
and the existence of, and terms and conditions of, this Agreement. Confidential Information shall 
not include information that can be demonstrated: (i) to have been rightfully in the possession of 
the other Party from a source other than the Parties prior to the time of disclosure of said 
information under this Agreement ("Time of Disclosure"); 
(ii) to have been in the public domain prior to the Time of Disclosure; (iii) to have become part of 
the public domain after the Time of Disclosure by a publication or by any other means except an 
unauthorized act or omission or breach of this Agreement on the part of the Consultant or the 
Township; or (iv) to have been supplied to the Party after the Time of Disclosure without restriction 
by a third party who is under no obligation to maintain such information in confidence. 

 
B. No Disclosure of Confidential Information by the Consultant. The Parties 

acknowledges that it shall have access to or be directly or indirectly exposed to Confidential 
Information. The Parties shall hold confidential all Confidential Information and shall not disclose 
or use such Confidential Information without express prior written consent. The Parties shall use 
reasonable measures at least as strict as those used to protect its own confidential information. 
Such measures shall include, without limitation, requiring employees and subcontractors of the 
Consultant to execute a non-disclosure agreement before obtaining access to Confidential 
Information. 

SECTION 6.  WARRANTY; INDEMNIFICATION; INSURANCE. 

A. Warranty of Services. The Consultant warrants that the Services shall be 
performed in accordance with the highest standards of professional practice, care, and diligence 
practiced by recognized consulting firms in performing services of a similar nature in existence at 
the Time of Performance. The warranty expressed shall be in addition to any other warranties 
expressed in this Agreement, or expressed or implied by law, which are hereby reserved unto the 
Township. 

B. Indemnification. The Consultant shall, without regard to the availability or 
unavailability of any insurance, either of the Township or the Consultant, indemnify, save 
harmless, and defend the Township, and its officials, employees, agents, and attorneys against 
any and all lawsuits, claims, demands, damages, liabilities, losses, and expenses, including 
attorneys' fees and administrative expenses, that arise, or may be alleged to have arisen, out of 
or in connection with, the Consultant's performance of, or failure to perform, the Services or any 
part thereof, whether or not due or claimed to be due in whole or in part to the active, passive, or 
concurrent negligence or fault of the Consultant, except to the extent caused by the sole 
negligence of the Township. 

C. Insurance. Contemporaneous with the Consultant's execution of this Agreement, 
the Consultant may provide certificates and policies of insurance, all with coverages and limits 
acceptable to the Township. Such certificates and policies shall be in a form acceptable to the 
Township and from companies with a general rating of A minus, and a financial size category of 



-4-  

Class X or better, in Best's Insurance Guide. Such insurance policies shall provide that no 
change, modification in, or cancellation of, any insurance shall become effective until the 
expiration of 30 days after written notice thereof shall have been given by the insurance company 
to the Township. The Consultant shall, at all times during the term of this Agreement, maintain 
and keep in force, at the Consultant's expense, the insurance coverages provided above, 
including, without limitation, at all times while correcting any failure to meet the warranty 
requirements of Subsection 6A, Warranty of Services, of this Agreement. 

D. No Personal Liability. No elected or appointed official, or employee of the 
Township shall be personally liable, in law or in contract, to the Consultant as the result of the 
execution of this Agreement. 

 
SECTION 7. CONSULTANT AGREEMENT GENERAL PROVISIONS. 

A. Relationship of the Parties. The Consultant shall act as an independent 
contractor in providing and performing the Services. Nothing in, nor done pursuant to, this 
Agreement shall be construed (i) to create the relationship of principal and agent, employer and 
employee, partners, or joint venturers between the Township and Consultant; or (ii) to create any 
relationship between the Township and any subcontractor of the Consultant. 

B. Conflict of Interest. The Consultant represents and certifies that, to the best of its 
knowledge, (1) no Township employee or agent is interested in the business of the Consultant or 
this Agreement; (2) as of the date of this Agreement neither the Consultant nor any person 
employed or associated with the Consultant has any interest that would conflict in any manner or 
degree with the performance of the obligations under this Agreement; and (3) neither the 
Consultant nor any person employed by or associated with the Consultant shall at any time during 
the term of this Agreement obtain or acquire any interest that would conflict in any manner or 
degree with the performance of the obligations under this Agreement. 

C. No Collusion. The Consultant represents that the only persons, firms, or 
corporations interested in this Agreement as principals are those disclosed to the Township prior 
to the execution of this Agreement, and that this Agreement is made without collusion with any 
other person, firm, or corporation. 

D. Termination. Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, the Parties may 
terminate this Agreement at any time upon 15 days prior written notice. In the event that this 
Agreement is so terminated, the Consultant shall be paid for Services actually performed and 
reimbursable expenses actually incurred, if any, prior to termination, not exceeding the value of the 
Services completed as determined as provided in Exhibit A. 

E. Term. The initial term of this Agreement shall commence on the Commencement 
Date and shall expire once all hourly services outlined in Exhibit A have been performed, or one 
year from the Commencement Date, whichever is sooner. This term may be extended with written 
consent from the Parties. 

F. Mutual Cooperation. The Township agrees to cooperate with the Consultant in 
the performance of the Services, including meeting with the Consultant and providing the 
Consultant with such non-confidential information that the Township may have that may be 
relevant and helpful to the Consultant's performance of the Services. The Consultant agrees to 
cooperate with the Township in the performance of the Services to complete the Work. 

G. Ownership. Designs, drawings, plans, specifications, photos, reports, 
information, observations, calculations, notes, and any other documents, data, or information, in 



-5-  

any form, prepared, collected, or received by the Consultant in connection with any or all of the 
Services to be performed under this Agreement ("Documents") shall be and remain the exclusive 
property of the Township, except original templates provided by the Consultant to the Township 
from which the work product was created which will remain exclusive property of the Consultant. 
At the Township's request, or upon termination of this Agreement, the Consultant shall cause the 
Documents to be promptly delivered to the Township. 

SECTION 8. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 

A. Amendment. No amendment or modification to this Agreement shall be effective 
unless and until such amendment or modification is in writing, properly approved in accordance 
with applicable procedures, and executed. 

B. Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned by the Township or by the 
Consultant without the prior written consent of the other party. 

C. Binding Effect. The terms of this Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of 
the Parties hereto and their agents, successors, and assigns. 

D. Notice. Any notice or communication required or permitted to be given under this 
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be delivered (i) personally, (ii) by a reputable overnight 
courier, (iii) by certified mail, return receipt requested, and deposited in the U.S. Mail, postage 
prepaid, or (iv) by electronic internet mail ("e-mail"). E- mail notices shall be deemed valid and 
received by the addressee thereof when delivered by e- mail and (a) opened by the recipient on 
a business day at the address set forth below, and (b) followed by delivery of actual notice in the 
manner described in either (i), (ii) or (iii) above within three business days thereafter at the 
appropriate address set forth below. Unless otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, 
notices shall be deemed received upon the earlier of (a) actual receipt; (b) one business day after 
deposit with an overnight courier as evidenced by a receipt of deposit; or (c) three business days 
following deposit in the U.S. mail, as evidenced by a return receipt. By notice complying with the 
requirements of this Subsection, each Party shall have the right to change the address or the 
addressee, or both, for all future notices and communications to such party, but no notice of a 
change of addressee or address shall be effective until actually received. 

Notices and communications to the Township shall be addressed to, and delivered at, the 
following address: 

Ypsilanti Charter Township 
7200 S Huron River Dr 
Ypsilanti, Ml 48197 
Attention: Javonna Neel 
email: jneel@ypsitownship.org 

 
Notices and communications to the Consultant shall be addressed to, and delivered at, the 
following address: 

Munivate ("Consultant'? 
11242 N Meridian Rd 
Pleasant Lake, Ml 49272 
Telephone: 517.614.3643 
Attention: Kevin Keyes 
Email: kkeyes@munivate.com 

mailto:jneel@ypsitownship.org
mailto:kkeyes@munivate.com


-6-  

E. Third Party Beneficiary. No claim as a third party beneficiary under this 
Agreement by any person, firm, or corporation other than the Consultant shall be made or be valid 
against the Township. 

F. Provisions Severable. If any term, covenant, condition, or provision of this 
Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the 
remainder of the provisions shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, 
impaired or invalidated. 

G. Governing Laws. This Agreement shall be interpreted according to the internal 
laws, but not the conflict of laws rules, of the State of Michigan. 

H. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the 
parties and supersedes any and all previous or contemporaneous oral or written agreements and 
negotiations between the Township and the Consultant with respect to the Proposal and the 
Services. 

I. Waiver. No waiver of any provision of this Agreement shall be deemed to or 
constitute a waiver of any other provision of this Agreement (whether or not similar) nor shall any 
such waiver be deemed to or constitute a continuing waiver unless otherwise expressly provided 
in this Agreement. 

J. Exhibit. Exhibits A is attached hereto, and by this reference incorporated in and 
made a part of this Agreement. In the event of a conflict between the Exhibit and the text of this 
Agreement, the text of this Agreement shall control. 

K. Rights Cumulative. Unless expressly provided to the contrary in this Agreement, 
each and every one of the rights, remedies, and benefits provided by this Agreement shall be 
cumulative and shall not be exclusive of any other such rights, remedies, and benefits allowed by 
law. 

L. Counterpart Execution. This Agreement may be executed in several 
counterparts, each of which, when executed, shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which 
together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

 

 
CONSULTANT Ypsilanti Charter Township 

 
By: 

Its:  _ 

Date:  _ 

By: 

Its:: _ 

Date: 

By: 

Its:: _ 

Date: 



 

EXHIBIT A 

COST PROPOSAL 

 
 
 
 

Munivate LLC 
11242 N Meridian Rd 
Pleasant Lake, MI 49272 US 

(517) 614-3643 

kkeyes@munlvate.com 

c=rm:aom =,lbu::::,::,:..--==:,.:1=, 

MuniVate 
 � re   w.. ,m  

 
 

 
Estimate 

 

ADDRESS 
Ypsilanti Township Ml 

ESTIMATE 
DATE 

1043 
01/16/2025 

 
 

DATE ACTIVITY . DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT 
 

Consulting Onsite Bond and Escrow Reconciliation 
Discovery - Perform in-depth analysis 
of Bond and Escrow Accounts and 
develop report with findings and 
recommendation for reconciliation 
across data sources 

60 185.00 11,100.00 

 
   

 

 

We are pleased to provide this Cost Proposal for Services to you. To accept this 
proposal, please sign below and return to kkeyes@munivate.com to begin 
scheduling. Depending on the scope of the project. a Scope of Work moy also 
be required prior to scheduling. 

 
All services (Project Management, Travel, etc.) not related to actual onsile or 
remote billable days, hours, time, elc.. are deemed to be accrued at the lime of 
acceplance of this agreement and may be billed immediately or ,at a poinl in the 
future determined by Munivate LLC unless otherwise specified. It is most 
common however, for all costs to be billed upon complelion of approved billable 
days, hours, or limo. This cost proposal lists estimates for billable days, hours, 
or time to complete requested work. The final Invoice will include actual days. 
hours, or times accrued. Travel is calculated based on onsite days proposed, 
actual amount to be adjusted based on actual onslle days on final invoice. 

TOTAL $11,100.00 

 
 
 
 

Accepted By 

Accepted Date 

mailto:kkeyes@munlvate.com
mailto:kkeyes@munivate.com


CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Boards and Commissions Appointments 

 
Resolution No. 2025-08 

 
 

APPOINTMENTS 
         
Washtenaw Regional Recycling Management Authority (WRRMA) Exp. Date 
Hines, John (Delegate)       Pleasure of the Board 
Stumbo, Brenda (Alternate)       Pleasure of the Board 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
RESOLUTION 2025-09 

 
RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT FOR 2025 MDNR LAND AND WATER  

CONVSERVATION FUND APPLICATION 
 

WHEREAS, this Board is committed to providing quality parkland and 

trails to its residents and visitors and approved the 2024 Recreation Master 

Plan; and 

WHEREAS, this Board recognizes that the 2024 Recreation Master 

Plan has identified the resurfacing of the North Bay Park Boardwalk trail as 

a priority project; and 

WHEREAS, this Board wishes to utilize the MDNR Land and Water 

Conservation Fund for a matching grant to resurface and improve the North 

Bay Park Boardwalk trail for safety improvements; and 

WHEREAS, this Board acknowledges it has received a cost estimate in 

the form of an Engineer's Probable Cost statement and anticipates the 

resurfacing and improvement of the North Bay Park Boardwalk trail in 

accordance with the specification in the grant application in the amount of 

$702,000. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that this Board supports the 
pursuit of the MDNR Land and Water Conservation Fund grant application 
and will provide the match to the grant, if approved, in the amount of 
$351,000.   

 
 
 
I, Debra A. Swanson, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of 

Michigan hereby certify the above resolution is a true and exact copy of Resolution No. 2025-09 approved by 
the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular Meeting held on April 1, 2025.  

 
 

Debra A Swanson, Clerk                                                                   
                             Charter Township of Ypsilanti  



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
RESOLUTION 2025-10 

 
RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT FOR 2025 MDNR TRUST FUND APPLICATION 

 

WHEREAS, this Board is committed to providing quality parkland and 

trails to its residents and visitors and approved the 2024 Recreation Master 

Plan; and 

WHEREAS, this Board recognizes that the 2024 Recreation Master Plan 

has identified the replacement of the North Bay Park pavilion and restrooms 

as a priority project; and 

WHEREAS, this Board wishes to utilize the MDNR Trust Fund for a 

matching grant to replace the North Bay Park pavilion and restrooms as a 

key park amenity; and 

WHEREAS, this Board acknowledges it has received a cost estimate in 

the form of an Engineer's Probable Cost statement and anticipates the 

demolition and construction of the North Bay Park pavilion and restrooms in 

accordance with the specification in the grant application in the amount of 

$617,200. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that this Board supports the 

pursuit of the MDNR Trust Fund grant application and will provide the match 

to the grant, if approved, in the amount of $308,600.   

I, Debra A. Swanson, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of Michigan hereby certify the above 
resolution is a true and exact copy of Resolution No. 2025-10 approved by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees 
assembled at a Regular Meeting held on April 1, 2025.  

 

Debra A Swanson, Clerk                                                                   
                             Charter Township of Ypsilanti  

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Support of Washtenaw County Office of Community and Economic Development’s 

Woodlawn Cemetery Restoration Plan 
Resolution No. 2025-11 

WHEREAS, there is a historic abandoned cemetery within the boundary of Ypsilanti 
Township; and, 

WHEREAS, this cemetery is located on parcel K-11-21-403-001, commonly known as 7800 S 
Huron River Drive; and, 

WHEREAS, it does not appear that there is a legal owner of this property; and, 

WHEREAS, this cemetery is not active, meaning that no new burials are, or will take place on 
this property; and, 

WHEREAS, Ypsilanti Township recognizes the historic importance of the cemetery, including 
the fact that many veterans and African Americans who were central to the development and 
history of Ypsilanti Township were buried here; and,  

WHEREAS, Ypsilanti Township was approached by the Washtenaw County Office of 
Community and Economic Development with a Woodlawn Cemetery Restoration Plan; and, 

WHEREAS, the plan brought forward looks to be well thought out and sustainable; and, 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees is in 
support of the Washtenaw County Office of Community and Economic Development to 
implement their Woodlawn Cemetery Restoration Plan. 







 1 

Facility Use Agreement 
US Rowing – Rowfest Event 

 
Date of Agreement: March 3, 2025 
Event: US Rowing – Rowfest, Ford Lake Park, July 7, 2025 – July 22, 2025 
Organizer: Destination Ann Arbor – Ann Arbor Sports Commission, 315 W. Huron St. 
Suite 340, Ann Arbor, MI 48103 
Owner: Charter Township of Ypsilanti, 7200 S. Huron River Dr. Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
 
1. Purpose. This Facility Use Agreement (the "Agreement") outlines the terms and 

conditions between the Ann Arbor Sports Commission (“AASC”) and the Charter 
Township of Ypsilanti (“TWP”) for the use of Ford Lake Park and the facilities contained 
therein for a US Rowing - Rowfest event, hosted by AASC (the “Event”).   
 

2. Scope of Use. AASC is hosting the Event, to take place July 7, 2025 – July 22, 2025 
(“Event Dates”) at Ford Lake Park (“Park”), with further details provided in the attached 
Schedule, incorporated as part of this Agreement. The parties agree to the following 
scope:  

 
2.1. Exclusive Commercial Event Use. AASC shall have exclusive commercial use of 

the Park and the TWP shall not allow other commercial events in the Park during 
the Event Dates. The TWP may allow other events in the Park only after receiving 
written agreement from AASC. Such exclusive use does not include use by the 
general public. 
 

2.2. Priority Use of Park Spaces & Facilities. AASC shall have priority use of parking 
spaces, open onsite administrative buildings, lake access points, and Park space, 
with specific spaces and facilities agreed upon by AASC and the TWP.  

 
2.3. Right of Inspection. The TWP shall have the right to inspect its facilities being used 

by AASC. AASC shall be responsible for ensuring that all Event sponsor activities 
follow TWP Park rules and guidelines.  

 
2.4. Conformance with Rules and Regulations. AASC acknowledges that the TWP is 

subject to the Michigan Department of Natural Resources (DNR) and Federal 
Energy Regulatory Commission guidelines on Park and lake access, as well as 
other rules and regulations. As such, AASC will accept TWP’s requirements to 
conform the Event activities to required rules and regulations, including TWP 
ordinances as they pertain to the use of TWP parks and facilities. Additionally, 
AASC and its partners, sponsors, and vendors shall abide by the laws of Michigan 
and the United States, and shall not violate municipal ordinances. The TWP 
reserves the right to exclude any individual or group from its facilities based on 
conduct, which it determines in its discretion to be objectionable or contrary to 



 2 

community interests; AASC hereby consents to the exercise of such authority by 
the TWP. 

 
 
 

3. Rental Fees and Expenses 
 
3.1. Parking Fees. AASC and the TWP shall mutually agree upon reasonable Parking 

Fees for the Event. The TWP shall retain all revenue from the Parking Fees. The TWP 
shall provide AASC and US Rowing staff and partners free parking, the number of 
passes or spaces to be mutually agreed upon by AASC and the TWP.  The TWP shall 
manage Event parking and shall be responsible for any associated parking 
expenses, including providing parking passes or designated spaces; however, AASC 
will provide volunteers to assist with Event parking at the request of the TWP. 
 

3.2. Rental Fees. The total and complete Rental Fees for the Event shall be $35,000. 
However, the TWP agrees to offset the Rental Fees by the revenue it receives from 
the Parking Fees, such that the Parking Fees revenue will thereby reduce the total 
amount of Rental Fees. If the TWP receives $35,000 or more in revenue from the 
Parking Fees, it shall waive all Rental Fees for the Event. Rental Fees shall not be 
due before the completion of the Event; reconciliation of Parking Fees and Rental 
Fees between the TWP and AASC will be completed no later than thirty (30) days 
after the conclusion of the Event Dates. 

 
3.3. Event Expenses. AASC shall be responsible for associated Event expenses, 

including service expenses for extra trash service, field paint, and additional safety 
equipment. Such Event expenses do not include TWP staff wages or other normal 
or ongoing TWP expenses or fees that do not directly result from the Event. Event 
expenses shall be included within the Rental Fees, unless AASC and the TWP 
mutually agree to separate or otherwise adjust payment of the expenses. 

 
4. Obligations of AASC 

 
4.1. Proof of Insurance. AASC shall provide proof of insurance naming TWP as an 

additional insured on its policies for the Event no later than thirty (30) days prior to 
the start of the Event Dates.  
 

4.2. Usage Map. At least ninety (90) days before the start of the Event Dates, AASC will 
provide a proposed Usage Map for the Park that includes the space and locations 
needed for teams, spectators, lake access for participants and residents, parking, 
operations, temporary structures, and other Event activities for the TWP’s review. 
AASC and the TWP will mutually agree to a final Usage Map for the Event no less 
than thirty (30) days from the start of the Event Dates. The parties shall mutually 
agree to any modification of the final Usage Map.  



 3 

 
4.3. Safety Plan. AASC will work with the TWP, DNR, US Rowing and other entities to 

provide an approved safety plan for event operations. AASC will also provide onsite 
security for the duration of the Event as requested by the TWP. 

 
4.4. Vendors. AASC shall be responsible for procuring any necessary vendors for the 

Event. AASC will provide a list of its vendors to the TWP for access and security 
reasons.  

 
4.5. Community Information. AASC will provide Event information to be posted to the 

TWP offices and throughout the community communicating Event details, 
including days of the Event, times of the Event and other pertinent details regarding 
Event timelines and activities. AASC also agrees to conduct a community 
education session/FAQ about the Event as requested by the TWP. 

 
4.6. TWP Inclusion in Event Planning. AASC will include TWP staff in relevant Event 

planning meetings. 
 

4.7. TWP Activation Space. If Event sponsors are allocated booths or activation space, 
AASC shall afford the TWP the same opportunity. The TWP acknowledges that if it 
chooses to take advantage of such an opportunity, it is responsible for building out 
and staffing the allocated booth or activation space. 

 
5. Obligations of the TWP 

 
5.1. Park and Facilities Access. The TWP will provide access to the Park and grounds, 

including lake access points, parking spaces/areas, and use of onsite 
administrative building(s) as determined in the final Usage Map. The TWP may 
maintain the use of one or more rooms in onsite administrative buildings. 
 

5.2. Activities & Temporary Structures. The TWP shall allow the Event activities and 
associated temporary structures and tents, including the rowing course, to remain 
up and in an operational state for the duration of the Event Dates. The Event Dates 
listed include two days prior for setup and two days post for teardown, as detailed 
in the attached Schedule.  
 

5.3. Equipment and Technology. The TWP shall allow AASC to bring in equipment and 
technology to allow for wifi access onsite, as well as generators for power for Event 
activities, including PA and video systems and cooling units for temporary tents or 
structures. 
 

5.4. Maintenance. The TWP shall remain responsible for the general maintenance of 
the Park, including: 

 



 4 

a. Trash removal – remove all trash, including adding additional trash receptacles 
to meet increased needs of the Event. If an additional dumpster service is 
required to facilitate trash removal, AASC will reimburse the TWP for the said 
service. 

b. Maintaining any onsite restrooms. AASC will be responsible for any temporary 
restrooms onsite for event usage. 

c. Maintaining all common areas, including parking lots and parking areas.  
 

5.5. Safety. In coordination with AASC, the TWP shall act as liaison with local law 
enforcement and health officials to ensure Event details are communicated and 
any needed plans are in place to meet Event safety and community needs.  
 

5.6. Limitation of Liability. The TWP acknowledges that the Event is part of a larger 
event scheme, and AASC, as host of the Event but not the Event rights holder, has 
other contractual agreements and obligations with other parties (such as US 
Rowing – “AASC Parties”) that may govern the Event; however, AASC agrees that it 
will maintain sole liability for those related Event contracts to which the TWP is not 
a party.    
 

5.7. Limitations of Services. AASC understands and agrees that the TWP will perform 
its service obligations under this Agreement within the scope of its budgeted funds. 
If the TWP is unable to fulfill its service obligations due to budget restraints, it will 
not be obligated to AASC for any monetary damages, provided that the TWP notifies 
AASC in writing of such inability not less than fourteen (14) days before the Event 
Dates. 

 
6. Term and Termination  

 
6.1. Term. This Agreement shall commence on the date first written above (the “Date of 

Agreement”) and terminate upon the conclusion of the Event and the fulfillment of 
all obligations by both parties, including the Rental Fees reconciliation period in 
Section 3.2 (Rental Fees) unless terminated earlier in accordance with Section 6.2 
(Termination). 

 
6.2.  Termination. Either party may terminate this Agreement with immediate effect: 

 
a. Upon mutual written consent of both parties.  
b.  With seven (7) days written notice to the other party if more than sixty (60) 

days from the Event Dates. 
c. If the other party materially breaches any provision of this Agreement and 

fails to remedy the breach within twenty-four (24) hours after receiving 
written notice during the Event Dates, or within seven (7) days after receiving 
written notice at any other time. If a violation of this Agreement results in an 
objective health and safety risk to users of the Park and facilities, the TWP 



 5 

reserves the right to terminate the Agreement immediately without written 
notice. 

 
6.3. Consequences of Termination. If the Agreement is terminated pursuant to Section 

6.2 (Termination): 
 

a. Where neither party is at fault, each party’s obligations under this Agreement 
shall cease. Neither party shall be entitled to a refund of any expenses 
(including in-kind) already incurred up through such effective date of 
termination. 

b. Where TWP is the party at fault, TWP shall not be entitled to any refund of any 
expenses or fees it incurred related to the Event up to the point of 
termination. TWP shall reimburse AASC with respect to any amount AASC 
incurs to replace the Park as a venue or the services necessary for hosting 
the Event. 

c. Where AASC is the party at fault, AASC shall not be entitled to any refund of 
any expenses or fees it incurred related to the Event. TWP is entitled to the 
cost of any services rendered and expenses incurred related to the Event up 
to the point of termination.  

 
7. Cancellation / Rescheduling of Event 

 
7.1. TWP acknowledges and agrees that AASC may abandon, cancel, curtail and/or 

reschedule the Event where AASC reasonably deems it necessary to do so.  
 

7.2. In the event of any changes to the Event Dates and/or Event Location(s), AASC shall 
provide written notice of such change(s) to TWP as soon as reasonably practicable. 

 
7.3. If the Event is cancelled, curtailed, abandoned or rescheduled, or the location of 

the Event is changed, in either case whether a result of Force Majeure or otherwise, 
TWP agrees that it shall not, under any circumstances, seek to recover any form of 
compensation from AASC and shall not seek professional costs and other 
expenses, caused by and/or resulting from the cancellation, curtailment, 
abandonment or rescheduling of the Event. 

 
8. Force Majeure. If by reason of any extraordinary circumstance beyond a party’s 

reasonable control, such as serious fire, storm, and/or flood, earthquake, explosion, 
acts of a public enemy, war, insurrection, terrorist act or threat of terrorist act, 
sabotage, epidemic or pandemic, embargoes, strikes and/or labor disputes of persons 
other than such party, acts of God, acts of government whether national, municipal or 
otherwise, or any agency therefor which affects the performance of any provision of this 
Agreement by that party (a “Force Majeure Event”), such party is prevented from or 
delayed in performing any of its obligations hereunder, then such delay or non-
performance shall not be deemed to be a breach of this Agreement and no loss or 



 6 

damage shall be claimed by any other party by reason thereof. For avoidance of doubt, 
a Force Majeure Event does not include a party being unable to fulfil its obligations 
under this Agreement as a result of a lack of funds or being or becoming insolvent. 
Notwithstanding the forgoing, if TWP is prevented from or delayed in performing any of 
its obligations hereunder by reason of any Force Majeure Event for a period of more 
than three (3) months, or for a period of more than one week during the period of two (2) 
months immediately preceding the Event Dates, AASC shall be entitled to terminate 
this Agreement without penalty or any liability to TWP. 
 

9. Warranties, Indemnity and Insurance 
 
9.1. Warranties. AASC warrants and represents to TWP, and TWP warrants and 

represents to AASC, that:  
 

a. it has the full right, power and authority to enter into and perform its 
obligations under this Agreement (including the rights to use provided 
intellectual property) which shall constitute lawful, valid and binding 
obligations in accordance with its terms;  

b. its performance of this Agreement will not breach any other agreement or 
obligation (including any law, regulation, license provision, order, judgment 
or decree) by which it is bound, nor will its performance be affected by those 
agreements or obligations (excepting any contract between the AASC Parties 
governing the Event itself) or by any litigation or dispute in which it is, or any 
of its personnel are, involved.  
 

9.2. Indemnification. AASC shall indemnify and hold harmless the Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti and its officers, agents and employees from and against any and all suits, 
actions or claims of any character, type or description, including all expenses of 
litigation, court costs and attorney’s fees, brought or made for on account of any 
injuries or damages received or sustained by any person or persons or property, 
arising out of, or occasioned by, the negligent act or failure to act of the AASC or its 
agents, volunteers or employees in the use of the facilities arising out of obligations 
of the AASC as set forth in this Agreement. 

 
9.3. Insurance. AASC shall at all times during the term of this Agreement maintain in 

effect general public liability insurance covering the CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 
YPSILANTI. The Charter Township of Ypsilanti STRICTLY adheres to the insurance 
requirements. These insurance requirements shall not be waived for any reason. 
The minimum amount of the policy shall be $1,000,000 general liability per 
occurrence. Please read carefully the required insurance that must be obtained. 
The Charter Township of Ypsilanti shall be named as an additional insured on such 
policy and shall be entitled to at least a thirty day (30) day notice of cancellation or 
changes of any kind. 
 



 7 

The wording on the policy MUST read: 
“…The Charter Township of Ypsilanti and its past, present and future elected 
officials, trustees, appointed commissions and board, agents and employees shall 
be named as “additional insured” on the General Liability policy with respect to 
(event, dates, times and location). 
 
AASC acknowledges this may require an addition to its current policy or an 
additional policy, either of which could result in extra cost from its insurance 
carrier. 

 
10. General Provisions 

 
10.1. Assignment and Delegation: Except as otherwise expressly provided in this 

Agreement, neither party may assign, transfer, or delegate any or all of its rights or 
obligations under this Agreement, including by operation of law, change of control, 
or merger, without the prior written consent of the other party. This Agreement shall 
be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective 
successors and permitted assigns. 
 

10.2. Confidentiality. The Parties acknowledge that the contents of this 
Agreement are confidential and agree, unless disclosure is required by law, court 
order or subpoena, to take whatever measures are reasonably necessary to 
preserve such confidentiality. The duties of the Parties hereunder shall survive the 
expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement.  
 

10.3. Relationship of the Parties. The Parties shall be independent contractors 
pursuant to this Agreement. Nothing herein shall be construed to create a joint 
venture, agency, partnership, or other form of joint enterprise, employee, or 
fiduciary relationship between the Parties or an employer/employee or agency 
relationship. Neither Party shall have any express or implied right or authority to 
assume or create any obligations on behalf of or in the name of the other Party or to 
bind the other Party to any contract, agreement, or undertaking with any third party. 

 
10.4. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement 

between the Parties and supersedes any prior agreements, written or oral. 
 

10.5. Amendments. This Agreement may only be amended in writing and signed 
by both parties. 

 
10.6. Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement is invalid, illegal, or 

unenforceable in any jurisdiction, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall 
not affect any other term or provision of this Agreement or invalidate or render 
unenforceable such term or provision in any other jurisdiction. 

 



 8 

 
In witness thereof, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be duly executed as of the 
Date of Agreement and are legally bound hereto. 
 

For the AASC: 
 
By: ________________________________ 
 
Name: _________________________________ 
Title: _____________________________ 
 
Date: _________________________________ 

For the TWP: 
 
By: ________________________________ 
 
Name: _________________________________ 
Title: _____________________________ 
 
Date: _________________________________ 

 
  



 9 

Schedule 
 

This Schedule is hereby incorporated as part of the Facility Use Agreement between AASC 
and the TWP. 
 
2025 Rowfest Schedule – Subject to change due to weather conditions 
*Security on Site Entire Event on Closed Hours (8pm-5am daily)  Starting Friday the 11th – 
Sunday, July 20th  
* Medical on site on practice and race days and 2 lifeguards on site – July 11th-20th 
 
Monday July 7-  

- 8:00am-5:00 pm - US Rowing On Site  
o Walkthrough of park 
o Venue layout of park  
o Tent arrival and setup (No Township Staff needed)  
o Course installation starts on water 

Tuesday, July 8th –  
- 7:00am-6:00 pm – US Rowing on Site  

o  Continued Venue Set up – (signage, fencing, setting up registration) (No 
township staff needed)  

Wednesday, July 9th  
- 7:00-6:00pm – US Rowing on Site  

o Continue Venue Set up  
o  Launches arrive and setup in water (no township staff needed) 

Thursday, July 10th  
- 7:00am-6:00pm – US Rowing on site  

o  Venue Set up 
o Township Walkthrough with staff  
o  Additional docks set up  

Friday, July 11 
- 4:45 am - US Rowing to arrive  

o EMT Arrival Day 
o Security Arrival Day 

- 6:00am-8:00pm - Team Registration Open on Site –  
o Teams Arrive 

- 8:00am-2:00pm - Trailer Parking  
- 10am-6pm constant flow of vehicles 300 cars approximately (buses and trailers 

mostly) (Township Staff and Volunteers) 



 10 

- 11:00am-6:00pm - Team Registration  
- 12:00-6:00pm Practice on Water  
- 8pm – US Rowing Departure  

 
Saturday, July 12-Saturday, July 19 

- 4:45 am - US Rowing to arrive  
- 6:30am-9:00am – 300-400 cars arrive (Township manage parking all day, peak 

parking at this time) (Limited Parking Assistance Needed rest of day until dusk) 
- 7:30am - Racing Begins   
- 7:30am - Food Trucks Arrive 
- 11:00am – Additional food Trucks Arrive   
- 3:00pm – Food Trucks Leave 
- 6-7pm Racing Finishing  
- 8pm – US Rowing Departure 
- Trash assistance needed  

 
Sunday, July 13 

- 4:45 am - US Rowing to arrive  
- 6:30am-9:00am – 300-400 cars arrive (Township manage parking all day, peak 

parking at this time) (Limited Parking Assistance Needed rest of day until dusk) 
- 7:30am - Racing Begins   
- 7:30am - Food Trucks Arrive 
- 11:00am – Additional food Trucks Arrive   
- 3:00pm – Food Trucks Leave 
- 6-7pm Racing Finishing  
- 8pm – US Rowing Departure 
- Trash assistance needed  

 
Monday, July 14 

- 4:45 am - US Rowing to arrive  
- 6:30am-9:00am – 300-400 cars arrive (Township manage parking all day, peak 

parking at this time) (Limited Parking Assistance Needed rest of day until dusk) 
-  
- 7:30am - Racing Begins   
- 7:30am - Food Trucks Arrive 
- 11:00am – Additional food Trucks Arrive   
- 3:00pm – Food Trucks Leave 
- 6-7pm Racing Finishing  



 11 

- 8pm – US Rowing Departure 
- Trash assistance needed  

 
Tuesday- July 15th 

- 4:45 am - US Rowing to arrive  
- 6:30am-9:00am – 300-400 cars arrive (Township manage parking all day, peak 

parking at this time) (Limited Parking Assistance Needed rest of day until dusk) 
- 7:30am - Racing Begins   
- 7:30am - Food Trucks Arrive 
- 11:00am – Additional food Trucks Arrive   
- 3:00pm – Food Trucks Leave 
- 6-7pm Racing Finishing  
- 8pm – US Rowing Departure 
- 5:00pm-8:00pm – Trailers Leaving  
- Trash assistance needed  

 
Wednesday, July 16th 

- 4:45 am - US Rowing to arrive  
- 6:30am-9:00am – MASTERS ARRIVE, increase of cars400-500 cars arrive (Township 

manage parking all day, peak parking at this time) (Limited Parking Assistance 
Needed rest of day until dusk) 

- 7:30am - Food Trucks Arrive 
- 8:00am-12:00pm - Racing   
- 9:00am-5:00pm – (Township staff needed – with one US Rowing Staff member) – 

30 trailers for masters arriving  
- 12:00-6:00pm – Practice  
- 11:00am – Additional food Trucks Arrive   
- 3:00pm – Food Trucks Leave 
- 6:00-7:00pm Racing Finishing  
- 8pm – US Rowing Departure 
- 5:00pm-8:00pm – Trailers Leaving  
- Trash assistance needed  

Thursday, July 17th 

- 4:45 am - US Rowing to arrive  
- 6:30am-9:00am – 400-500 cars arrive (Township manage parking all day, peak 

parking at this time) (Limited Parking Assistance Needed rest of day until dusk) 
- 7:30am - Racing Begins   
- 7:30am - Food Trucks Arrive 



 12 

- 11:00am – Additional food Trucks Arrive   
- 3:00pm – Food Trucks Leave 
- 6-7pm Racing Finishing  
- 8pm – US Rowing Departure 
- 5:00pm-8:00pm – Trailers Leaving  
- Trash assistance needed  

 
Friday, July 18 

- 4:45 am - US Rowing to arrive  
- 6:30am-9:00am – 400-500 cars arrive (Township manage parking all day, peak 

parking at this time) (Limited Parking Assistance Needed rest of day until dusk) 
- 7:30am - Racing Begins   
- 7:30am - Food Trucks Arrive 
- 11:00am – Additional food Trucks Arrive   
- 3:00pm – Food Trucks Leave 
- 6-7pm Racing Finishing  
- 8pm – US Rowing Departure 
- 5:00pm-8:00pm – Trailers Leaving  
- Trash assistance needed  

 

Saturday, July 19th  
- 4:45 am - US Rowing to arrive  
- 6:30am-9:00am – 400-500 cars arrive (Township manage parking all day, peak 

parking at this time) (Limited Parking Assistance Needed rest of day until dusk) 
- 7:30am - Racing Begins   
- 7:30am - Food Trucks Arrive 
- 11:00am – Additional food Trucks Arrive   
- 3:00pm – Food Trucks Leave 
- 6-7pm Racing Finishing  

8pm – US Rowing Departure 
5:00pm-8:00pm – Trailers Leaving  
Trash assistance needed  
 
Sunday, July 20 

- 4:45 am - US Rowing to arrive  
- 6:30am-9:00am – 300-400 cars arrive (Township manage parking all day, peak 

parking at this time) (Limited Parking Assistance Needed rest of day until dusk) 
- 7:30am - Racing Begins   



 13 

- 7:30am - Food Trucks Arrive 
- 11:00am – Additional food Trucks Arrive   
- 3:00pm – Food Trucks Leave 
- 6:00pm – Last Race 
- 5:00-7:00 – Trailer Departure  
- 8pm – US Rowing Departure 
- 7:00-8:00pm – Trailers Leaving  
- Trash assistance needed  

 
Monday, July 21 

- 7:00am-6:00pm – Vendor, Ann Arbor Sports Commission, US Rowing Clean up  
- 7:00am-12:00pm - additional trailers leaving 
- 4:00pm - township final walkthrough requested as shut down in afternoon  
- Course taken down  

 
Tuesday, July 22 

- Continued course taken down on water  

 



Facility Use Agreement 
Ann Arbor Sports Commission – EMU – Ford Lake Cup  

 
Date of Agreement: March 21, 2025  
Event: Ford Lake Cup, Ford Lake Park, April 25-26, 2025 
Organizer: Destination Ann Arbor – Ann Arbor Sports Commission, 315 W. Huron St. 
Suite 340, Ann Arbor, MI 48103 
Owner: Charter Township of Ypsilanti, 7200 S. Huron River Dr. Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
 
1. Purpose. This Facility Use Agreement (the "Agreement") outlines the terms and 

conditions between the Ann Arbor Sports Commission (“AASC”) and the Charter 
Township of Ypsilanti (“TWP”) for the use of Ford Lake Park and the facilities contained 
therein for a Ford Lake Cup - Collegiate event, hosted by AASC (the “Event”).   
 

2. Scope of Use. AASC is hosting the Event, to take place April 25-26, 2025 (“Event 
Dates”) at Ford Lake Park (“Park”). The parties agree to the following scope:  

 
2.1. Exclusive Event Use. AASC shall have partial use of the Park and the TWP to be 

agreed upon by the township. The TWP may allow other events in the Park. 
 

2.2. Priority Use of Park Spaces & Facilities. AASC shall have priority use of limited 
number of parking spaces, lake access points, and Park space. 
 

2.3. Conformance with Rules and Regulations. AASC acknowledges that the TWP is 
subject to the Michigan Department of Natural Resources (DNR) and Federal 
Energy Regulatory Commission guidelines on Park and lake access, as well as 
other rules and regulations. As such, AASC will accept TWP’s requirements to 
conform the Event activities to required rules and regulations, including TWP 
ordinances as they pertain to the use of TWP parks and facilities. Additionally, 
AASC and its partners, sponsors, and vendors shall abide by the laws of Michigan 
and the United States, and shall not violate municipal ordinances. The TWP 
reserves the right to exclude any individual or group from its facilities based on 
conduct, which it determines in its discretion to be objectionable or contrary to 
community interests; AASC hereby consents to the exercise of such authority by 
the TWP. 

 
 

3. Rental Fees and Expenses 
 
3.1. Rental Fees. The total and complete Rental Fees for the Event shall be $500.00.  

 
 

3.2. Event Expenses. AASC shall be responsible for associated Event expenses. 
 



4. Obligations of AASC 
 
4.1. Proof of Insurance. AASC shall provide proof of insurance naming TWP as an 

additional insured on its policies for the Event no later than thirty (30) days prior to 
the start of the Event Dates.  
 

4.2. Usage Map. At least ninety (30) days before the start of the Event Dates, AASC will 
provide a proposed Usage Map for the Park that includes the space and locations 
needed for teams, spectators, lake access for participants and residents, parking, 
operations, temporary structures, and other Event activities for the TWP’s review. 
AASC and the TWP will mutually agree to a final Usage Map for the Event no less 
than thirty (30) days from the start of the Event Dates. The parties shall mutually 
agree to any modification of the final Usage Map.  

 
4.3. Safety Plan. AASC will work with the TWP, DNR, EMU and other entities to provide 

an approved safety plan for event operations. AASC will also provide onsite security 
for the duration of the Event as requested by the TWP. 

 
4.4. TWP Inclusion in Event Planning. AASC will include TWP staff in relevant Event 

planning meetings. 
 

4.5. TWP Activation Space. If Event sponsors are allocated booths or activation space, 
AASC shall afford the TWP the same opportunity. The TWP acknowledges that if it 
chooses to take advantage of such an opportunity, it is responsible for building out 
and staffing the allocated booth or activation space. 

 
5. Obligations of the TWP 

 
5.1. Park and Facilities Access. The TWP will provide access to the Park and grounds, 

including lake access points, parking spaces/areas, and use of onsite 
administrative building(s) as determined in the final Usage Map.  
 

5.2. Activities & Temporary Structures. The TWP shall allow the Event activities and 
associated temporary structures and tents, including the rowing course, to remain 
up and in an operational state for the duration of the Event Dates. The Event Dates 
listed include two days prior for setup and two day post for teardown.  
 

5.3. Equipment and Technology. The TWP shall allow AASC to bring in equipment and 
technology to allow for wifi access onsite.  

 
5.4. Maintenance. The TWP shall remain responsible for the general maintenance of 

the Park, including: 
 



1.3 Trash removal – remove all trash, including adding additional trash receptacles 
to meet increased needs of the Event.  

2.3 AASC will be responsible for any temporary restrooms onsite for event usage. 
3.3 Maintaining all common areas, including parking lots and parking areas.  

 
5.5. Safety.  AASC will serve as liaison with local law enforcement and health officials 

to ensure Event details are communicated and any needed plans are in place to 
meet Event safety and community needs. AASC will keep TWP aware of all relevant 
details. 
 

5.6. Limitation of Liability. AASC agrees that it will maintain sole liability for those 
related Event contracts in which the TWP is not a party.    
 

5.7. Limitations of Services. AASC understands and agrees that the TWP will perform 
its service obligations under this Agreement within the scope of its budgeted funds. 
If the TWP is unable to fulfill its service obligations due to budget restraints, it will 
not be obligated to AASC for any monetary damages, provided that the TWP notifies 
AASC in writing of such inability not less than fourteen (14) days before the Event 
Dates. 

 
6. Term and Termination  

 
6.1. Term. This Agreement shall commence on the date first written above (the “Date of 

Agreement”) and terminate upon the conclusion of the Event and the fulfillment of 
all obligations by both parties, including the Rental Fees reconciliation period in 
Section 3.1 (Rental Fees) unless terminated earlier in accordance with Section 6.2 
(Termination). 

 
6.2.  Termination. Either party may terminate this Agreement with immediate effect: 

 
1.1.2 Upon mutual written consent of both parties.  
1.2.2  With seven (7) days written notice to the other party if more than sixty 

(30) days from the Event Dates. 
1.3.2 If the other party materially breaches any provision of this Agreement 

and fails to remedy the breach within twenty-four (24) hours after receiving 
written notice during the Event Dates, or within seven (7) days after receiving 
written notice at any other time. If a violation of this Agreement results in an 
objective health and safety risk to users of the Park and facilities, the TWP 
reserves the right to terminate the Agreement immediately without written 
notice. 

 
6.3. Consequences of Termination. If the Agreement is terminated pursuant to Section 

6.2 (Termination): 
 



1.1.2 Where neither party is at fault, each party’s obligations under this 
Agreement shall cease. Neither party shall be entitled to a refund of any 
expenses (including in-kind) already incurred up through such effective date 
of termination. 

1.2.2 Where TWP is the party at fault, TWP shall not be entitled to any 
refund of any expenses or fees it incurred related to the Event up to the point 
of termination. TWP shall indemnify AASC in accordance with Section Error! 
Reference source not found. (Indemnification) with respect to any amount 
AASC incurs to replace the Park as a venue or the services necessary for 
hosting the Event. 

1.3.2 Where AASC is the party at fault, AASC shall not be entitled to any 
refund of any expenses or fees it incurred related to the Event. TWP is entitled 
to the cost of any services rendered and expenses incurred related to the 
Event up to the point of termination.  

 
7. Cancellation / Rescheduling of Event 

 
7.1. TWP acknowledges and agrees that AASC may abandon, cancel, curtail and/or 

reschedule the Event where AASC reasonably deems it necessary to do so.  
 

7.2. In the event of any changes to the Event Dates and/or Event Location(s), AASC shall 
provide written notice of such change(s) to TWP as soon as reasonably practicable. 

 
7.3. If the Event is cancelled, curtailed, abandoned or rescheduled, or the location of 

the Event is changed, in either case whether a result of Force Majeure or otherwise, 
TWP agrees that it shall not, under any circumstances, seek to recover any form of 
compensation from AASC and shall not seek professional costs and other 
expenses, caused by and/or resulting from the cancellation, curtailment, 
abandonment or rescheduling of the Event. 

 
8. Force Majeure. If by reason of any extraordinary circumstance beyond a party’s 

reasonable control, such as serious fire, storm, and/or flood, earthquake, explosion, 
acts of a public enemy, war, insurrection, terrorist act or threat of terrorist act, 
sabotage, epidemic or pandemic, embargoes, strikes and/or labor disputes of persons 
other than such party, acts of God, acts of government whether national, municipal or 
otherwise, or any agency therefor which affects the performance of any provision of this 
Agreement by that party (a “Force Majeure Event”), such party is prevented from or 
delayed in performing any of its obligations hereunder, then such delay or non-
performance shall not be deemed to be a breach of this Agreement and no loss or 
damage shall be claimed by any other party by reason thereof. For avoidance of doubt, 
a Force Majeure Event does not include a party being unable to fulfil its obligations 
under this Agreement as a result of a lack of funds or being or becoming insolvent. 
Notwithstanding the forgoing, if TWP is prevented from or delayed in performing any of 
its obligations hereunder by reason of any Force Majeure Event for a period of more 



than three (3) months, or for a period of more than one week during the period of two (2) 
months immediately preceding the Event Dates, AASC shall be entitled to terminate 
this Agreement without penalty or any liability to TWP. 

9. Warranties, Indemnity and Insurance 
 
9.1. Warranties. AASC warrants and represents to TWP, and TWP warrants and 

represents to AASC, that:  
 

1.1.2 it has the full right, power and authority to enter into and perform its 
obligations under this Agreement (including the rights to use provided 
intellectual property) which shall constitute lawful, valid and binding 
obligations in accordance with its terms;  

1.2.2 its performance of this Agreement will not breach any other 
agreement or obligation (including any law, regulation, license provision, 
order, judgment or decree) by which it is bound, nor will its performance be 
affected by those agreements or obligations (excepting any contract between 
the AASC Parties governing the Event itself) or by any litigation or dispute in 
which it is, or any of its personnel are, involved.  
 

9.2. Indemnification.  
1.3 Neither Party shall be liable in contract, tort (including 

negligence) or otherwise for (a) any indirect or consequential loss arising under or in 
connection with this Agreement; or (b) any loss of business opportunity, revenue or 
profits arising under or in connection with this Agreement (whether arising directly or 
indirectly); provided, however, that the limitations of liability stipulated in this Section 
9.1 shall not apply with respect to any act or omission of either Party that constitutes 
fraud or gross negligence. 

2.3 Subject to Section 9.3 below, the Parties agree that the total 
aggregate liability of USRowing to LOC under or in connection with this Agreement 
(whether arising from breach of contract, negligence or otherwise) shall not exceed 
the LOC Fee. 

3.3 The limitation of liability stipulated in Section 9.1 and 9.2 above 
shall not apply: 

3.1.2 To the extent that such limitation or exclusion is not permitted 
by applicable law; 

3.2.2 To any liability of LOC in connection with Section 8 or Section 12 
of this Agreement. 

 
 

9.3. Insurance. AASC shall at all times during the term of this Agreement maintain in 
effect general public liability insurance covering the CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 
YPSILANTI. The Charter Township of Ypsilanti STRICTLY adheres to the insurance 
requirements. These insurance requirements shall not be waived for any reason. 
The minimum amount of the policy shall be $1,000,000 general liability per 



occurrence. Please read carefully the required insurance that must be obtained. 
The Charter Township of Ypsilanti shall be named as an additional insured on such 
policy and shall be entitled to at least a thirty day (30) day notice of cancellation or 
changes of any kind. 
 
The wording on the policy MUST read: 
“…The Charter Township of Ypsilanti and its past, present and future elected 
officials, trustees, appointed commissions and board, agents and employees shall 
be named as “additional insured” on the General Liability policy with respect to 
(event, dates, times and location). 
 
AASC acknowledges this may require an addition to its current policy or an 
additional policy, either of which could result in extra cost from its insurance 
carrier. 

 
10. General Provisions 

 
10.1. Assignment and Delegation: Except as otherwise expressly provided in this 

Agreement, neither party may assign, transfer, or delegate any or all of its rights or 
obligations under this Agreement, including by operation of law, change of control, 
or merger, without the prior written consent of the other party. This Agreement shall 
be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective 
successors and permitted assigns. 
 

10.2. Confidentiality. The Parties acknowledge that the contents of this 
Agreement are confidential and agree, unless disclosure is required by law, court 
order or subpoena, to take whatever measures are reasonably necessary to 
preserve such confidentiality. The duties of the Parties hereunder shall survive the 
expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement.  
 

10.3. Relationship of the Parties. The Parties shall be independent contractors 
pursuant to this Agreement. Nothing herein shall be construed to create a joint 
venture, agency, partnership, or other form of joint enterprise, employee, or 
fiduciary relationship between the Parties or an employer/employee or agency 
relationship. Neither Party shall have any express or implied right or authority to 
assume or create any obligations on behalf of or in the name of the other Party or to 
bind the other Party to any contract, agreement, or undertaking with any third party. 

 
10.4. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement 

between the Parties and supersedes any prior agreements, written or oral. 
 

10.5. Amendments. This Agreement may only be amended in writing and signed 
by both parties. 

 



10.6. Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement is invalid, illegal, or 
unenforceable in any jurisdiction, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall 
not affect any other term or provision of this Agreement or invalidate or render 
unenforceable such term or provision in any other jurisdiction. 

In witness thereof, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be duly executed as of the 
Date of Agreement and are legally bound hereto. 

For the AASC: 

By: ________________________________ 

Name: _________________________________ 
Title: _____________________________ 

Date: _________________________________ 

For the TWP: 

By: ________________________________ 

Name: _________________________________ 
Title: _____________________________ 

Date: _________________________________ 



















CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 15, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 
Board Meetings are audio recorded and posted on the website 

 
DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 
Supervisor Stumbo determined a quorum was present. 
 
Township Supervisor Brenda Stumbo called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm in 
the Ypsilanti Township Civic Center Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, 
Ypsilanti Township. 
 
Members Present: Supervisor Brenda Stumbo, Clerk Debbie Swanson, and 

Treasurer Stan Eldridge 
Trustees: Karen Lovejoy Roe, Gloria Peterson, and LaResha 
Thornton 

Members Not Present: John Newman III 
                 
Legal Counsel: Wm. Douglas Winters 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited followed by a moment of silent prayer. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
A motion was made by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Trustee Peterson 
to approve the agenda. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. MINUTES OF APRIL 15, 2025 REGULAR MEETING 
 

B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 
1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR APRIL 15, 2025 IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $946,600.09 
2. CLARITY HEALTHCARE DEDUCTIBLE ACH FOR APRIL 2025, 

IN THE AMOUNT OF $76,809.04 
3. CLARITY HEALTHCARE ADMIN FEE FOR APRIL 2025, IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $1,674.85 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 15, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING   PAGE 2 
 

 
 
Clerk Swanson read changes to the minutes.  On page 3, item 4, Resolution 
2025-08, page 5, item 9, Ford Lake Cup instead of Regatta.  Under 
Authorizations and Bids we need to add the word Community after County 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
The consent agenda for this meeting will be placed on the May 6th meeting 
agenda due to lack of a motion or support prior to the action to approve. 
 
     
ATTORNEY REPORT 
 

A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 
 

Legal update was provided by Attorney Winters. (refer to audio) 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. APPROVE NEW CARLISLE WORTMAN CONTRACT FOR PLANNING 
CONSULTANT SERVICES IN THE AMOUNT OF $15,700.00 PER MONTH, 
BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-703-801.000 

A motion was made by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Trustee Lovejoy 
Roe to approve new Carlisle Wortman contract for planning consultant services 
in the amount of $15,700.00 per month, budgeted in line item #101-703-
801.000. (see attached) 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

2. APPROVE SECOND AMENDMENT FOR SIGNAGE TO PLANNED 
DEVELOPMENT #7 FOR PAINT CREEK CROSSING, LOCATED AT 2010 
WHITTAKER RD (K-11-21-200-040) 

 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 15, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING   PAGE 3 
 

 
 
A motion was made by Trustee Lovejoy Roe and supported by Trustee Peterson to 
approve Second Amendment for signage to planned development #7 for Paint 
Creek Crossing, located at 2010 Whittaker Rd (K-11-21-200-040) 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 

3. APPROVE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- SHEETZ FUELING STATION, 
CONVENIENCE STORE AND RESTAURANT AT SOUTHEAST CORNER 
OF W MICHIGAN AVE AND S HEWITT RD (755 S HEWITT RD) 
 

A motion was made by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Trustee Thornton to 
approve development agreement- Sheetz Fueling Station, Convenience Store and 
Restaurant at Southeast corner of W Michigan and S Hewitt Rd (755 S Hewitt Rd). 
(see attached) 
 
Representatives from Sheetz were there to share renderings of what the project 
will look like. (see attached, slides from presentation) 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 

4. APPROVE CHANGE ORDER #1 FOR THE 14B DISTRICT COURT 
RENOVATION IN THE AMOUNT OF $47,614.00, BUDGETED IN LINE 
ITEM #101-901-971.236 

 
 
A motion was made by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Trustee Thornton 
to approve Change Order #1 for the 14B District Court Renovation in the 
amount of $47,614.00, budgeted in line item #101-901-971.236. (see attached) 

A friendly amendment by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Trustee 
Thornton to approve the amount of $45,940.00 which represents a deduction 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 15, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING   PAGE 4 
 

 
on $1,674.00 for township IT renovation work versus 14B Court renovation 
work. 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

5. APPROVE THE CONTRACT WITH JOHN E. LAWRENCE FOR 2025 JEL 
CONCERT SERIES TO BE HELD AT FORD LAKE PARK AUGUST 1, 8, 15, 
22, AND 29  

 

A motion was made by Trustee Peterson and supported by Trustee Lovejoy Roe 
to approve the contract with John E. Lawrence for 2025 JEL Concert Series to 
be held at Ford Lake Park August 1, 8, 15, 22, and 29. (see attached) 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

6. APPROVE RESOLUTION 2025-12, PROPOSAL A- FIRE PROTECTION, 
PREVENTION, RESCUE SERVICES, AND EQUIPMENT RESERVE 
MILLAGE 

Clerk Swanson read the resolution into the record. 
 

A motion was made by Clerk Swanson and supported by Treasurer Eldridge to 
approve Resolution 2025-12, Proposal A- Fire Protection, Prevention, Rescue 
Services, and Equipment Reserve Millage. (see attached) 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

7. APPROVE RESOLUTION 2025-13, PROPOSAL B- POLICE SERVICES 
MILLAGE 

Clerk Swanson read the resolution into the record. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 15, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING   PAGE 5 
 

 
 

A motion was made by Clerk Swanson and supported by Treasurer Peterson to 
approve Resolution 2025-13, Proposal B- Police Services Millage. (see 
attached) 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

8.  APPROVE RESOLUTION 2025-14, PROPOSAL C- RECREATION, BIKE 
PATH, SIDEWALK, ROADS, PARKS, GENERAL OPERATIONS FUND 
MILLAGE 

Clerk Swanson read the resolution into the record. 
 

A motion was made by Clerk Swanson and supported by Treasurer Eldridge to 
approve Resolution 2025-14, Proposal C- Recreation, Bike Path, Sidewalk, 
Roads, Parks, General Operations Fund Millage. (see attached) 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

9.  APPROVE RESOLUTION 2025-15, PROPOSAL D- GARBAGE, REFUSE 
COLLECTION, RECYCLING, COMPOSTING, DISPOSAL OF SOLID WASTE, 
ENERGY CONSERVATION, ALTERNATIVE ENERGY, WATER QUALITY 
AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION MILLAGE 

Clerk Swanson read the resolution into the record. 
 

A motion was made by Clerk Swanson and supported by Trustee Peterson to 
approve Resolution 2025-15, Proposal D- Garbage, Refuse Collection, Recycling, 
Composting, Disposal of Solid Waste, Energy Conservation, Alternative Energy, 
Water Quality and Environmental Protection Millage. (see attached) 

The motion carried unanimously. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 15, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING   PAGE 6 
 

 
 

10.  BUDGET AMENDMENT #5 

A motion was made by Clerk Swanson and supported by Trustee Peterson to 
approve Budget Amendment #5. (see attached) 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

AUTHORIZATION AND BIDS 
 

1. PURCHASE TWO (2) 72-INCH ZERO TURN MOWERS IN THE AMOUNT 
OF $30,988.00 AND ONE (1) BOOM SWING MOWER IN THE AMOUNT 
OF $11,680.00 FROM DIUBLE EQUIPMENT, INC, BUDGETED IN LINE 
ITEM #101-770-977.000, CONTINGENT ON BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 
A motion was made by Trustee Lovejoy Roe and supported by Treasurer 
Eldridge to purchase two (2) 72-inch zero turn mowers in the amount of 
$30,988.00 and one (1) Boom Swing Mower in the amount of $11,680.00 from 
Diuble Equipment, Inc., budgeted in line item #101-770-977.000, contingent on 
budget amendment. 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 
2. SEEK SEALED BIDS FOR TWO (2) NEW TOWNSHIP VEHICLES FOR 

THE HYDRO DAM AND RESIDENTIAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT, 
BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #661-268-985.000 

 
A motion was made by Trustee Lovejoy Roe and supported by Trustee 
Thornton to seek sealed bids for two (2) new Township vehicles for the Hydro 
Dam and Residential Services Department, budgeted in line item #661-268-
985.000 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 15, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING   PAGE 7 
 

 
3. APPROVE TWO-YEAR CONTRACT WITH LOOKING GOOD LAWNS, LLC 

FOR ROADSIDE TRASH COLLECTION IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$30,420.00, BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #266-301-830.004 

 
A motion was made by Trustee Peterson and supported by Trustee Lovejoy Roe 
to approve two-year contract with Looking Good Lawns, LLC for Roadside 
Trash Collection in the amount of $30,420.00, budgeted in line item #266-301-
830.004. (see attached) 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 
4. APPROVE TWO-YEAR CONTRACT WITH RNA FACILITIES 

MANAGEMENT FOR VACANT TOWNSHIP PROPERTY MOWING IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $77,846.00, BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-729-
961.001 

 
A motion was made by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Trustee Thornton 
to approve a two-year contract with RNA Facilities Management for Vacant 
Township Property Mowing in the amount of $77,846.00, budgeted in line item 
#101-729-961.001. (see attached) 

The motion carried, 5 to 1. 
 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There were 2 public comments. 
 
 
BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no board member comments. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 15, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING   PAGE 8 
 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
A motion to adjourn was made by Trustee Lovejoy Roe and supported by 
Treasurer Eldridge. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at approximately 6:56PM 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor                  Debra A. Swanson, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti                  Charter Township of Ypsilanti 



 

1 
 

March 25, 2025 
 
Brenda Stumbo 
Township Supervisor 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti  
Tilden R. Stumbo Civic Center 
7200 South Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, Michigan 48197 
 
RE: Planning Department Support Proposal 
  
Supervisor Stumbo, 
 
Carlisle|Wortman Associates (CWA) is proud of our 9-year partnership with the Township. Over the last 
9 years, CWA has provided continuity assisting in various planning matters, including zoning ordinance 
updates, master planning, development review, department staffing, Planning Commission staffing, and 
planning projects for the Township.    
 
Recently the Township has experienced some staffing losses, and we all acknowledge this is a critical time 
in the planning and development future of Ypsilanti Township.  As such, the Township has asked us to 
provide a proposal to provide comprehensive planning services to the Township Planning Department.  A 
continuity in the Planning Department will ensure consistency in Township planning efforts.  
 
Sally Elmiger will serve as the overall project manager and will be the primary point person for day-to-
day continuity.  In addition, we would provide Grayson Moore, on an hourly basis as needed to provide 
zoning administration.  Ben Carlisle is available to assist as needed for any technical matters.  Other 
personnel may be brought on based on experience and need.   
 
As always we can amend or edit these proposals based on Township direction.  We look forward to 
discussing this with you in person.  
 
Sincerely,  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



Monthly Retainer  
 
We will provide onsite and offsite services as requested and manage planning functions for the 
Township.  Our proposal includes three full days a week of in office support.  Duties at the Township 
Offices may include but are not limited to the following: 
 

1. 3 full days of office coverage 
a. Sally Elmiger 3 days a week.   

2. Manage zoning administration including managing existing staff. 
3. Staff the Planning Commission, and Zoning Board of Appeals.   
4. Attendance at all Thursday development team meetings.  
5. Assist residents and potential applicants with zoning and planning questions by appointment, 

as needed. 
6. Advise staff with public hearing and legal notices for rezoning, Ordinance amendments, and 

conditional land uses. 
7. Assist applicants in completing and filing applications for ZBA, rezoning, site plans, etc. by 

telephone consultation and/or appointment, as needed. 
8. Assist staff with PC and ZBA agendas and notices. 
9. Review all commercial, industrial, and multi-family zoning compliance applications including 

final site inspections. 
10. Review of all land division applications. 
11. Attendance at all pre-application meetings. 
12. Other duties as assigned. 
13. Unlimited phone call and email consultation between our Ann Arbor office and Township 

staff, developers, and residents on all planning, zoning, and land use issues. 
 

 

Monthly Retainer 
2025 
Rates 

2026 
Rates 

2027 
Rates 

With office hours (3 full days of 
coverage) $15,700 $16,500 $17,400 

 
Additional Coverage 
 
There will be time when additional zoning administration and other duties are necessary. We propose 
that Grayson Moore would assist Sally on an as needed basis and charge at an hourly rate. 
 
Meetings 
 
Any additional meetings including Township Board, Planning Commission and ZBA attended by the 
Consultant outside of assigned office hours will be billed by the agreed upon hourly rate. 
 
Development Reviews 
 
As needed, we will provide development review for all site plans, special land use requests, rezoning, etc.  
Reviews will be transmitted to the Township in a timely fashion (ideally one (1) week prior to the 
scheduled meeting) to allow the Planning Commission ample time to review the information.  We will be 



available to attend Township Planning Commission meetings to explain our review comments and to 
provide general assistance and consultation to the Planning Commission. 
 
Development review (site plans, subdivision plats, rezoning, etc.) is performed in accordance with a pre-
agreed fee schedule.  This schedule is established so that applicants, not the general fund, can be charged 
the appropriate review fees by means of a set fee schedule as developed by the Township. 
 
Hourly Charge 
 
Occasionally tasks assigned fall outside of the above tasks.  In those cases, our current hourly rate 
schedule is as follows: 
 

Position    

 2025 2026 2027 

 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 

President $165/hr. $170/hr. $175/hr. 

Principal  $155/hr. $160/hr. $165/hr. 

Senior Associate $140/hr. $145/hr. $150/hr. 

Planner/Landscape 
Architect $120/hr. $125/hr. $130/hr. 

GIS Technician $105/hr. $110/hr. $115/hr. 

Support Staff $90/hr. $95/hr. $100/hr. 

Expenses  
(photocopies, prints, maps, 
etc.) 

(+ 20%) (+ 20%) 
 

(+ 20%) 

 
*As noted, each of the hourly rates will increase on January 1st of each year based on the 
above schedule. 
 
 

For the Township: 
 
By:_________________________________ 
 
Name: Brenda L. Stumbo 
 
Title: Supervisor 
 
Date:________________________________ 

 
 
By:_________________________________ 
 
Name: Debra A. Swanson 
 
Title: Clerk 
 
Date:________________________________ 

 





1 
59480020.8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

This Development Agreement (‘Agreement”) is entered into as of the ___ day of 
__________, 2025, by and between Sheetz, Inc., a Pennsylvania corporation, whose address is 
5700 6th Avenue, Altoona, Blair County, Pennsylvania 16602 (“Developer”) and the Charter 
Township of Ypsilanti, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, whose address is 7200 S. Huron River 
Drive, Ypsilanti, Michigan 48197-7099 (the “Township”) and CLS Ypsilanti, LLC, an Ohio 
limited liability company, whose address is 250 Civic Center Drive, Suite 500, Columbus, Ohio 
43215 (“Land Owner”) 

RECITALS 

A. WHEREAS, Land Owner is the holder of fee simple title to certain real property 
consisting of approximately 3.65 acres (Tax ID # K-11-39-350-029), and located on the southeast 
corner of S. Hewitt Road and Michigan Avenue, which real property is described on Exhibit A 
attached hereto and made a part hereof (hereafter referred to as the “Property” or as the 
“Commercial Site”); 

B. WHEREAS, Land Owner is creating the Property as a separate independent parcel 
pursuant to a land division, and following the land division, the Land Owner will continue to own 
and possess the property identified and described on Exhibit A (hereafter the “Retained Parcel”); 

C. WHEREAS, Skilken Gold Real Estate Development, LLC, an Ohio limited 
liability company, (“Skilken Gold”) provided certain land planning, land use, site identification 
and development services for the benefit of Developer, Land Owner and the Property and Skilken 
Gold has assigned and transferred all of its rights and interests with respect to the Property 
(including all land use applications related thereto) to Developer and/or Land Owner and;  

D. WHEREAS, Developer desires to develop the Commercial Site pursuant to Article 
V of the Township’s Zoning Ordinance as a Form Based District Site Plan and;  

E. WHEREAS, Developer desires to build all necessary infrastructure such as but not 
limited to water mains, sanitary sewers, storm sewers, drainage facilities, roads, sidewalks, curbs 
& gutters, without the necessity of special assessments by the Township, and; 

F. WHEREAS, Developer desires to install lot grading and soil erosion and 
sedimentation control improvements as set forth on the approved Engineering Plan and to provide 



2 
59480020.8 

drainage for storm water from the project site so that storm water complies with an approved 
Washtenaw County Water Resources Commission permit and; 

G. WHEREAS,  On September 18, 2024, the Township’s Zoning Board of Appeals 
reviewed the Preliminary Site Plan related to three variance requests to the building transparency 
requirements and voted to approve the requested variances; and  

H. WHEREAS, On October 08, 2024, the Township’s Planning Commission 
reviewed Developer’s application for a Special Use and Preliminary Site Plan for the Commercial 
Site, and voted yes, to approve the Special Use and Preliminary Site Plan Approval with conditions 
and;  

 
I. WHEREAS, As part of both the application and approval process, Developer has 

offered and agreed to make the on-site and off-site utility improvements depicted on the approved 
Sheetz Final Site Plan (defined below), which the Parties agree are necessary and roughly 
proportional to the burden imposed in order to (i) ensure that public services and facilities affected 
by the Development will be capable of accommodating increased service and facility loads caused 
by the Development, (ii) protect the natural environment and conserve natural resources, (iii) 
ensure compatibility with adjacent uses of land, (iv) promote use of the Property in a socially and 
economically desirable manner, and (v) achieve other legitimate objectives authorized under the 
Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, MCL 125.3301 et seq. 

J. WHEREAS, Developer has submitted to the Township and the Township has 
reviewed and approved the Final Site Plan prepared by Developer’s engineer, Stonefield 
Engineering & Design (the “Engineer”), last revised on February 21, 2025, and the engineering 
plans for the Project (collectively, the “Final Site Plan”).   

K. WHEREAS, In accordance with Section 305 of the Township’s Zoning Ordinance, 
the parties desire to enter into this Agreement for the purpose of confirming the rights and 
obligations in connection with the improvements, development, and other obligations to be 
undertaken on the Property, which Agreement shall be effective as of the date both parties execute 
this Agreement, and which shall be binding upon the Township, the Developer and the Owner/s 
of the Property, their successors, heirs and assigns. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants of the parties described 
in this Agreement, and with the express understanding that this Agreement contains important and 
essential terms which are incorporated by reference as part of the final approval of the Developer’s 
Commercial Site Plan, the parties agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I. 
GENERAL TERMS 

 
1.1 The parties acknowledge and represent that the foregoing recitals are true, accurate 

and binding on the respective parties, their successors, heirs and assigns. 

1.2 The Final Site Plan for the Commercial Site, which is attached hereto as Exhibit B, 
has been approved in accordance with the authority granted to and vested in the Township pursuant 



3 
59480020.8 

to Act. No. 110, Public Acts of 2006, and Act No. 33, Public Acts of 2008, as amended, relating 
to municipal planning and in accordance with the Zoning Ordinance of Ypsilanti Township, 
enacted 2022, as amended. 

1.3 The terms, provisions and conditions of this Agreement shall be deemed to be of 
benefit to the Property described on Exhibit A and shall be incorporated by the appropriate 
executed instruments into the title of said Property and shall be deemed a restrictive covenant 
which shall run with the land and shall not be modified unless otherwise agreed to in writing by 
the Township, the Developer and/or owner/s of the Property and/or their successors, heirs and 
assigns. 

ARTICLE II. 
PROVISIONS REGARDING DEVELOPMENT OF THE  

COMMERCIAL SITE 
 

As part of approval of the Final Site Plan, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt 
and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, IT IS AGREED as follows: 

1. Definitions. As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the 
meanings set forth below. 

(A) “Commencement Date” means the date that building permits are first issued 
for any phase of the Project.  

(B) “Developer” means Sheetz, Inc., a Pennsylvania corporation, its successors, 
and assigns. 

(C) “Development” means all components of the Sheetz project as shown on the 
Final Site Plan, including the infrastructure and all required construction on 
each phase.  

(D) “Final Site Plan” means the Final Site Plan defined in Recital I. above and all 
associated plans that have been reviewed and approved by the Township, 
including final engineering plans. 

2. Compliance with Applicable Laws. All development, use, and improvement of 
the Property shall be subject to and in accordance with all applicable Township 
ordinances and county, state, and federal laws, and shall also be subject to and in 
accordance with this Agreement, the Final Site Plan, and all other approvals and 
permits required under applicable Township ordinances and county, state, and 
federal laws. All references in this Agreement to Township zoning ordinances shall 
be deemed to refer to the zoning ordinances in effect as of the date of this 
Agreement. The Development shall not be subject to any additional zoning 
requirements contained in any amendment or additions to the zoning ordinances 
that conflict with the provisions of this Agreement and the Final Site Plan, provided 
that all construction and development is completed in compliance with this 
Agreement and the Final Site Plan. 



4 
59480020.8 

3. Compliance with Conditions of Approval.  All development, use and 
improvement of the Property shall be in conformance with any and all conditions 
of approval of the Planning Commission pertaining to the Development as reflected 
in the official resolutions and/or minutes of such approvals. It is specifically agreed 
that Final Site Plan approval is contingent upon the execution of and compliance 
with this Agreement. 

4. Permitted Development. The Property shall be used, developed, and improved 
only in accordance with the Final Site Plan and the construction plans for the 
Development as approved by the Township. 

 

5. Effect of Site Plan Development Approval.  Approval of the Final Site Plan 
constitutes the land use authorization for the Property, and all use and improvement 
of the Property shall be in conformity with the Final Site Plan, the Conditions of 
Approval, and this Agreement. 

 
6. Density, Land Use Area, Setbacks, Building Height, and other Regulations. 

Within the Property, all buildings and site amenities shall be laid out, situated, and 
designed in accordance with the Conditions of Approval and as shown on the 
approved Final Site Plan. 

7. Water and Sanitary Sewer Systems.  

(A) Development shall be developed with public sanitary sewers as approved 
by the Ypsilanti Community Utilities Authority and the Michigan 
Department of Environmental Quality, subject to all applicable laws and 
regulations. The Development shall also be developed with public water 
mains as approved by the Ypsilanti Community Utilities Authority and the 
Michigan Department of Public Health, subject to all applicable laws and 
regulations. All standard connections, inspections, costs and fees imposed 
by the Township, including, but not limited to, engineering inspections, 
shall be paid by the Developer and/or Owner of the Property. 

 
(B) Developer shall dedicate all necessary easements and conveyances for, and 

shall post financial security based on the Engineer’s costs estimates relating 
to the completion of construction and dedication of all such water and sewer 
system improvements in accordance with and as set forth in this Agreement.  
 

8. Storm Water Drainage.  

(A) Developer, at its sole expense, shall construct and maintain an on-site storm 
water drainage system, in accordance with the Final Site Plan, and all 
applicable ordinances, laws, codes, standards, and regulations, as well as 
the approved site plan for each phase and sub-phase.  



5 
59480020.8 

(B) No certificates of occupancy shall be issued for any phase in the 
Development prior to completion and approval of the primary on-site storm 
water drainage and detention system for the Development.   

(C) Developer shall acquire necessary easements, if any, over adjoining 
properties to accommodate storm water management prior to construction 
of any components of the storm water system.  

(D) A so-called 433 Agreement is not planned or needed with respect to the 
Development.   

(E) All storm water catch basins are to be labeled as storm drains. All storm 
water catch basins shall have a message that reads “Dump No Waste – 
Drains to River.”  

(F) The parties acknowledge and agree that an approximately fifteen foot wide 
storm water drainage and storage easement will be established for the 
benefit of the Property in the northerly portion of the Retained Parcel.   

(G) The parties acknowledge and agree that the Developer shall have an 
easement to install and maintain grading in the northwesterly portion of the 
Retained Parcel for purposes of storm water drainage and establishment of 
elevations of the Property.     

9. Landscaping and Tree Preservation, Protection and Mitigation  

(A) All tree preservation, protection, and mitigation on the Property shall be 
completed and maintained as shown and described in the tree preservation 
plan, details, and information that are part of the approved Final Site Plan.  

(B) Internal landscaping and landscaping amenities, including all internal 
pedestrian trials, on the Property shall be completed and maintained as 
shown and described in the landscape plans, details, and information that 
are part of the approved Final Site Plan, which landscaping may be installed 
on a phased basis, consistent with the development of phases of the project.  

(C) Internal landscaping and landscaping amenities shall be fitted with an 
irrigation system to allow plant materials to be watered on a regular basis.  

(D) To protect the storm sewer system and reduce the risk of water pollution, 
the use of phosphorus-based fertilizers on the Property is prohibited. This 
restriction applies to all landscaping, lawns, and plantings maintained on 
the Property. 

10. Lighting and Signs: 

(A) Lighting on the Property shall be completed and maintained as shown and 
described in the lighting and photometrics plans that are part of the 



6 
59480020.8 

approved Final Site Plan, or as amended by Developer and approved by 
Township Staff. 

(B) Any future lighting not shown in the Final Site Plan shall comply with all 
applicable Township ordinances. All lighting components, including Kelvin 
ratings, require Township approval prior to installation.  This provision may 
be enforced by the Township at any time. 

(C) Any future signage not shown in the Final Site Plan shall comply with all 
applicable Township ordinances and shall require Township approval prior 
to installation. 

11. Security System and Cameras:  

(A) Developer shall install interior and exterior security camera systems and 
recordings, as described below, shall be held for 30 days and be made 
available to law enforcement upon request. 

(B) Per Section 812 – Security Cameras, of the Zoning Ordinance, the exterior 
camera system must be high definition with a minimum resolution of 1080p 
and night vision capabilities, with 120 concurrent hours of digitally 
recorded documentation of continuous operation. The security cameras 
shall be in operation twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week. 
Security cameras shall be placed to cover the entire site. 

(C) Developer shall submit a security camera plan to the Planning Department, 
specifying the locations, angles, and technical specifications of all cameras. 
The Planning Department will forward the security camera plan to the 
Washtenaw County Sheriff’s Office for review and approval. This approval 
shall be required prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy.  The 
Sherrif’s Office comments will be shared with the developer. 

(D) An alarm system is also installed that is operated and monitored by the 
Developer’s security operations center on a 24 hour a day/365 day a year, 
basis. 

12. Traffic and Pedestrian Circulation.  

(A) Approval of the Final Site Plan requires Developer to install an eight-foot-
wide sidewalk along the south side of Michigan Avenue, and a five-foot 
sidewalk on S. Hewitt Road, and any other improvements shown in 
conformity with the Final Site Plan.  

(B) Developer shall design, situate, construct, maintain, and repair all roads, 
entranceways, drives, safety paths, walkways, and traffic circulation 
signage within and for the Development, at its sole expense, in accordance 
with as set forth in detail in the Permit Conditions and Final Site Plan and 



7 
59480020.8 

otherwise in accordance with all applicable statutes, ordinances, 
regulations, and approvals. 

(C) Developer shall post financial security based on the Engineer’s estimates, 
which shall be reviewed and approved by the Township Engineer, relating 
to the phased construction of drives, and parking lots within and for the 
Development, in accordance with and as set forth in detail in the Permit 
Conditions and this Agreement.  

(D) The developer shall set aside twelve (12) parking spaces to be used as 
Electric Vehicle (EV) charging stations at a future date.  The Developer will 
actively solicit EV charging station suppliers annually in an effort to 
establish at least two (2) EV charging stations at this site within five (5) 
years from the approval date of this Agreement.  Nothing in this Agreement 
will prohibit the Developer from establishing more than two (2) EV 
charging stations within this timeframe, up to the twelve (12) EV charging 
stations shown on the approved Final Site Plan. 

13. Construction Debris.   
 
Developer shall regularly remove all discarded building-materials and rubbish as 
necessary during installation and construction of site improvements on said site.  
 

14. Completion of Improvements; Financial Assurances.  

(A) All on-site and off-site improvements of the Development required in the 
Final Site Plan, including without limitation, all roads, drives, 
entranceways, parking lots, sanitary sewer service system, water service 
system, storm water drainage system, detention and retention facilities, gas 
and electric utilities, lighting, signage, landscaping, landscaping amenities, 
public safety path, internal private pedestrian walkways with related 
amenities and improvements, barrier or screening walls, sidewalks, 
retaining walls, soil erosion and sedimentation controls, and any other 
improvements within or for the Development shall be completely 
constructed and provided to all buildings and facilities within the 
Development as required and as set forth in the approved Final Site Plan, 
any other approvals or permits granted by the Township, and all applicable 
ordinances, laws, standards, and regulations.  

(B) During the construction of the Development, Developer shall be obligated 
to maintain the above improvements and amenities, and as required by the 
Township’s Performance Guarantees ordinance, Developer shall provide 
financial assurances based on the Engineer’s cost estimates that are 
satisfactory to the Township (in its reasonable judgment) for completion, 
preservation, and maintenance of such improvements on a phase-by-phase 
basis such that, upon completion, each sub-phase will be capable of standing 
on its own in terms of the presence of services, facilities, and open space, 



8 
59480020.8 

and shall contain the necessary components to ensure the protection of 
natural resources and the health, safety, and welfare of the users of the 
Development.  

(C) Such financial assurances shall be subject to the Engineer’s cost estimates 
and in the form as set forth in Section 3.06, Performance Guarantees, of the 
Zoning Ordinance, which financial assurances may be utilized by the 
Township, at its option, to complete and maintain such improvements using 
the funds from the security posted by the Developer, in accordance with 
Section 15 of this Agreement if Developer has failed to complete and/or 
maintain the improvements within the time specified therein. If Developer 
proceeds with any sub-phase within the development of the Property, 
Developer shall be obligated to design and completely construct all of the 
improvements and amenities required for said sub-phase. 

(D) Upon completion of each building within the Development and the 
corresponding successful inspections, the Township shall issue a Certificate 
of Occupancy for such building(s).  The Developer may request and receive 
a Certificate of Occupancy for a building or buildings within a sub-phase 
prior to completion of that sub-phase if 1) a majority of the work, especially 
that work essential for ensuring the health, safety and welfare of the 
occupants within that sub-phase is completed, and the remaining sub-phase 
work is minor and incidental to the occupancy of that sub-phase, and 2) site 
conditions at that time preclude completion of the work in a timely manner 
(e.g. installing landscaping in the winter) and 3) if financial sureties based 
on the Engineer’s cost estimates to complete the uncompleted work are 
provided or remain in place with the Township.      

(E) Upon issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for a building, and also upon 
completion and dedication of primary utility lines (storm, water, sanitary), 
the appropriate bond(s) or monies held in escrow by the Township shall be 
released to the Developer or issuing entity.  

(F) It is anticipated that construction will begin with the mass grading, storm 
sewer and detention system, water main and sanitary sewer, and wetland 
mitigation areas.   

15. Township Enforcement. In the event there is a failure to timely perform any 
obligation or undertaking required under or in accordance with the Final Site Plan 
or this Agreement, the Township may serve written notice upon Developer and/or 
the owner of the portion of the Property with respect to which the obligation or 
undertaking is required (the “violating party”) setting forth such deficiencies and 
a demand that the deficiencies be cured within a stated reasonable time period, and 
if not cured, the date, time, and place for a hearing before the Township Board, or 
such other board, body, or official delegated by the Township Board, for the 
purpose of allowing the violating party an opportunity to be heard as to why the 
Township should not proceed with the correction of the deficiency or obligation 



9 
59480020.8 

which has not been undertaken or properly fulfilled. At any such hearing, the time 
for curing and the hearing itself may be extended and/or continued to a date certain 
at the discretion of the Township Board. The foregoing notice and hearing 
requirements shall not be necessary in the event the Township determines in its 
discretion that an emergency exists requiring immediate action. If, following the 
hearing described above, the Township Board, or such other board, body, or official 
designated to conduct the hearing, shall determine that the obligation has not been 
fulfilled or failure corrected within the time specified in the notice, or if an 
emergency circumstance exists as determined by the Township in its discretion, the 
Township shall thereupon have the power and authority, but not the obligation, to 
take any or all of the following actions, in addition to any actions authorized under 
Township ordinances and/or State laws: 

(A) Enter upon the Property or cause its agents or contractors to enter the 
Property and perform such obligation or take such corrective measures as 
reasonably found by the Township to be appropriate. The cost and expense 
of making and financing such actions by the Township, including notices 
by the Township and legal fees incurred by the Township, plus an 
administrative fee in an amount equivalent to twenty-five percent (25%) of 
the total of all such costs and expenses incurred, shall be paid by the 
violating party within thirty (30) days of a billing to the violating party. The 
payment obligation under this paragraph shall be secured by a lien against 
the phase or phases of the Property within which the deficiency exists, 
which lien shall be deemed effective as of the date of the initial written 
notice of deficiency provided to the violating party pursuant to this 
paragraph, or in emergency circumstances, the date at which the Township 
incurred its first cost or expense in taking corrective action. Such security 
shall be realized by placing a billing which has been unpaid by the violating 
party for more than thirty (30) days on the delinquent tax rolls of the 
Township relative to such portion of the Property, to accumulate interest 
and penalties, and to be deemed and collected, as and in the same manner 
as made and provided for collection of delinquent real property taxes. In the 
discretion of the Township, such costs and expenses may be collected by 
suit initiated against the violating party, and, in such event, the violating 
party shall pay all court costs and attorney fees incurred by the Township in 
connection with such suit if the Township prevails in collecting funds 
thereby.  This provision does not preclude the Township from exercising its 
rights under other sections of this Agreement. 

(B) Initiate legal action for the enforcement of any of the provisions, 
requirements, or obligations set forth in the Final Site Plan. Except in 
emergency circumstances, the violating party shall be provided notice of the 
deficiencies from the Township and shall be afforded an opportunity to 
timely correct. In the event the Township obtains any relief as a result of 
such litigation, the violating party shall pay all court costs and attorney fees 
incurred by the Township in connection with such suit. 



10 
59480020.8 

(C) The Township may issue a stop work order as to any or all aspects of the 
Development, may deny the issuance of any requested building permit or 
certificate of occupancy within any part or all of the Development 
regardless of whether the violating party is the named applicant for such 
permit or certificate of occupancy, and may suspend further inspections of 
any or all aspects of the Development. 

16. Delay in Enforcement; Severability. Any failure or delay by the Township to 
enforce any provision herein contained shall in no event be deemed, construed, or 
relied upon as a waiver or estoppel of the right to eventually do so thereafter. Each 
provision and obligation contained herein shall be considered to be an independent 
and separate covenant and agreement, and in the event one or more of the provisions 
and/or obligations shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable by a 
court of competent jurisdiction, all remaining provisions and/or obligations shall 
nevertheless remain in full force and effect. 

17. Access to Property. In all instances in which the Township utilizes the proceeds 
of a financial assurance given to ensure completion or maintenance of 
improvements, and at any time throughout the period of development and 
construction of any part of the Development, the Township and its contractors, 
representatives, consultants, and agents shall be permitted and are hereby granted 
authority to enter upon all or any portion of the Property for the purpose of 
inspecting and/or completing the respective improvements and for the purposes of 
inspecting for compliance with and enforcing the Site Plan Documents. 

18. Agreement Jointly Drafted.  

(A) The Parties have negotiated the terms of the Final Site Plan, and such 
documentation represents the product of the joint efforts and mutual 
agreements of the Parties. Developer fully accepts and agrees to the final 
terms, conditions, requirements, and obligations of the Final Site Plan and 
Conditions of Approval, and they shall not be permitted in the future to 
claim that the effect of the Final Site Plan or Conditions of Approval results 
in an unreasonable limitation upon uses of all or a portion of the Property, 
or claim that enforcement of the Final Site Plan or Conditions of Approval 
causes an inverse condemnation, other condemnation or taking of all or any 
portion of the Property.  

(B) Furthermore, it is agreed that the improvements and undertakings described 
in the Final Site Plan and Conditions of Approval are necessary and roughly 
proportional to the burden imposed and are necessary in order to: (i) ensure 
that public services and facilities necessary for and affected by the 
Development will be capable of accommodating the development on the 
Property and the increased service and facility loads caused by the 
Development; (ii) protect the natural environment and conserve natural 
resources; (iii) ensure compatibility with adjacent uses of land; (iv) promote 
use of the Property in a socially, environmentally, and economically 



11 
59480020.8 

desirable manner; and (v) achieve other legitimate objectives authorized 
under the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, MCL 125.3301 et seq.  

(C) It is further agreed and acknowledged hereby that all such improvements, 
both on-site and off-site, are clearly and substantially related to the burdens 
to be created by the development of the Property, and all such improvements 
without exception are clearly and substantially related to the Township’s 
legitimate interests in protecting the public health, safety, and general 
welfare.  

(D) The Parties acknowledge and agree that such improvements, both on-site 
and off-site, have been found to be necessary and constitute a recognizable 
and material benefit to the ultimate users of the Development and to the 
community, which benefit would otherwise be unlikely to be achieved 
without the Development and is an important component of the 
Development upon which the Township relied in its consideration and 
approval of the Sutherland Farms Development. 

19. Ambiguities and Inconsistencies. Where there is a question with regard to 
applicable regulations for a particular aspect of the Development, or with regard to 
clarification, interpretation, or definition of terms or regulations, and there are no 
apparent express provisions of the Final Site Plan and Conditions of Approval 
which apply, the Township, in the reasonable exercise of its discretion, shall 
determine whether the regulations of the Township’s Zoning Ordinance, as that 
Ordinance may have been amended, or other Township Ordinances shall be 
applicable provided such determination is not inconsistent with the nature and  
intent of the Final Site Plan and Conditions of Approval.  Whenever possible under 
the laws of the State and ordinances of the Township, the approval of the Final Site 
Plan shall be determined to be a reasonable and minor waiver or modification to 
the applicable Township regulation or Ordinance, so that the particular aspect of 
the Development that is in question shall be deemed acceptable. In the event of a 
conflict or inconsistency between two or more provisions of this the Final Site Plan 
and Conditions of Approval, the more restrictive provision, as determined in the 
reasonable discretion of the Township, shall apply. In addition, if there is a conflict 
or inconsistency between this Agreement, the Final Site Plan and Conditions of 
Approval and applicable Township ordinances, this Agreement, the Final Site Plan 
and Conditions of Approval shall apply. In no event shall the Township applying 
the more restrictive provision result in loss of Development density, impair the 
operations of the Development, or otherwise negate the general intent of the 
Developer and the acceptance of the Planning Commission demonstrated by their 
approval of the Final Site Plan. 

20. Warranty of Ownership. Land Owner hereby warrants that it is the owner of the 
Property and that Developer has a ground lease and all requisite authority to 
develop the Property and to enter into and perform its obligations under this 
Agreement.  



12 
59480020.8 

21. Running with the Land; Governing Law. This Development Agreement shall 
run with the land constituting the Property and shall be binding upon and inure to 
the benefit of the Parties and all of their respective heirs, successors, assigns, and 
transferees. This Agreement shall be recorded by any of the Parties following the 
execution of this Agreement. This Development Agreement shall be interpreted and 
construed in accordance with Michigan law and shall be subject to enforcement 
only in Michigan courts. The parties understand and agree that this Development 
Agreement is consistent with the intent and provisions of the Michigan and U.S. 
Constitutions and all applicable law.  

22. Assignment.  Developer may not assign its rights under this Agreement without 
the prior written agreement of the Township, which shall not be unreasonably 
withheld.  No assignment shall be effective unless all financial assurances for the 
Development or applicable sub-phase have been posted with the Township and the 
assignee has agreed to be fully bound to each and every term hereof including but 
not limited to, the financial assurances required by Paragraph 15 of this Agreement 
and Section 3.06 of the Ypsilanti Charter Township Zoning Ordinance. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Developer may collaterally assign its rights under 
this Agreement to a mortgagee that provides construction financing for the Project, 
without requiring the consent of the Township. 

23. Recording. This Agreement may be recorded with the Washtenaw County Register 
of Deeds. If this Agreement is not recorded in its entirety, an Affidavit may be 
recorded, upon approval by the Township Attorney, containing the legal description 
of the entire project, specifying the dates of approval and all amendments of the 
Final Site Plan, and declaring that all future development of the Property has been 
authorized, restricted, and required to be carried out only in accordance with the 
Final Site Plan and this Agreement.   

24. Amendments and Modifications.  The provisions of this Agreement may be 
amended or modified, but only with the prior written consent of the Township and 
the Development’s Owner(s).  Any amendment or modification to this agreement 
shall be recorded in the Washtenaw County Records.  Any portion of this 
instrument not otherwise amended or modified, shall remain in full effect. 

25. Estoppels.   Upon request by Developer, its mortgagee or any successor it title, the 
Township shall confirm in writing that, to the knowledge of the Township, 
Developer is not in breach of its obligations under this Agreement (or if there is a 
known breach, specifying the nature of such breach) and this Agreement remains 
in full force and effect.  

  



13 
59480020.8 

THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT was executed by the respective Parties on the date 
specified with the notarization of their signatures and shall be considered to be dated on 
_______________, 2025, and shall take effect immediately. 

 

Remainder of Page Intentionally Blank. Signatures to Follow 



14 
59480020.8 

IN WHITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as the year and date 
set forth above. This Agreement is not intended to create any contractual rights for third parties. It 
may be enforced, amended or rescinded only by the parties or their successors in interest. The 
obligations of the Developer contained herein shall be binding on successors and assigns in 
ownership of the Commercial Site known as Sheetz, described in Exhibit A.  
 
DEVELOPER: 
 
SHEETZ, INC.,  
a Pennsylvania corporation 
 
By:      
Name:       
Title:      
     
STATE/COMMONWEALTH OF    ) 

) ss 
COUNTY OF       ) 
 
The foregoing Development Agreement was acknowledged this ___ day of ___________, 2025, 
by       , as       of SHEETZ, 
INC., a Pennsylvania corporation, on behalf of said corporation. 
 
                             
    Notary Signature:        

Notary Public 
           County,    
       Acting in     County 
                                  My Commission Expires:    
 

[Signatures Continue on the Following Pages]  



15 
59480020.8 

LAND OWNER: 
 
CLS YPSILANTI, LLC 
An Ohio limited liability company 
 
By:       
Name:        
Title:       
     
 
STATE OF    ) 

) ss 
COUNTY OF    ) 
 
The foregoing Development Agreement was acknowledged this ___ day of ___________, 2025, 
by      , as        of CLS 
YPSILANTI, LLC, an Ohio limited liability company, on behalf of said limited liability company 
                             
    Notary Signature:        

Notary Public 
           County,    
       Acting in     County 
                                  My Commission Expires:    
 

[Signature Pages Continue] 
  



16 
59480020.8 

 
 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI, 
a Michigan Municipal Corporation 
 
 
By:      By:       
Name: BRENDA STUMBO                 Name: DEBRA A. SWANSON 
Title: Supervisor     Title: Clerk 
        
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

) ss 
COUNTY OF   ) 
 
The foregoing Development Agreement was acknowledged this ___ day of ___________, 2025, 
by Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor, and Debra A. Swanson, Clerk, of the Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti, a Michigan municipal corporation, on behalf of said entity.  

 ______________________ , Notary Public 
    Notary Signature:        

Notary Public 
           County,    
       Acting in     County 
                    
Drafted by and upon recording, return to: 
Douglas Winters and Dennis McLain 
McLain & Winters 
61 North Huron Street 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197  
  



17 
59480020.8 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

 LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

THE PROPERTY 
 

LAND LOCATED IN THE TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI, COUNTY OF WASHTENAW AND 
STATE OF MICHIGAN MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

 
 

RETAINED PARCEL 
 
LAND LOCATED IN THE TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI, COUNTY OF WASHTENAW AND 
STATE OF MICHIGAN MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

 
 
THE RETAINED PARCEL IS OWNED BY THE LAND OWNER AND IS ONLY SUBJECT 
TO THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT THAT EXPRESSLY IDENTIFY THE RETAINED 
PARCEL AND ANY EASEMENTS RELATED THERETO.   
 
 
 
 
  



18 
59480020.8 

 
EXHIBIT “B” 

  
FINAL SITE PLAN 

 
Final Site Plan prepared by Stonefield Engineering & Design entitled Site Development Plans for 
Sheetz Proposed Convenience Store and Fuel Sales 2103 West Michigan Avenue, Charter 
Township of Ypsilanti, Washtenaw County, Michigan last dated February 21, 2025 is hereby 
incorporated by reference.   
 
Due to size of Final Site Plan it is has been provided to the Township separate from this 
Development Agreement and is incorporated by reference.   
 



OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X

X

X
X

X
X

X

O
H

O
H

O
H

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

1
0
 FT

 SID
E
 Y

A
R

D
 C

A
N

O
P
Y

 A
N

D
 P

E
R

IM
E
T

E
R

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 SE
T

B
A

C
K

5
 FT

 SID
E
 Y

A
R

D
 SE

T
B
A

C
K

25
 FT

 FR
O

NT Y
ARD C

ANO
PY

 SE
TBACK

30
 FT

 FR
O

NT Y
ARD PU

MP I
SL

AND SE
TBACK

1
0
 FT

 B
U

IL
D

-T
O

-L
IN

E
 A

N
D

 P
E
R

IM
E
T

E
R

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 SE
T

B
A

C
K

2
0
 FT

 SID
E
 Y

A
R

D
 P

U
M

P
 ISL

A
N

D
 SE

T
B
A

C
K

 A
N

D
 R

E
SID

E
N

T
IA

L
 L

A
N

D
SC

A
P
E
 B

U
FFE

R

3
0
 FT

 FR
O

N
T

 Y
A

R
D

 P
U

M
P
 ISL

A
N

D
 SE

T
B
A

C
K

20
 FT

 M
IN

IM
UM R

EA
R Y

ARD C
ANO

PY
 A

ND PU
MP I

SL
AND SE

TBACK

10
 FT

 B
UILD

-T
O

-L
IN

E A
ND PE

RIM
ET

ER
 PA

RKIN
G SE

TBACK

10
 FT

 R
EA

R Y
ARD A

ND PE
RIM

ET
ER

 PA
RKIN

G SE
TBACK

2
5
 FT

 FR
O

N
T

 Y
A

R
D

 C
A

N
O

P
Y

 SE
T

B
A

C
K

R
'

1
2
0

R
'

8
0

R
'

3
0

R '30

R
'

15

R '15

R
'

3

R
'

3

R '3

R '3

R '3

R '3

R
'3

R
'

15

R
'

40

R
'

20

R
'

20

BACK EL
EV

ATIO
N

FR
O

NT EL
EV

ATIO
NLEFT

 ELEV
A
T
IO

N

R
IG

H
T
 ELEV

A
T
IO

N

R
'

3

R '3

R
'

2
0

R '3

62.4'

3
6
'

50
0.0

'

5'

5'

60.0' 50.1'

10'

65'

35
'

22'

70'

143.6'

82
'

33'

112.7'

20'

45'

9'

175.1'

278.6'

99.5'

108.7'

20'

10
'

67'

8'

12.6'

11
'

36'

10.4'

249.9'

192.8'
202.6'

179.6'

10'

10'

40
'

8'

33.0'

5'

10'

20
'

30.0'
58'

20'

1
0
'

10.0'

61.5'

87.0'

7'

4'

10
4'

8'

16
'

PRO
PO

SED S
H

EETZ S
TO

RE

6,1
32 S

F

6'

8'

6
'

54
' 15

'

ES

82
'

15'

16

6

5

14

3

9

7

15
.0'

10
'

20
'

20
'

40
'

10
'

8'

8'

10'

10'

10'

PROPOSED FULL MOVEMENT
6" REINFORCED CONCRETE

DRIVEWAY

PROPOSED 4" CONCRETE

SIDEWALK IN RIGHT-OF-WAY
(TYP.)

PROPOSED 120 FT

RIGHT OF WAY LINE

MICHIGAN AVENUE CENTERLINE

PROPOSED FULL MOVEMENT 6"

REINFORCED CONCRETE DRIVEWAY

EXISTING ROAD
EASEMENT

PROPOSED BIKE RACKS

PROPOSED VENT STACK

PROPOSED CANOPY AND

PUMP ISLANDS

PROPOSED
EXCAVATION AREA

PROPOSED FLAG POLE
& GROUND LIGHT

PROPOSED OUTDOOR
PATIO AREA

PROPOSED

MONUMENT SIGN

PROPOSED CONCRETE

CURB & GUTTER (TYP.)

PROPOSED ASPHALT
PAVEMENT

PROPOSED 81 LF 30"
TALL MASONRY

SCREENING WALL

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND
STORAGE TANKS AREA

PROPOSED AIR MACHINE ON

CONCRETE PAD

PROPOSED CONCRETE

TRANSFORMER PAD

PROPOSED ADA PARKING

SPACE & SIGN (TYP.)

PROPOSED LOT SPLIT

PROPOSED AIR MACHINE ON
CONCRETE PAD

PROPOSED LIGHT POLE
(TYP.)

PROPOSED TRASH
ENCLOSURE

PROPOSED CONCRETE
CURB AND GUTTER

PROPOSED DRILLING PIT,
PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT PER

EXISTING CROSS SECTION

PROPOSED ICE SALES

PROPOSED STOP
SIGN & BAR (TYP.)

PROPOSED STOP
SIGN & BAR (TYP.)

PROPOSED BUMPER

POST (TYP.)

FUTURE EV CHARGING SPACES
(12 TYP.)

PROPOSED 60 LF 30" TALL

MASONRY SCREENING WALL

PROPOSED ABOVE
GROUND DETENTION

PROPOSED

DECORATIVE FENCE

PROPOSED BENCH
(TYP.)

PROPOSED

PROPANE SALES
ON CONCRETE

PAD W/
BOLLARDS

PROPOSED

AUTO SALES

LIMIT OF PROPOSED MDOT

CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER

LIMIT OF PROPOSED MDOT
CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER

LIMIT OF PROPOSED

MDOT CONCRETE
CURB & GUTTER

LIMIT OF PROPOSED

MDOT CONCRETE
CURB & GUTTER

FUTURE ADA ACCESSIBLE EV
CHARGING SPACE

PROPOSED CHAMFERED
CORNER (TYP.)

PROPOSED 4" WIDE, YELLOW
PAVEMENT STRIPING (TYP.)

LIMIT OF PROPOSED

CONCRETE SIDEWALK

LIMIT OF PROPOSED
CONCRETE SIDEWALK

PROPOSED BRICK
PAVERS (TYP.)

PROPOSED TAPERED
CURB (TYP.)

LIMIT OF PROPOSED
CONCRETE SIDEWALK

LIMIT OF PROPOSED

CONCRETE SIDEWALK

PROPOSED 6" FIBER
REINFORCED CONCRETE
PAVEMENT (TYP.)

PROPOSED 4" CONCRETE

SIDEWALK IN RIGHT-OF-WAY
(TYP.)

PROPOSED 4" FIBER REINFORCED

CONCRETE SIDEWALK ON SITE
(TYP.)

PROPOSED FLUSH
CURB & DETECTABLE
WARNING STRIP (TYP.)

PROPOSED EMERGENCY FUEL

SYSTEM SHUT OFF SWITCH ('ESTOP')
HOUSED WITHIN CLEAR, HINGED,
SPRING-LOADED COVER, AND SIGN

PROPOSED

LOADING ZONE

EXISTING CONCRETE SIDEWALK,
CURB, & DETECTABLE WARNING

STRIP TO BE REPLACED IN KIND

EXISTING CONCRETE SIDEWALK &
DETECTABLE WARNING STRIP TO

BE REPLACED IN KIND

74'

239'

GENERAL NOTES

1. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY AND FAMILIARIZE THEMSELVES
WITH THE EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS AND THE PROPOSED SCOPE

OF WORK (INCLUDING DIMENSIONS, LAYOUT, ETC.) PRIOR TO
INITIATING THE IMPROVEMENTS IDENTIFIED WITHIN THESE

DOCUMENTS. SHOULD ANY DISCREPANCY BE FOUND BETWEEN THE
EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS AND THE PROPOSED WORK THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY STONEFIELD ENGINEERING & DESIGN,

LLC. PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.
2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN ALL NECESSARY PERMITS AND

ENSURE THAT ALL REQUIRED APPROVALS HAVE BEEN OBTAINED
PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION. COPIES OF ALL REQUIRED
PERMITS AND APPROVALS SHALL BE KEPT ON SITE AT ALL TIMES

DURING CONSTRUCTION.
3. ALL CONTRACTORS WILL, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY

LAW, INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS STONEFIELD ENGINEERING &
DESIGN, LLC. AND IT'S SUB-CONSULTANTS FROM AND AGAINST ANY
DAMAGES AND LIABILITIES INCLUDING ATTORNEY'S FEES ARISING

OUT OF CLAIMS BY EMPLOYEES OF THE CONTRACTOR IN ADDITION
TO CLAIMS CONNECTED TO THE PROJECT AS A RESULT OF NOT

CARRYING THE PROPER INSURANCE FOR WORKERS COMPENSATION,
LIABILITY INSURANCE, AND LIMITS OF COMMERCIAL GENERAL
LIABILITY INSURANCE.

4. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT DEVIATE FROM THE PROPOSED
IMPROVEMENTS IDENTIFIED WITHIN THIS PLAN SET UNLESS APPROVAL

IS PROVIDED IN WRITING BY STONEFIELD ENGINEERING & DESIGN,
LLC.

5. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO DETERMINE THE MEANS AND

METHODS OF CONSTRUCTION.
6. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT PERFORM ANY WORK OR CAUSE

DISTURBANCE ON A PRIVATE PROPERTY NOT CONTROLLED BY THE
PERSON OR ENTITY WHO HAS AUTHORIZED THE WORK WITHOUT
PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT FROM THE OWNER OF THE PRIVATE

PROPERTY.
7. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO RESTORE ANY DAMAGED OR

UNDERMINED STRUCTURE OR SITE FEATURE THAT IS IDENTIFIED TO
REMAIN ON THE PLAN SET. ALL REPAIRS SHALL USE NEW MATERIALS
TO RESTORE THE FEATURE TO ITS EXISTING CONDITION AT THE

CONTRACTORS EXPENSE.
8. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO PROVIDE THE APPROPRIATE SHOP

DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA, AND OTHER REQUIRED SUBMITTALS
FOR REVIEW. STONEFIELD ENGINEERING & DESIGN, LLC. WILL REVIEW
THE SUBMITTALS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE DESIGN INTENT AS

REFLECTED WITHIN THE PLAN SET.
9. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR TRAFFIC CONTROL IN

ACCORDANCE WITH MANUAL ON UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL
DEVICES, LATEST EDITION.

10. THE CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO PERFORM ALL WORK IN THE

PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE APPROPRIATE
GOVERNING AUTHORITY AND SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE

PROCUREMENT OF STREET OPENING PERMITS.
11. THE CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO RETAIN AN OSHA CERTIFIED

SAFETY INSPECTOR TO BE PRESENT ON SITE AT ALL TIMES DURING

CONSTRUCTION & DEMOLITION ACTIVITIES.
12. SHOULD AN EMPLOYEE OF STONEFIELD ENGINEERING & DESIGN, LLC.

BE PRESENT ON SITE AT ANY TIME DURING CONSTRUCTION, IT DOES
NOT RELIEVE THE CONTRACTOR OF ANY OF THE RESPONSIBILITIES
AND REQUIREMENTS LISTED IN THE NOTES WITHIN THIS PLAN SET.

V
:\
D

E
T

\2
0
2
3
\D

E
T

-2
3
0
0
9
1
.0

1
-S

K
IL

K
E
N

 G
O

L
D

-2
1
0
3
 W

E
ST

 M
IC

H
IG

A
N

 A
V

E
N

U
E
, 
Y

P
SI

L
A

N
T

I 
C

H
A

R
T

E
R

 T
O

W
N

SH
IP

, 
M

I\
C

A
D

D
\P

L
O

T
\S

D
P
-0

5
-3

5
-3

6
-S

IT
E
.D

W
G

IS
S

U
E

D
A

T
E

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

NOT APPROVED FOR CONSTRUCTION

S
IT

E
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

B
Y

TITLE:

SCALE: PROJECT ID:

DRAWING:

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 C
O

N
V

E
N

IE
N

C
E

S
T

O
R

E
 A

N
D

 F
U

E
L

 S
T

A
T

IO
N

W
A

S
H

T
E

N
A

W
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
, 
M

IC
H

IG
A

N

DET-230091.01

C
H

A
R

T
E

R
 T

O
W

N
S

H
IP

 O
F

 Y
P

S
IL

A
N

T
I

2
1
0
3
 W

E
S

T
 M

IC
H

IG
A

N
 A

V
E

N
U

E
P

ID
: 
K

1
1
-3

9
-3

5
0
-0

2
2
, 
K

-1
1
-3

9
-3

5
0
-0

2
3
, 
K

-1
1
-1

8
-1

0
0
-0

1
9

B
ir

m
in

gh
am

, 
M

I 
·

N
e
w

 Y
o
rk

, 
N

Y
 ·

B
o
st

o
n
, 
M

A

P
ri

n
ce

to
n
, 
N

J 
·

T
am

p
a,

 F
L
 ·

R
u
th

e
rf

o
rd

, 
N

J

w
w

w
.s

to
n
e
fi
e
ld

e
n
g.

co
m

5
5
5
 S

. 
O

ld
 W

o
o
d
w

ar
d
, 
Su

it
e
 1

2
L
, 
B

ir
m

in
gh

am
, 
M

I 
4
8
0
0
9

P
h
o
n
e
 2

4
8
.2

4
7
.1

1
1
5

1
0
4
/0

9
/2

0
2
4

F
O

R
 S

IT
E

 P
L

A
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
N

B
/J

D

2
0
5
/0

9
/2

0
2
4

F
O

R
 S

IT
E

 P
L

A
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
N

B
/J

D

3
0
6
/1

2
/2

0
2
4

R
E

V
IS

E
D

 F
O

R
 S

IT
E

 P
L

A
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
K

H

4
1
1
/1

4
/2

0
2
4

F
O

R
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

 R
E

V
IE

W
K

H
/J

D

5
1
2
/1

0
/2

0
2
4

Y
C

U
A

 R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
K

H
/J

D

6
0
1
/0

7
/2

0
2
5

R
E

V
IS

E
D

 F
O

R
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

 R
E

V
IE

W
K

H
/J

D

7
0
2
/2

1
/2

0
2
5

R
E

V
IS

E
D

 F
O

R
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

 R
E

V
IE

W
N

B

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

0' 60'30'30'

1" = 30'

SITE PLAN

C-5

1" = 30'

SYMBOL DESCRIPTION

PROPOSED CURB

PROPOSED BUILDING

PROPOSED CONCRETE

SETBACK LINE

PROPOSED BUILDING DOORS

PROPERTY LINE

LAND USE AND ZONING

PID: K-11-39-350-022, K-11-39-350-023, & K-11-18-100-019

REGIONAL CORRIDOR (RC)

PROPOSED USE

CONVENIENCE STORE PERMITTED USE

VEHICLE FUELING STATION SPECIAL LAND USE

ZONING REQUIREMENT REQUIRED PROPOSED

MINIMUM LOT AREA 24,000 SF 159,017 SF (3.65 AC)

MINIMUM LOT WIDTH 150 FT 500.0 FT

MAXIMUM IMPERVIOUS COVERAGE 80% < 80% PROVIDED

MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT 30 FT < 30 FT

REQUIRED FRONT YARD BUILD-TO-LINE (MICHIGAN AVENUE) 10 FT 10.0 FT

REQUIRED FRONT YARD BUILD-TO-LINE (HEWITT ROAD) 10 FT 62.5 FT (AV)

MINIMUM SIDE YARD SETBACK 5 FT 249.9 FT

MINIMUM REAR YARD SETBACK 10 FT 278.4 FT

MINIMUM FRONT YARD CANOPY SETBACK 25 FT 99.5 FT

MINIMUM SIDE YARD CANOPY SETBACK 10 FT 192.8 FT

MINIMUM REAR YARD CANOPY SETBACK 20 FT 175.1 FT

MINIMUM FRONT YARD PUMP ISLAND SETBACK 30 FT 108.7 FT

MINIMUM SIDE & REAR YARD PUMP ISLAND SETBACK 20 FT 179.6 FT

MINIMUM PERIMETER PARKING SETBACK 10 FT 12.6 FT

(AV) APPROVED VARIANCE

OFF-STREET PARKING REQUIREMENTS

CODE SECTION REQUIRED PROPOSED

§ 1205.2.E GAS STATION W/ CONVENIENCE STORE: 60 SPACES

1 SPACE PER 125 SF OF UFA PLUS

2 SPACES PER FUELING STATION

(3,264 SF)(1 SPACE / 125 SF) = 26 SPACES

(8 FUELING STATIONS)(2 SPACES / STATION) = 16 SPACES

RESTAURANT:

2 SPACES PER 5 SEATS

(46 SEATS)(2 SPACES / 5 SEATS) = 18 SPACES

TOTAL: 26 + 16 +18 = 60 SPACES (1)

§ 1205.6.D 90° PARKING: 10 FT X 20 FT

9 FT X 18 FT WITH 24 FT AISLE (2) W/ 40 FT AISLE

§ 1207.2.A(2) LOADING: 15 FT X 82 FT

10 FT X 55 FT

(1)

(2)

THE PLANNING COMMISSION MAY REDUCE THE PARKING REQUIREMENTS BASED

UPON A FINDING THAT THERE WILL BE A LOWER DEMAND FOR PARKING. THE
APPLICANT SHALL PROVIDE A PARKING STUDY WITH ADEQUATE DETAIL AND

INFORMATION TO ASSIST THE PLANNING COMMISSION TO DETERMINE THE
APPROPRIATENESS OF THE REQUEST

WHERE A PARKING SPACE ABUTS A 7 FT WIDE SIDEWALK OR A 10 FT WIDE
GREENBELT, THE PARKING SPACE MAY BE REDUCED BY 2 FT IN LENGTH

PROPOSED BRICK PAVERS

SHEETZ LAYOUT NOTES

1. CONTRACTOR SHALL REFER TO THE SHEETZ ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR THE

EXACT LOCATION OF UTILITY ENTRANCES, BUILDING DIMENSIONS, ROOF

LEADERS, EXIT DOORS, EXIT RAMPS AND PORCHES.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE TO BUILDING FACE, FACE OF CURB, OR EDGE OF

SIDEWALK UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE. ALL ANGLES ARE 90 DEGREES UNLESS

OTHERWISE NOTED.

3. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE ALL LABOR AND MATERIALS FOR THE

INSTALLATION OF TRAFFIC SIGNAGE AND PAVEMENT MARKINGS AS SHOWN

ON THE CONSTRUCTION PLANS.

4. ALL NON-LANDSCAPED ISLANDS SHALL BE PAINTED WITH STRIPES 4" WIDE, AT

45° AND 2 FEET O.C.

5. ALL STRIPING SHALL BE 4" WIDE UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.

6. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE FINAL LOCATION OF THE SHEETZ MAIN

FREESTANDING SIGN WITH THE SHEETZ CONSTRUCTION MANAGER.

7. CONTRACTOR SHALL REFER TO OTHER PLANS WITHIN THIS CONSTRUCTION

SET FOR OTHER PERTINENT INFORMATION.

8. ALL DIMENSIONS SHOWN ON THIS PLAN SHALL BE FIELD VERIFIED BY THE

CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY

SHEETZ REPRESENTATIVE AND DESIGN ENGINEER OF ANY DISCREPANCIES

BETWEEN THE PLAN AND FIELD CONDITIONS. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE

FOR ALL DIMENSIONS AT THE PROJECT SITE.

9. SEE DETAIL SHEETS FOR ADDITIONAL CONSTRUCTION INFORMATION.

10. CONTRACTOR SHALL NEATLY SAW-CUT ALL JOINTS WHERE THE PROPOSED

CONSTRUCTION MEET EXISTING PAVEMENT AND CONCRETE.

11. SHEETZ RESERVES THE RIGHT TO SUBSTITUTE ASPHALT PAVING FOR CONCRETE

PAVING.

PROPOSED TAPERED CURB

PROPOSED DETECTABLE WARNING STRIP

PROPOSED FLUSH CURB

PROPOSED SIGNS



YPSILANTI TWP., MI



OVERVIEW
• 3.65 Acres

• 6,132 SF  Restaurant & 
Convenience Store

• 8 Fuel Pumps (16 Stations)







A SIGNATURE SHEETZ LOCATION



A SIGNATURE SHEETZ LOCATION











REQUEST and THANK YOU
• R e q u e s t  f o r  a p p r o v a l  o f  t h e  d e v e l o p e r ’ s  a g r e e m e n t .
• A  s h o u t o u t  t o  t o w n s h i p  e l e c t e d  a n d  a p p o i n t e d  o f f i c i a l s  a s  w e l l  a s  s t a f f  

w h o  w o r k e d  s o  d i l i g e n t l y  w i t h  u s  t h r o u g h o u t  t h i s  p r o c e s s  t o  b r i n g  
a n o t h e r  S h e e t z  t o  l i f e !



1 
 

Facility Use Agreement 
JEL Concert Series – Summer 2025 

 
Date of Agreement: March 25, 2025 
Event: JEL Concert Series, Ford Lake Park, Aug 1,8,15,22,29, 2025 
Organizer: John E. Lawrence 
Owner: Charter Township of Ypsilanti, 7200 S. Huron River Dr. Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
 
1. Purpose. This Facility Use Agreement (the "Agreement") outlines the terms and 

conditions between John E. Lawrence Community Entertainment, a Michigan domestic 
non-profit corporation (“JEL”), and the Charter Township of Ypsilanti (“TWP”) for the use 
of Ford Lake Park and the facilities contained therein for a JEL Concert Series.   
 

2. Scope of Use. JEL Concert Series is hosting the Event, to take place August 1, 8, 15, 22, 
29, 2025 at Ford Lake Park, with further details provided in the attached Schedule, 
(attach schedule) incorporated as part of this Agreement. The parties agree to the 
following scope:  

 
2.1. Priority Event Use. JEL Concert Series shall have priority use of the park during the 

Event Dates.  The TWP may allow other events in the Park on these dates as long as 
they do not interfere with the JEL Concert Series.  
 

2.2. Transportation. Transportation of all guests anywhere in the park to the stage area 
will be the responsibility of the JEL Concert Series. The TWP may provide additional 
“rides with the TWP golf carts” for visitors with special needs if so available. JEL 
Concert Series shall announce the traffic flow and the schedule of the 
transportation of their choosing to all visitors in an attempt to avoid any confusion. 
 

2.3. Right of Inspection. The TWP shall have the right to inspect its facilities being used 
by JEL Concert Series. JEL Summer Concert Series shall be responsible for 
ensuring that all Event sponsor activities follow TWP Park rules and ordinances.  

 
2.4. Conformance with Rules and Regulations. JEL Concert Series acknowledges that 

the TWP is subject to the Michigan Department of Natural Resources (DNR) and 
FERC guidelines on Park and lake access, including TWP ordinances as they pertain 
to the use of TWP parks and facilities. Additionally, JEL Concert Series and its 
partners, sponsors, and vendors shall abide by the laws of Michigan and the United 
States, and shall not violate municipal ordinances, including no alcohol or smoking 
in the parks.  The TWP reserves the right to exclude any individual or group from its 
facilities based on conduct, which it determines in its discretion to be 
objectionable or contrary to community interests; JEL Concert Series hereby 
consents to the exercise of such authority by the TWP. 

 
 



2 
 

 
3. Rental Fees and Expenses 

 
3.1. Parking Fees. JEL Concert Series and the TWP shall mutually agree upon 

reasonable Parking Fees for the Event. The JEL Concert Series shall retain $15.00 of 
every $20.00 collected per car. The TWP shall retain $5.00 of every $20.00 per car 
from the Parking Fees. The TWP shall provide 10 free parking spaces for staff and 
entertainment of the JEL Concert Series.  The TWP shall manage Event parking and 
shall be responsible for any associated parking expenses, including providing 
parking passes or designated spaces.  The TWP will have full authority to determine 
who is admitted to the park during the JEL Concert Series. 
 

3.2. Event Expenses. The TWP shall be responsible for associated JEL Concert Series 
expenses, including service expenses for extra trash removal service, field paint, 
porta johns and additional safety equipment. Such JEL Concert Series expenses do 
not include TWP staff wages or other normal or ongoing TWP expenses or fees that 
do not directly result from the JEL Concert Series. However, the JEL Concert Series 
will be responsible for cleaning up all trash on field and disposing of garbage in the 
Dumpster located on the premises before 8 am the day after the Concert Series. 
The JEL Concert Series will be responsible for taking down all JEL Concert Series 
promotions placed throughout the park after each concert. 

 
4. Obligations of JEL Concert Series 

 
4.1. Proof of Insurance. The JEL Concert Series shall provide proof of insurance naming 

TWP as an additional insured on its policies for the Event no later than thirty (30) 
days prior to the start of the Event Dates.  
 

4.2. Food Trucks and Vendors Shall be subject to admission based on the pre-approval 
of the TWP. This will include all food trucks having approval from the Washtenaw 
County Mobile Food Service Unit (MFSU) and a valid State of Michigan Health 
Department license as well as the additional registration from the TWP planning 
department, per the guidelines. JEL Concert Series will provide a list of its vendors 
to the TWP for access and security reasons. The cut off time for food trucks and 
vendors to enter is 5pm without exception. The JEL Concert Series will keep 100% 
of fees associated with the monies made from Food Trucks or Vendors. 

 
4.3. TWP Inclusion in Event Planning. JEL Concert Series will include TWP staff in 

relevant Event planning meetings.   
 

4.4. TWP Activation Space. If JEL Concert Series sponsors are allocated booths or 
activation space, JEL Concert Series shall afford the TWP the same opportunity. 
The TWP acknowledges that if it chooses to take advantage of such an opportunity, 



3 
 

it is responsible for building out and staffing the allocated booth or activation 
space. 

 
4.5. Safety. The JEL Concert Series shall contract with local law enforcement to ensure 

Event details are communicated and any needed plans are in place to meet Event 
safety and community needs.   Must have Police presence on site from 6:30 pm 
until park is empty of visitors. Safety plan will need to be submitted to the TWP sixty 
(60) days prior to the event for approval. 

 
5. Obligations of the TWP 

 
5.1. Park and Facilities Access. The TWP will provide access to the Park and Grounds, 

including, parking spaces/areas, and use of onsite administrative building. The TWP 
may maintain the use of all rooms in onsite administrative buildings being 
thoughtful of the main rooms usage with entertainers.  No JEL Concert Series 
equipment may be stored in the park or in the buildings in the park overnight. The 
garage may only be used by JEL Concert Series for the storage of signs and banners. 
 

5.2. Activities & Temporary Structures. The TWP shall allow the JEL Concert Series to 
have a stage, sound system and video system in place for the nights of the JEL 
Concert Series. These items must be removed from the premises the same night.  

 
5.3. Maintenance. The TWP shall be responsible for the general maintenance of the 

Park, including: 
 
a. Dumpster Removal/Trash Receptacles– replacing dumpster as needed, adding 

additional trash receptacles to meet increased needs of the JEL Concert Series.  
b. Maintaining any onsite restrooms and all temporary restrooms onsite for JEL 

Concert Series usage. 
c. Maintaining all common areas, including parking lots and parking areas.  
d. Goose mitigation and Mosquito eradication 

 
 
6. Term and Termination  

 
6.1.  Termination. Either party may terminate this Agreement with immediate effect: 

 
a. Upon mutual written consent of both parties.  
b.  With thirty (30) days written notice to the other party if more than sixty (60) 

days from the Event Dates. 
 

7. Insurance 
 



4 
 

7.1. Insurance. JEL Concert Series shall at all times during the term of this Agreement 
maintain in effect general public liability insurance covering the CHARTER 
TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI. The Charter Township of Ypsilanti STRICTLY.adheres to 
the insurance requirements. These insurance requirements shall not be waived for 
any reason. The minimum amount of the policy shall be $1,000,000 general liability 
per occurrence. Please read carefully the required insurance that must be 
obtained. The Charter Township of Ypsilanti shall be named as an additional 
insured on such policy and shall be entitled to at least a thirty day (30) day notice of 
cancellation or changes of any kind. 
 
The wording on the policy MUST.read: 
“…The Charter Township of Ypsilanti and its past, present and future elected 
officials, trustees, appointed commissions and board, agents and employees shall 
be named as “additional insured” on the General Liability policy with respect to 
(event, dates, times and location). 
 
JEL Concert Series acknowledges this may require any additional cost to its current 
policy or an additional policy, either of which could result in extra cost from its 
insurance carrier. 

 
8. General Provisions 

 
8.1. Amendments. This Agreement may only be amended in writing and signed by both 

parties. 
 

8.2. Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement is invalid, illegal, or 
unenforceable in any jurisdiction, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall 
not affect any other term or provision of this Agreement or invalidate or render 
unenforceable such term or provision in any other jurisdiction. 

 
 
In witness thereof, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be duly executed as of the 
Date of Agreement and are legally bound hereto. 
 



5 
 

For the John E. Lawrence  
Community Entertainment: 
 
By: ________________________________ 
 
Name: John E. Lawrence 
 
Title: President 
 
Date: _________________________________ 

For the TWP: 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 
 
Name:  Brenda L. Stumbo 
 
Title:  Supervisor 
 
Date: _________________________________ 

  
 

By: ________________________________ 
 

Name:  Debra A. Swanson 
 

Title:  Clerk 
 

Date: ________________________________ 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Resolution No. 2025-12 

PROPOSITION A 

Fire Protection, Prevention, Rescue Services and 
Equipment Reserves Millage  

WHEREAS, it is necessary to levy the millage allocated to the Charter Township 
of Ypsilanti in order to provide services as it pertains to fire protection, prevention, 
rescue services, and equipment reserves; and 

WHEREAS, the Ypsilanti Township Board desires to pay for said services only if 
approved by the voters of Ypsilanti Township. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the following proposition be placed 
on the ballot for an election to be held on the 5th Day of August, 2025. 

PROPOSITION A 

Fire Protection 

PROPOSITION TO AUTHORIZE THE RENEWAL AND RESTORATION OF 
3.1250-MILLS FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING FIRE PROTECTION, 
PREVENTION, RESCUE SERVICES, AND EQUIPMENT RESERVES 

“Shall the limitation on taxes which may be imposed each year for all purposes on real 
and tangible property in the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Washtenaw County, 
Michigan, be increased as provided by section 6 Article IX of the Constitution of 
Michigan, 1963, and the board of trustees be authorized to levy a tax not to exceed 
3.1250-mills ($3.1250 per $1000 of state equalized valuation) on the taxable value of 
such property for a period of four years beginning with the levy made on December 1, 
2025 (which will generate estimated revenues of  $5,832,329.00 in the first year) for the 
purpose of providing revenues for fire protection, prevention, rescue services, and 
equipment reserves? Of the 3.1250 mills, 3.0627 represents a renewal of that portion of a 
3.1250 mills authorization previously approved by electors as reduced by operation of the 
Headlee Amendment, and 0.0623 represents new millage in the amount equal to the 
amount reduced by operation of the Headlee Amendment.” 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall supersede any previously 
adopted resolutions.  

I, Debra A. Swanson, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of 
Michigan hereby certify the above resolution is a true and exact copy of Resolution No. 2025-12 
approved by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular 
Meeting held on April 15, 2025. 

________________________ 
Debra A. Swanson, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Resolution No. 2025-13 

PROPOSITION B 

Police Services 
Millage  

WHEREAS, it is necessary to levy the millage allocated to the Charter Township 
of Ypsilanti in order to provide services as it pertains to law enforcement services; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Ypsilanti Township Board desires to pay for said services only if 
approved by the voters of Ypsilanti Township. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the following proposition be placed 
on the ballot for an election to be held on the 5th Day of August, 2025 

Proposition B 

Police Services 

PROPOSITION TO AUTHORIZE THE RENEWAL AND RESTORATION OF 
5.7000-MILLS FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING LAW ENFORCEMENT 
SERVICES, COMMUNITY POLICING/NEIGHBOR WATCH, AND 
ORDINANCE ENFORCEMENT 

“Shall the limitation on taxes which may be imposed each year for all purposes on real 
and tangible property in the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Washtenaw County, 
Michigan, be increased as provided by section 6 Article IX of the Constitution of 
Michigan, 1963, and the board of trustees be authorized to levy a tax not to exceed 
5.7000-mills ($5.7000 per $1000 of state equalized valuation) on the taxable value of 
such property for a period of four years beginning with the levy made on December 1, 
2025 (which will generate estimated revenues of  $10,638,169.00 in the first year) for the 
purpose of providing revenues for law enforcement services, community 
policing/neighborhood watch, and ordinance enforcement?  Of the 5.7000 mills, 5.5169 
represents a renewal of that portion of a 5.7000 mills authorization previously approved 
by electors as reduced by operation of the Headlee Amendment, and 0.1831 represents 
new millage in the amount equal to the amount reduced by operation of the Headlee 
Amendment.” 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall supersede any previously 
adopted resolutions.  

I, Debra A. Swanson, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of 
Michigan hereby certify the above resolution is a true and exact copy of Resolution No. 2025-13 
approved by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular 
Meeting held on April 15, 2025. 

________________________ 
Debra A. Swanson, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Resolution No. 2025-14 

PROPOSITION C 

Recreation, Bike Path, Sidewalk, Roads, Parks, 
General Operations Fund Millage  

WHEREAS, it is necessary to levy the millage allocated to the Charter Township 
of Ypsilanti in order to provide services as it pertains to providing recreation/park 
facilities, bike paths, repair of sidewalks, roads and general operating purposes; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Ypsilanti Township Board desires to pay for said services only if 
approved by the voters of Ypsilanti Township. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the following proposition be placed 
on the ballot for an election to be held on the 5th Day of August, 2025 

Proposition C 

Recreation, Bike Path, Sidewalk, Roads, Parks, General Operations Fund 

PROPOSITION TO AUTHORIZE THE RENEWAL AND RESTORATION OF 
1.0059-MILLS FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING RECREATION/PARK 
FACILITIES, BIKE PATHS, REPAIR OF SIDEWALKS, ROADS, AND 
GENERAL OPERATING PURPOSES 

“Shall the limitation on taxes which may be imposed each year for all purposes on real 
and tangible property in the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Washtenaw County, 
Michigan, be increased as provided by section 6 Article IX of the Constitution of 
Michigan, 1963, and the board of trustees be authorized to levy a tax not to exceed 
1.0059-mills ($1.0059 per $1000 of state equalized valuation) on the taxable value of 
such property for a period of four years beginning with the levy made on December 1, 
2025 (which will generate estimated revenues of  $1,877,357.00 in the first year) for the 
purpose of providing revenues for recreation/park facilities, bike paths, repair of 
sidewalks, roads, and general operating purposes?  Of the 1.0059 mills, 0.9858 represents 
a renewal of that portion of a 1.0059 mills authorization previously approved by electors 
as reduced by operation of the Headlee Amendment, and 0.0201 represents new millage 
in the amount equal to the amount reduced by operation of the Headlee Amendment.” 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall supersede any previously 
adopted resolutions.  

I, Debra A. Swanson, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of 
Michigan hereby certify the above resolution is a true and exact copy of Resolution No. 2025-14 
approved by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular 
Meeting held on April 15, 2025. 

________________________ 
Debra A. Swanson, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Resolution No. 2025-15 

PROPOSITION D 

Garbage, Refuse Collection, Recycling, Composting, Disposal of Solid Waste, 
Energy Conservation, Alternative Energy, Water Quality and Environmental  

Protection Millage  

WHEREAS, it is necessary to levy the millage allocated to the Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti in order to provide services as it pertains to garbage, refuse collection, recycling, 
composting, disposal of solid waste, energy conservation, alternative energy, water quality 
and environmental protection; and 

WHEREAS, the Ypsilanti Township Board desires to pay for said services only if 
approved by the voters of Ypsilanti Township. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the following proposition be placed on the 
ballot for an election to be held on the 5th Day of August, 2025. 

Proposition D 

Garbage, Refuse Collection, Recycling, Composting, Disposal of Solid Waste, Energy 
Conservation, Alternative Energy, Water Quality and Environmental Protection 

PROPOSITION TO AUTHORIZE THE RENEWAL AND RESTORATION OF 2.4050-
MILLS FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING GARBAGE, REFUSE COLLECTION, 
RECYCLING, COMPOSTING, AND DISPOSAL OF SOLID WASTE  

“Shall the limitation on taxes which may be imposed each year for all purposes on real and 
tangible property in the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Washtenaw County, Michigan, be 
increased as provided by section 6 Article IX of the Constitution of Michigan, 1963, and the 
board of trustees be authorized to levy a tax not to exceed 2.4050-mills ($2.4050 per $1000 of 
state equalized valuation) on the taxable value of such property for a period of four years 
beginning with the levy made on December 1, 2025 (which will generate estimated revenues of  
$4,488,561.00 in the first year) for the purpose of providing revenues for garbage, refuse 
collection, recycling, composting, and disposal of solid waste? Of the 2.4050 mills, 2.3571 
represents a renewal of that portion of a 2.4050 mills authorization previously approved by 
electors as reduced by operation of the Headlee Amendment, and 0.0479 represents new millage 
in the amount equal to the amount reduced by operation of the Headlee Amendment.” 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall supersede any previously adopted 
resolutions.  

I, Debra A. Swanson, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of 
Michigan hereby certify the above resolution is a true and exact copy of Resolution No. 2025-15 approved 
by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular Meeting held on April 15, 
2025. 

________________________ 
Debra A. Swanson, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 



Motion to Amend the 2025 Budget (#5)  

 

Move to increase the Bike, Sidewalk, Rec, Roads, General (BSRII) Fund budget by 

$30,998 to $2,321,100 and approve the department line item changes as outlined. 

 

Move to increase the Building Department Fund budget by $20,348 to $971,329 and 

approve the department line item changes as outlined. 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI

 2025 BUDGET AMENDMENT # 5

APRIL 15, 2025

AMOUNTS ROUNDED UP TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR 

213 - BIKE, SIDEWALK, REC, ROADS GENERAL (BSRII) FUND Total Increase $30,998.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-699.999 $30,998.00

Net Revenues $30,998.00

Expenditures: Equipment 213-753-977.000 $30,998.00

Net Expenditures $30,998.00

249 - BUILIDING DEPARTMENT FUND Total Increase $20,348.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 249-000-699.999 $20,348.00

Net Revenues $20,348.00

Expenditures: Professional Services 249-371-801.000 $20,348.00

Net Expenditures $20,348.00

Request to increase the budget for the purchase of two zero degree mowers for parks and grounds. This will be 

funded by an appropriation of prior year fund balance. 

Request to increase the budget for the professional services provided by MuniVate to preform analysis, 

remodeling of permits and inspections and employee training  for the BS&A Building software. The funds were 

originally budgeted from the contractual line ending in 818.000, however those funds will be needed for 

contracted inspectors.  This will be funded by an appropriation of prior year fund balance. 

1 of 2













 

2 
 

2.4 Non-Exclusivity of Services.  Nothing herein shall be construed as prohibiting 
Service Provider or any of its Subcontractors or affiliates from providing Services to, or entering into 
services agreements with any other entity or person so long as the Services provided pursuant to this 
Agreement are provided in a manner consistent with Service Provider’s obligations are not materially 
impaired. 

3. Locations. 

3.1 Base Services Locations.  The Service Provider shall provide the Base Services 
at the locations listed on Exhibit A attached hereto (the “Base Services Locations”). 

3.2 Contract Extra Services Locations.  The Service Provider shall provide the 
Contract Extra Services at the locations listed on Exhibit B attached hereto (the “Contract Extra Services 
Locations”). 

3.3 Quoted Extra Services Locations.  The Service Provider shall provide the Quoted 
Extra Services at the locations listed on Exhibit C attached hereto, or as otherwise agreed to in such work 
or purchase orders executed by the Parties, which shall each be thereby incorporated into Exhibit C of this 
Agreement upon the execution thereof (the “Quoted Extra Services Locations,” together with the Base 
Services Locations, and the Contract Extra Services Locations, the “Locations”). 

3.4 Location Changes.  At any time, and from time to time during the Term, (i) upon 
the mutual agreement (whether written or electronic) of the Parties, the Service Provider may provide 
Services at additional Locations, on the terms and subject to the conditions of this Agreement; and (ii) the 
Customer may terminate Services at any Location.  In each such circumstance (i) or (ii) above, the Parties 
shall amend such Exhibit reflecting such Services to accurately reflect the Locations at which the Services 
to be provided by the Service Provider which shall not modify any of the other terms and conditions of this 
Agreement. 

4. Pricing; Sales Tax; Modification. 

4.1 Pricing.  As consideration for the Services to be provided by the Service Provider 
and other obligations during the Term, except as modified either pursuant to Section 4.3 below or as 
mutually agreed by the Parties in a written amendment to this Agreement, the Customer shall pay to Service 
Provider the amounts set forth (i) in Exhibit A, as amended from time to time, for Base Services, (ii) in 
Exhibit B, as amended from time to time, for Contract Extra Services, and (iii) in Exhibit C, as amended 
from time to time, for Quoted Extra Services. 

4.2 Sales Tax.  The Parties acknowledge that the amounts listed on Exhibits A, B and 
C do not include state or local sales, use, excise, or other transaction-based taxes imposed on the sale of the 
Services (“Sales Taxes”).  The Service Provider may add applicable Sales Taxes as separately itemized 
charges to the amounts listed on Exhibits A, B and C. The Customer is solely responsible for payment of 
all Sales Taxes, including reimbursing the Service Provider for assessments of applicable Sales Taxes that 
neither Party pays at the time of sale of the Services.  The Customer will provide to the Service Provider 
any resale, exemption, or direct pay certificate or other documentation required or authorized by applicable 
state law to substantiate an exemption from Sales Taxes for any Services otherwise subject to Sales Taxes.  
If either Party becomes subject to a Sales Tax compliance audit that examines sales of Services pursuant to 
this Agreement, the Parties will cooperate as reasonably necessary to defend their Sales Tax treatment of 
sales of Services. 

 

 



 

3 
 

5. Invoicing & Payment Terms; Credits; Late Fees. 

5.1 Invoicing & Payment Terms.  Service Provider shall submit invoice(s) for the 
Services performed to Customer monthly (except as otherwise specified pursuant to a purchase or work 
order for Services). Customer agrees to pay to Service Provider, within forty-five (45) days after receipt of 
Service Provider’s invoice. 

5.2 Credits.  Customer shall have the right to invoice Service Provider for any 
reasonable expenses it incurs and documents with respect to damage to store fixtures, displays or other 
property caused by Service Provider’s provision of the Services including by a Subcontractor of the Service 
Provider.  Service Provider shall pay the invoice, or apply a credit to its own successive invoice to 
Customer, within thirty (30) days of Service Provider’s receipt of the invoice.  Any and all deductions by 
Customer from the amount of an invoice presented by Service Provider that are not set forth in this 
Agreement shall be approved by Service Provider in writing or by electronic mail prior to Customer’s 
deduction of such amount from any such invoice. 

6. Work Standards, Personnel, Safety & Compliance. 

6.1 Service Quality.  Service Provider shall provide the Services at the Locations in a 
professional, prompt, and safe manner consistent with the terms of this Agreement, industry standards, and 
any and all applicable laws.  Service Provider’s (i) workmanship with respect to the Services, and (ii) use 
of chemicals and equipment that are provided under this Agreement, both shall be of a quality and grade 
that is consistent with accepted industry standards applicable to similar services and products respectively. 

6.2 Personnel. 

a. Floor Crew Personnel.  Service Provider shall employ or otherwise 
engage only competent and satisfactory personnel and Subcontractors, and shall supply sufficient 
labor to perform the Services in a manner that is efficient and in all respects meets the obligations 
of the Service Provider pursuant to this Agreement and is consistent with industry standards and 
the law.  If the Service Provider is notified by the Customer that any individual engaged by it to 
perform the Services is, in Customer’s reasonable opinion, unsatisfactory for any reason, Service 
Provider shall provide a suitable and competent replacement.  If required by the Customer, Service 
Provider agrees that its employees and Subcontractor personnel shall wear attire and/or display or 
carry lanyards or badges that to identifies such individuals as personnel or of the Service Provider 
or its Subcontractors when at the Locations for purposes of providing the Services. 

b. Supervisory Personnel and Service Provider Contacts.  Service Provider 
shall provide a list of contact information for its field supervisory personnel, customer service 
contact, and emergency hotline number for the Customer and update these contacts and telephone 
numbers as required through the Term.  Service Provider’s managerial personnel shall conduct 
regular inspection and supervision of the Services being performed by the Service Provider’s 
employees at the Locations and shall ensure that personnel of any Subcontractor are providing 
services consistent with the terms of this Agreement and industry standards. 

c. Worker Eligibility.  The Service Provider shall comply with all laws and 
regulations applicable to worker eligibility and will require that any Subcontractors to comply with 
same. 

d. Training and Personal Protective Equipment.  The Service Provider 
(i) shall provide its employees with all proper training (including hazard communication training 
and hazardous materials handling training, where applicable), and (ii) if applicable, shall provide 
to its employees any personal protective equipment necessary to perform the Services in a manner 



 

4 
 

that is consistent with industry standards and any applicable laws or regulations.  The Service 
Provider shall also ensure that all personnel of any Subcontractor are appropriately trained and 
equipped with personal protective equipment consistent with applicable law and industry standards. 

6.3 Compliance & Safety. 

a. Compliance with Rules & Regulations.  During its performance of the 
Services, Service Provider and its Subcontractors, if applicable, shall (i) take all reasonable safety 
precautions in compliance with all applicable federal, state and local laws, rules, regulations and 
requirements, including all Occupational Safety and Health Administration (“OSHA”) and state 
equivalent safety laws, regulation, rules, orders, and ordinances, (ii) place floor service warning 
signs or cones throughout the work area for safety in a manner consistent with industry standards, 
(iii) maintain all burnishers such that they operate at or below the current OSHA permissible limits 
for carbon monoxide emissions, (iv) take all reasonable precautions consistent with industry 
standards to avoid damage to store fixtures, refrigerated cases or displays, and (v) comply with all 
safety rules and policies of the Customer that apply to the Services and about which the Customer 
has informed the Service Provider. 

b. Licenses and Permits.  The Service Provider agrees to obtain, and require 
that its Subcontractors obtain, all licenses and permits required by applicable law to perform the 
Services.  It is understood and agreed that the Customer shall have no obligation to pay for any 
and all such fees and charges required by law to obtain and maintain such permits or licenses 
unless otherwise specifically set forth in this Agreement. 

c. Notification of Unsafe Conditions.  The Service Provider shall notify 
Customer immediately of any unsafe working condition at any Location observed by Service 
Provider, its employees or Subcontractors, and shall not be required to continue to work in any 
unsafe area until such condition is corrected or otherwise ceases to exist. 

d. Hazardous Waste.  Service Provider agrees that all hazardous waste, as 
defined by the regulations promulgated pursuant to the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 
42 U.S.C. § 6901 et seq. (“RCRA”), which Service Provider or its Subcontractors may generate at 
a Location during or in connection with the Services, shall be promptly transported off-site and 
disposed of, treated or stored in accordance with all governmental statutes, rules and regulations 
applicable to the generation, transportation, treatment, storage or disposal of hazardous waste. 

e. Chemicals.  Service Provider hereby warrants that all chemicals used in 
the provision of the Services, if provided to Customer pursuant to this Agreement, (i) will be of a 
quality and grade consistent with accepted industry standards applicable to similar products used 
in providing similar services, and (ii) shall be in compliance with all applicable federal, state, and 
local laws, rules, regulations and requirements. 

7. Company Obligations.  Customer agrees to comply with all reasonable requests made by 
Service Provider with regard to the performance of the Services so that Service Provider may provide the 
Services consistent with applicable laws, industry standards, and its obligations pursuant to this Agreement. 

7.1 Information.  Customer shall provide to Service Provider any data and 
specifications regarding the Locations that may be reasonably required and requested by Service Provider 
for the purposes of performing its obligations under the terms of this Agreement.  In addition, Customer 
shall assist Service Provider in obtaining any such data that Customer cannot provide directly. 

7.2 Access.  Customer shall schedule with Service Provider reasonable and adequate 
times at which Customer will provide access to the Locations so that Service Provider may provide the 



 

5 
 

Services.  The Service Provider will not be required to perform any strips or scrubs while the Locations are 
open for business, except in Locations open twenty-four (24) hours daily.  To allow for completion of the 
Services by Service Provider, Customer shall move any and all merchandising and mobile displays, and 
other obstacles off the floor area to allow the cleaning of such area by Service Provider and shall return 
such obstacles to the floor area after the area is clean. In closed Locations during shift hours, Customer 
covenants and agrees that if the Location is locked, Service Provider employees and/or Subcontractors shall 
have access to an emergency exit at all times. 

7.3 Notification of Injury and/or Damage.  Customer shall promptly notify Service 
Provider of all injuries to persons and damage to property that is in any way related to the performance of 
the Services under this Agreement.  Customer shall provide such notification to Service Provider 
immediately after the Customer’s notice of the occurrence of such injury or damage, but, in any event, such 
notification shall be within one business day following Customer’s notice of such injury or damage.  
Customer will provide Service Provider with any security videos, internal reports or any other investigative 
information gathered by Customer upon request. 

8. Reports.  Service Provider shall provide monthly quality control and periodic reports to 
Customer as agreed upon by the Parties. 

9. Independent Contractor Status.  Although Service Provider’s performance of the 
Services under this Agreement are subject to Customer’s approval, the Service Provider shall be solely 
responsible for determining the methods, details, and means of performing the Services, and will not be 
under the direct supervision or control of Customer.  The Service Provider shall be fully responsible for 
and will perform all Services under this Agreement as an independent contractor only, and not as an 
employee or agent of, or in joint venture with, the Customer.  Service Provider shall have no authority to 
represent or bind Customer except unless and only to the extent specifically provided in this Agreement.  
The individuals furnished by Service Provider to provide the Services shall remain Service Provider’s 
employees or Subcontractors and shall neither be, nor construed to be, employees of Customer.  Service 
Provider, its employees and agents shall not be entitled to any of the fringe benefits or employee benefits 
provided by Customer to its employees including, but not limited to, employee benefits under any Customer 
profit sharing or group insurance plans. 

10. Subcontractors.  The parties agree that Service Provider may subcontract all or a portion 
of its obligations under this Agreement to Service Provider’s independent subcontractors, agents, and 
licensees (collectively, “Subcontractors”); provided, however, that such subcontracting shall not relieve 
Service Provider of any of its obligations under the terms of this Agreement including to provide the 
contracted Services at all times consistent with the terms of this Agreement.  Service Provider shall be 
responsible for the performance of its obligations by any Subcontractor in the same manner as its own 
performance.  Service Provider shall bear the risk of nonperformance by a Subcontractor, including, but 
not limited to, failure to remit required documents or reports or provide required tools and equipment.  The 
Service Provider shall require that all Subcontractors providing Services to the Customer on the Service 
Provider’s behalf pursuant to this Agreement, perform such Services only for the purposes specified in this 
Agreement.  The Service Provider shall ensure that each Subcontractor, providing Services to the Customer 
will honor all the Customer’s rules and regulations about which Customer has informed Service Provider, 
including the conduct and attire of the Subcontractor’s employees while at the Locations as set forth in this 
Agreement.  Upon reasonable notice to Service Provider and a reasonable period of time in which to effect 
the change requested by Customer, Customer may reject any Subcontractor selected by Service Provider 
for any valid and lawful reason by providing written notice to Service Provider of such rejection, and upon 
Service Provider’s receipt of such rejection notice, Service Provider shall cease using such Subcontractor 
for the performance of the Services at the Locations as soon as reasonably practical; provided, however, the 
Service Provider shall immediately cease using such Subcontractor for the performance of the Services if 
Customer’s rejection of such Subcontractor is due to such Subcontractor’s theft of property or money, 



 

6 
 

drinking alcohol on the job, or performance of the Services while under the influence of drugs or alcohol.  
The Customer acknowledges and agrees that the Service Provider and Subcontractor relationships are the 
valuable intellectual property of Service Provider and agrees neither to, nor seek to: (i) engage, hire, or 
contract with, any of the Service Provider’s Subcontractors, principals, or employees; (ii) interfere with 
Service Provider’s relationships in any way; or (iii) solicit confidential information from any such persons 
set forth in clause (i) of this Section 10 above.  This paragraph shall survive any termination of this 
Agreement. 

11. Indemnification. directors, officers, employees, representatives and advisors 

11.1 Indemnification.  Each Party (the “Indemnifying Party”) agrees to indemnify, 
defend and hold harmless the other Party and the other Party’s respective officers, directors, managers, 
employees, subcontractors, advisors, affiliates, equity holders, and agents (collectively, “Affiliates”), and 
their respective successors and assigns (each an “Indemnified Party”), from, against and in respect of, any 
claims, losses, costs, damages, payments, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses, fines, 
penalties, liabilities (collectively, “Losses”), incurred or suffered by such Indemnified Party with respect to 
any and all claims, controversies, legal actions and proceedings brought by or on behalf of any third party 
arising out of or in any way related to the negligence or willful misconduct of the Indemnifying Party or its 
employees, agents or independent contractors in connection with the performance of this Agreement, with 
such indemnification obligation in proportion to the relative culpability of the Indemnifying Party and 
Indemnified Party if both are culpable in part.  The Indemnifying Party shall pay (or, if paid by the 
Indemnified Party, reimburse such Indemnified Party) for all fees and expenses (including, without 
limitation, attorneys’ fees and charges for the time of Indemnified Party professional employees at their 
then current rates) incurred by any such Indemnified Party in connection with investigating, preparing, or 
defending any such action, proceeding, or claim, whether or not in connection with pending or threatened 
litigation in which any Indemnified Party is a party.  The Indemnifying Party will not, however, be 
responsible for any Losses which result from any compromise or settlement not approved by the 
Indemnified Party or which are determined by a final and non-appealable judgment of a court of competent 
jurisdiction to have resulted from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of any Indemnified Party. 
Nothing herein shall be construed to waive, limit or restrict any governmental immunity defense 
available to the Charter Township of Ypsilanti. 

11.2 Non-Disclosure.  The Parties’ agreement to indemnify the other Party pursuant to 
this Section 11 shall not be disclosed publicly nor be made available to third parties by either Party hereto 
without the other Party’s prior written consent unless otherwise required by law. 

11.3 Notice.  In the event that any action or proceeding is brought against any 
Indemnified Party in respect of which indemnity may be sought from the Indemnifying Party pursuant to 
this Section 11, or if an Indemnified Party receives notice from any potential litigant of a claim which such 
person reasonably believes will result in the commencement of any such action, proceeding or claim, such 
Indemnified Person shall promptly notify the Indemnifying Party in writing of the commencement of such 
action or proceeding, or the existence of any such claim, but the failure to notify the Indemnifying Party 
will not relieve the Indemnifying Party of any liability that it may have to any Indemnified Person, except 
to the extent that the Indemnifying Party demonstrates that the defense of such action is prejudiced by the 
Indemnified Party’s failure to give such notice. 

11.4 Limitation on Liability.  Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement 
to the contrary, in no event shall either Party or any of its affiliates or any of their Affiliates be liable to the 
other Party under any theory of tort, contract, strict liability, or other legal or equitable theory for lost profits, 
exemplary, punitive, special, indirect or consequential damages, each of which is hereby excluded by 
agreement of the Parties, regardless of whether such damages were foreseeable or whether any Party has 
been advised of the possibility of such damages.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING ELSE 



 

7 
 

CONTAINED IN THIS AGREEMENT TO THE CONTRARY, UNLESS CAUSED BY A PARTY’S 
NEGLIGENCE OR WILLFUL MISCONDUCT, THE MAXIMUM LIABILITY OF THE PARTIES, 
AND SUCH PARTY’S AFFILIATES, AND ANY OF THEM, TO THE OTHER PARTY AND ANYONE 
CLAIMING BY OR THROUGH SUCH OTHER PARTY, FOR ANY LOSSES WHATSOEVER SHALL 
NOT EXCEED THE TOTAL COMPENSATION PAID TO THE SERVICE PROVIDER UNDER THIS 
AGREEMENT DURING ANY YEAR OF THE TERM HEREOF UNLESS SUCH AMOUNTS ARE 
ACTUALLY PAYABLE UNDER ANY INSURANCE POLICY. IT IS INTENDED THAT THIS 
LIMITATION APPLY TO ANY AND ALL LIABILTIY OR CAUSE OF ACTION, HOWEVER 
ALLEGED OR ARISING, UNLESS OTHERWISE PROHIBITED BY LAW.  EXCEPT AS 
OTHERWISE PROVIDED FOR IN THIS AGREEMENT, THE SERVICE PROVIDER PROVIDES ALL 
PRODUCTS AND SERVICES “AS IS,” WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, WHETHER 
EXPRESS, OR IMPLIED AND DISCLAIMS ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING BUT NOT 
LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OF FITNESS FOR A 
PARTICULAR PURPOSE. 

11.5 Survival. The provisions of this Section 11 shall survive the expiration or 
termination of this Agreement for any reason. 

12. Insurance. 

12.1 Employers Liability and Workers Compensation.  During the term of this 
Agreement, Service Provider shall maintain in full force and effect one or more policies of Employer’s 
Liability insurance which have limits of coverage of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000), and 
Worker’s Compensation insurance within the limits as prescribed by applicable law. 

12.2 General Liability.  During the term of this Agreement, Service Provider shall 
maintain in full force and effect one or more policies of Commercial General Liability insurance, which 
includes coverage that is customary for comparably situated companies for the business being conducted 
by the Service Provider. Such policy or policies shall be issued by an insurance Customer having an A-
rating by A.M. Best, shall have coverage for personal and bodily injury and property damage of at least 
Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) for each occurrence.  Customer shall be endorsed as an additional 
insured on such policy or policies and the policy or policies shall allow for Service Provider to waive 
subrogation against Customer. 

12.3 Automobile Liability.  During the term of this Agreement, Service Provider shall 
maintain in full force and effect one or more policies of Automobile Liability insurance in an amount not 
less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) combined for each occurrence.  Customer shall be endorsed 
as an additional insured on such policy or policies and the policy or policies shall allow for Service Provider 
to waive subrogation against Customer. 

12.4 Excess Liability (Umbrella) Liability.  During the term of this Agreement, 
Service Provider shall maintain in full force and effect one or more Excess Liability (Umbrella) Liability 
insurance of not less than Three Million Dollars ($3,000,000.00) per occurrence and in the aggregate. 
Customer shall be endorsed as an additional insured on such policy or policies and the policy or policies 
shall allow for Service Provider to waive subrogation against Customer. 

12.5 Sole Liability for Premium.  The insurance coverage required to be maintained 
by Service Provider under the provisions of this Section 12 shall be maintained without the right of 
contribution from Customer’s policies of insurance. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, 
Customer shall not be liable for any premiums or costs of insurance or indemnification and defense incurred 
by the Service Provider to fulfill the insurance coverage requirements under this Section 12. 



 

8 
 

12.6 Verification of Coverage.  Service Provider shall furnish to Customer a certificate 
of insurance which verifies the terms and coverage of the insurance policies that Service Provider has in 
force under the terms of this Agreement, all persons insured, including Customer as an additional insured, 
and the fact that the coverage may not be canceled, altered or permitted to lapse or expire without thirty 
(30) days’ advance written notice to Customer.  Service Provider shall also furnish to Customer a certificate 
of insurance upon each renewal of this Agreement or in the event that Service Provider’s insurance coverage 
is modified or changed in any way. 

12.7 Subcontractor Insurance.  Service Provider shall require and verify that all 
Subcontractors provide insurance coverage and limits identical to the insurance required of Service Provider 
pursuant to Section 12 of this Agreement, unless such requirement is expressly modified or waived by the 
Customer. 

13. Confidentiality; Non-Interference. 

13.1 Non-Interference.  From and after the date hereof and continuing for a period of 
one (1) year following the termination of this Agreement, Customer shall not, directly or indirectly, without 
the express written consent of a duly authorized officer of the other the Service Provider (a) induce or 
attempt to induce any employee or an independent contractor, Subcontractor or consultant of the Service 
Provider or its Affiliates with whom the Customer had contact pursuant to this Agreement to leave the 
employ of the Service Provider or its Affiliates, as applicable, or to discontinue the business relationship 
between the Service Provider and any of its independent contractors (b) in any way interfere with the 
relationship between the Service Provider and any employee of the Service Provider with whom the 
Customer had contact pursuant to this Agreement or in any way interfere with the relationship between the 
Service Provider and any independent contractor, Subcontractor or consultant of the Service Provider or its 
Affiliates, as applicable, with whom the Customer did not have a pre-existing relation prior to the Effective 
Date, (c) employ, or otherwise engage as an employee, independent contractor, consultant, or 
Subcontractor, or otherwise, any employee of the Service Provider with whom the Customer had contact 
pursuant to this Agreement, or (d) use information provided to the Customer pursuant to this Agreement to 
induce or attempt to induce any customer, consultant, independent contractor, Subcontractor, landowner, 
supplier, licensee, or business relation of Service Provider or its Affiliates to cease doing business with the 
Service Provider or its Affiliates, or in any way interfere with the relationship between any customer, 
supplier, licensee, or business relation of the Service Provider, or its Affiliates.  Nothing in this Section 13.2 
shall preclude Customer from discussing employment with or hiring an employee of the Service Provider 
or its Affiliates that has (i) voluntarily contacted Customer in response to a general position announcement 
placed by Customer on its website or another public manner; or (ii) had such employment with the Service 
Provider or its Affiliates terminated by the Service Provider or its Affiliates, as applicable, without any 
violation of the terms of this Section 13.2 by the Customer.  Due to the inherent difficulty in arriving at the 
precise measure of the damages resulting from any breach by the Customer of the limitations of this 
Section 13.2 (and given the varying costs of hiring and training such employees and subcontracts and the 
loss of potential revenue based on Customer’s retention of the same), Customer agrees that (x) Service 
Provider shall be entitled to injunctive relief to prevent any breach (or anticipated breach) of the limitations 
of this Section 13.2, and (y) Customer shall pay to Service Provider as liquidated damages (and not as a 
penalty) an amount equal to one year’s salary for any such employee of the Service Provider or a 
subcontractor employed or retained by Customer in violation of the limitations of this Section 13.2. 

14. Termination. 

14.1 Termination upon Written Notice.  Either party may terminate this Agreement 
in its entirety, or the Services for any Location, for any reason upon sixty (60) days written notice in 
accordance with Section 15.4 below.  Unless excused by Customer, Service Provider shall continue to 
render Services under this Agreement during such notice period. 



 

9 
 

14.2 Termination upon Insolvency.  Either party hereto may immediately terminate 
this Agreement by written notice to the other party if the other party becomes insolvent, makes a general 
assignment for the benefit of creditors, files a voluntary petition of bankruptcy, suffers or permits the 
appointment of a receiver for its business or assets, or becomes subject to any proceeding under any 
bankruptcy or insolvency law, whether domestic or foreign, or has wound up or liquidated, voluntarily or 
otherwise. In the event that any of the above events occurs with respect to a party, such party shall 
immediately notify the other party of its occurrence in accordance with Section 15.4 below. 

14.3 Survival of Rights and Remedies.  The termination of this Agreement for any 
reason shall not affect (i) the right of either party to receive amounts to which such party is entitled pursuant to 
this Agreement or (ii) the right of either party to seek damages from the other party with respect to the events 
giving rise to the termination of this Agreement. 

14.4 Termination prior to Automatic Renewal.  Either party may terminate this 
Agreement prior to the end of the Term upon no less than sixty (60) days written notice in accordance with 
Section 15.4 below. 

15. General Provisions. 

15.1 Force Majeure.  Neither Party shall be liable to the other for any delay or failure to 
perform its obligations under this Agreement to the extent such delay or failure is caused by any event beyond 
the reasonable control of such Party, including, but not limited to, failure of sources of supply or of materials, 
strike or other labor troubles, accidents to delivery vehicles, fire, riot or civil commotion, act of government or 
government instrumentality, war, terrorist act, tsunami, earthquake, blackouts, floods, severe weather or other 
natural disaster, nuclear emergency, pandemic, and other similar occurrences; provided, however, such party 
must notify the other party of its inability to perform within a reasonable time after the onset of such act or 
event.  While such an inability to perform under this Agreement continues, the other party shall be relieved 
from its corresponding obligations hereunder. 

15.2 Choice of Law.  The laws of the State of Michigan (without giving effect to its 
conflict of law principles) shall govern all matters arising out of or relating to this Agreement and all of the 
transactions contemplated hereby, including, without limitation, the validity, interpretation, construction, 
performance and enforcement of this Agreement.  The forum selected for any proceeding or suit related to 
a dispute between the parties arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the transactions contemplated 
hereby shall be in a federal or state court of competent jurisdiction located in Washtenaw County, Michigan 
(the “Designated Courts”).  Each party consents to the exclusive jurisdiction of the Designated Courts for the 
purpose of all legal actions and proceedings arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the transactions 
contemplated hereby.  Each party agrees that the exclusive choice of forum set forth in this Section does not 
prohibit the enforcement of any judgment obtained in the Designated Courts in any other appropriate forum. 

15.3 Attorneys’ Fees and Costs.  In the event of a breach by either party to this Agreement 
and commencement of a subsequent legal action in a Designated Court, or in the event legal counsel is 
consulted as a result of any such breach or in anticipation of any such prospective legal action, the prevailing 
party in any such dispute shall be entitled to reimbursement of its reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses. 

15.4 Notices.  Any purchase orders, requests, notices or other communication to a party 
to this Agreement that is permitted or required hereunder may be delivered by hand, by facsimile or other form 
of written electronic transmission (provided that no notice of non-delivery is received), by first class mail, 
postage prepaid, or by a nationally recognized overnight delivery service and shall be addressed by the sender 
to Service Provider or Customer at their respective addresses listed below or to such other address as a party 
may hereafter furnish to the other party in writing. 



 

10 
 

 

If to Service Provider: 

For Contract Notices: For Purchase Order/Service Requests: 
RNA Facilities Management RNA Facilities Management 
2701 Interstate 94 Service Dr 2701 Interstate 94 Service Dr 
Building A | Ypsilanti, MI | 48198 Building A | Ypsilanti, MI | 48198 
  

 
 

If to Customer:  

For Contract Notices: 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti  
7200 S Huron River Dr,  
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 

 
 

15.5 Further Action.  Each party hereto agrees to take all further action, and to execute, 
acknowledge, and deliver any other documents, which may be reasonably necessary, appropriate, or desirable 
to carry out the provisions of this Agreement. 

15.6 No Agency.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to create any 
association, partnership, joint venture or relationship of principal and agent or master and servant between the 
parties. 

15.7 Amendment.  The parties may not amend this Agreement orally.  The parties may 
amend this Agreement only by a written agreement signed by all of the parties to this Agreement. 

15.8 No Waiver.  No waiver of any provision of this Agreement, and no consent to any 
departure by any party from the terms and conditions of this Agreement, shall be effective unless such 
waiver or consent is given in writing by the party against whom such waiver or consent is sought to be 
enforced (in which case the waiver or consent shall be effective only in the specific instance, and only for 
the specific purpose, for which it was given).  No failure or delay by a party in exercising any right or 
remedy, or requiring the satisfaction of any condition under this Agreement, and no course of dealing 
between the parties, shall operate as a waiver or estoppel of any right or remedy of such party hereunder, 
or limit or prevent the subsequent enforcement of any provision of this Agreement by such party. 

15.9 Integration.  This Agreement together with its Exhibits constitutes the final 
agreement between the Parties.  It is the complete and exclusive expression of the parties’ agreement on the 
matters contained in this Agreement.  All prior and contemporaneous negotiations and agreements between the 
Parties on the matters contained in this Agreement are expressly superseded by this Agreement.  The provisions 
of this Agreement may not be explained, supplemented, or qualified through evidence of trade usage or a prior 
course of dealings.  In entering into this Agreement, neither Party has relied upon any statement, representation, 
warranty or agreement of the other Party except for those expressly contained in this Agreement.  There are no 
conditions precedent to the effectiveness of this Agreement other than those expressly stated in this Agreement. 

15.10 Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is determined to be invalid, illegal 
or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 



 

11 
 

15.11 Assignment.  Except as provided below and as set forth in Section 10 
(Subcontractors), neither Party shall delegate its duties nor assign its rights under this Agreement, whether in 
whole or in part, without the prior written consent of the other Party; provided, however, that either party may 
assign its rights under this Agreement in connection with the sale of substantially all its assets, or a merger, 
consolidation or other similar reorganization. 

15.12 Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding upon, and shall inure to 
the benefit of, the successors and permitted assignees of the parties. 

15.13 Counterparts.  The Parties may execute this Agreement in multiple counterparts, 
each of which constitutes an original, and all of which, collectively, constitute only one Agreement.  The 
signatures of the Parties need not appear on the same counterpart, and delivery of an executed counterpart 
signature page by facsimile or other form of electronic transmission shall be as effective as executing and 
delivering this Agreement in the presence of the other party to this Agreement. 

15.14 Descriptive Headings.  The titles and captions preceding the text of the sections of 
this Agreement are inserted solely for convenient reference and neither constitute a part of this Agreement nor 
affect its meaning, interpretation, or effect. 

15.15 Authority. Each individual executing this Agreement on behalf of an entity 
represents and warrants that (a) he or she is duly authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement on behalf of 
the entity; (b) the entity has all requisite power and authority to execute, deliver and perform under this 
Agreement; (c) the execution, delivery and performance by the entity has been duly authorized by all necessary 
action, corporate or otherwise, on the part of the entity; (d) the entity has obtained all consents, permits, 
approvals and authorizations required by applicable governmental authorities in connection with the 
performance of its obligations under this Agreement; and (e) this Agreement is binding upon the entity. 

[Signature Page Follows] 



 
 

Signature Page to Master Services Agreement 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed 
by their duly authorized representatives as of the date first set forth above. 

CUSTOMER: 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti                          Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

By: ___________________________                   By: ___________________________     
 
Name: _________________________                  Name: __________________________   
 

Title:____________________________                Title:___________________________   

 

SERVICE PROVIDER: 

RNA Facilities Management 

 
 

                                                                              By:    
Name:  K. Wayne Bingham II  
Title:  Director of grounds  























 

ATTORNEY REPORT 
 

GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 
 

 



 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Karen Lovejoy Roe 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

LaResha Thornton 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
To: Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board  
 
From: Karen Wallin, Human Resource Manager 
 Erica Holmes, Human Resource Specialist 
 Travis McDugald, I.T. Manager 
 
Date: April 21, 2025 
 
Subject: Request to Approve UKG Contract for new time clocks and software due to end of life for 

both with funding coming from the I.T. budget. 
 
 
In January of this year, the Human Resource Department was notified that our current time 
clocks would be reaching end of life status as of 6/30/2025.  HR began working with the I.T. 
Department to determine what next steps should be taken.  I.T. reviewed some options 
and found that the probability of being able to find a new provider, within the necessary 
timeframe, that would meet our needs, was unlikely.  
 
Also, during conversations with UKG while trying to determine what the next steps would 
be, we were informed that not only are the clocks reaching end of life, but our current time 
and attendance software will also be reaching end of life within the next year.   
 
The Human Resource Department and the I.T. Department are recommending going 
vendor direct and replace the old clocks with the newer version clocks and move to the 
new time and attendance software, UKG Ready Launch.  Replacing the time clocks would 
be a one-time expense of $14,840 for 10 clocks; and the new software, UKG Ready Launch, 
would be an additional one-time expense of $4,000. 
 
The new contract/agreement would have an annual cost of around $6,600 which includes 
a monthly charge for the clocks, and the annual support fees for the software.  Our current 
annual cost for the clocks and support fee is around $8,000.  
 
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Karen Lovejoy Roe 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

LaResha Thornton 

Funding for this project is outlined below. 
 
UKG INTOUCH DX G2, HID PROX $14,840 101.228.977.000 
Depot Exchange Support Service $3,000 101.228.934.000 
UKG READY LAUNCH FIXED FEE $4,000 101.228.801.000 
SaaS Service Fees $3,600 101.228.857.100 
 
The contract has been forwarded to Attorney Winters for review.  
 
Your consideration in the matter is appreciated as the June 30th deadline is approaching fast.  
Should you have any additional questions, please contact the HR Department. 
 















































Miller, Canfield, Paddock and Stone, P.L.C. 

RESOLUTION 2025-16 
APPROVING CONTRACT  

AND AUTHORIZING NOTICE 
(Clark Road Booster Pump Station, Ellsworth Water Storage Tank, and Water Meter Project) 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
County of Washtenaw, State of Michigan 

____________________________________________ 

Minutes of a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees (the “Governing Body”) of the 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of Michigan (the “Local Unit”), held 
on the 6th day of May, 2025, at 6:00 o’clock p.m., prevailing Eastern Time. 

PRESENT: Members: 

ABSENT: Members: 

The following preamble and resolutions were offered by Member ___________________ 
and supported by Member _________________: 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to acquire and construct certain improvements to the Local 
Unit’s water supply system, including the replacement of the Clark Road Water Booster Pump 
Station, improvements to the Ellsworth Water Storage Tank, and water meter replacements, 
together with all necessary appurtenances and attachments thereto, to serve the Local Unit (the 
“Improvements”); and 

WHEREAS, a Finance Contract (the “Contract”) has been prepared between the Local Unit 
and the Ypsilanti Community Utilities Authority (the “Authority”) whereby the Authority will 
issue its bonds (the “Bonds”) on behalf of the Local Unit to provide for the financing of the Local 
Unit’s share of the cost of the acquisition, construction and installation of the Improvements; and 

WHEREAS, this Governing Body has carefully reviewed the Contract and finds that it 
provides the best means for accomplishing the acquisition and construction of the Improvements 
and for providing the needed services.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, THAT: 

1. Approval of Contract; Effectiveness.  The Contract is hereby approved and the
Supervisor and the Clerk of the Local Unit are hereby authorized and directed to execute and 
deliver the Contract for and on behalf of the Local Unit; provided, however, that the Contract shall 
not become effective until the expiration of forty-five (45) days after the publication of the attached 
notice as a display advertisement of at least ¼ page in size in the Washtenaw Legal News, a 
newspaper of general circulation within the Local Unit, which manner of publication is deemed 
by the Governing Body to be the most effective manner of informing the taxpayers and electors of 



Miller, Canfield, Paddock and Stone, P.L.C. 
2 

the Local Unit of the details of the proposed Contract and the rights of referendum thereunder. 

2. Publication of Notice.  The Clerk is directed to publish the attached notice in the
newspaper above designated as soon as possible after the adoption hereof. 

3. Rescission.  All resolutions and parts of resolutions in conflict with this resolution
are hereby repealed. 

AYES:  Members: 

NAYS: Members: 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

Debra A. Swanson, Township Clerk 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by 
the Board of Trustees of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of 
Michigan, at a regular meeting held on May 6, 2025, and that said meeting was conducted and 
public notice of said meeting was given pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings 
Act, being Act 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended, and that the minutes of said 
meeting were kept and will be or have been made available as required by said Act. 

Debra A. Swanson, Township Clerk 



Miller, Canfield, Paddock and Stone, P.L.C. 
3 

NOTICE OF INTENT TO EXECUTE 
TAX-SUPPORTED CONTRACT AND OF RIGHT TO 

PETITION FOR REFERENDUM THEREON 

TO THE TAXPAYERS AND ELECTORS OF 
THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI, 
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN: 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti (the “Local Unit”) has approved by 
resolution the execution of a contract (the “Contract”) with the Ypsilanti Community Utilities Authority (the 
“Authority”) pursuant to Act No. 233, Public Acts of Michigan, 1955, as amended, which Contract provides, 
among other things, that the Authority will acquire and construct certain water supply system improvements, 
including the replacement of the Clark Road Water Booster Pump Station, improvements to the Ellsworth Water 
Storage Tank, and water meter replacements, together with all necessary appurtenances and attachments thereto, 
to serve the Local Unit (the “Improvements”), and will issue its bonds in the principal amount not to exceed 
$5,500,000 to finance the cost of the acquisition and construction of such Improvements for the Local Unit AND 
THE LOCAL UNIT WILL PAY TO THE AUTHORITY PURSUANT TO THE CONTRACT THE SUMS 
NECESSARY TO RETIRE THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON SAID BONDS.   

LOCAL UNIT’S CONTRACT OBLIGATIONS 

It is presently contemplated that the bonds will be issued in the principal amount of not to exceed 
$5,500,000, will be payable in not more than twenty (20) annual installments, and will bear interest at the rate 
or rates to be determined at the time of sale but in no event to exceed six percent (6.0%) per annum on the balance 
of the bonds from time to time remaining unpaid.  The Contract includes the Local Unit’s pledge of its limited 
tax full faith and credit for the prompt and timely payment of the Local Unit’s obligations as expressed in the 
Contract.  THE LOCAL UNIT WILL BE REQUIRED TO LEVY AD VALOREM TAXES WITHIN 
APPLICABLE CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY TAX LIMITATIONS ON ALL TAXABLE 
PROPERTY WITHIN THE LOCAL UNIT TO THE EXTENT NECESSARY TO MAKE THE PAYMENTS 
REQUIRED TO PAY PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON THE BONDS IF OTHER FUNDS FOR THAT 
PURPOSE ARE NOT AVAILABLE.  IT IS THE PRESENT INTENT OF THE LOCAL UNIT TO USE THE 
REVENUES FROM THE TOWNSHIP DIVISION OF THE AUTHORITY’S SYSTEM TO MAKE THE 
PAYMENTS REQUIRED TO PAY PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON THE BONDS. 

RIGHT OF REFERENDUM 

The Contract will become effective and binding upon the Local Unit without vote of the electors as 
permitted by law unless a petition requesting an election on the question of the Local Unit entering into the 
Contract, signed by not less than 10% of the registered electors of the Local Unit, is filed with the Township 
Clerk within forty-five (45) days after publication of this notice.  If such petition is filed, the Contract cannot 
become effective without an approving vote of a majority of electors of the Local Unit qualified to vote and 
voting on the question.  The Contract is on file at the office of the Township Clerk. 

This notice is given pursuant to the requirements of Section 8 of Act No. 233, Public Acts of Michigan, 
1955, as amended.  Further information concerning the details of the Contract and the matters set out in this 
notice may be secured from the Township Clerk’s office. 

Debra A. Swanson 
Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

 43570983.3/099369.00054 



April 28, 2025 

VIA EMAIL 

Ms. Debra A. Swanson, Clerk 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 

7200 South Huron River Drive  

Ypsilanti, Michigan 48197 

Re: Water System Improvements Bond Sale 

Dear Clerk Swanson: 

Please be advised that the Board of Commissioners for the Ypsilanti Community Utilities 

Authority (YCUA) approved a resolution at their April 23, 2025, meeting to enter into a financial 

contract with the Charter Township of Ypsilanti for the issuance of water system improvement 

bonds in Ypsilanti Township.  YCUA is planning water system improvements for the replacement 

of the Clark Road Water Booster Pump Station, improvements to the Ellsworth Water Storage 

Tank, and water meter replacements.  In order to fund these improvements, YCUA is proposing 

to issue an open-market bond with a ceiling of $5,500,000.  Please find below a brief summary of 

the proposed projects and their opinions of probable project cost.   

Clark Road Water Booster Pump Station: located in the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, 

the pump station was originally constructed during the mid-1970s. The pump station 

building is in poor condition and warrants demolition and replacement.  The existing direct 

drive pumps will be replaced with new pumps equipped with energy-efficient variable 

frequency drives.  The obsolete electrical and controls equipment will be upgraded to 

modern standards and a permanent backup power source will be provided to add 

redundancy to the pump station.  The opinion of probable project cost is $1.53M. 

Ellsworth Water Storage Tank: located in the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, the 

welded-steel ground reservoir tank was constructed in 1973 and has a capacity of 3,000,000 

gallons.  The tank interior sidewalls and floor were last painted in 1985, with the interior 

roof painted in 2000, along with the entire exterior surface.  A recent inspection of the tank 

indicates the exterior coating is in poor condition which includes spot failures to the 

substrate, topcoat delamination, rust bleedthrough, and micro cracking.  The interior 

coating is in fair condition, which includes spot failures to the substrate, topcoat 

delamination, and rust bleedthrough on the sidewall.  Above the high-water level, the 

coating is deteriorating at the roof panels, welded lap seams, and at the gap between the 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP of YPSILANTI 

Board of Trustees 

April 28, 2025 

Page 2 

roof stiffeners and roof plates, and on the roof stiffeners.  Scheduled improvements will 

include recoating the inside and outside of the tank, reconfiguration of various mechanical 

systems on the tank to comply with current EGLE requirements, and installation of a mixer 

to improve water quality.  The opinion of probable project cost totals $1.3M. 

Water Meter Replacements: YCUA currently operates and maintains more than 18,000 

devices to meter usage within the water distribution system of the Charter Township of 

Ypsilanti.  The metering technology is obsolete and no longer supported by the 

manufacturer.  Four different types of devices are currently utilized, with all metering 

devices being located inside buildings.  As part of this funding phase, YCUA proposes to 

replace approximately 60% of these meters with advanced metering infrastructure (AMI).  

AMI allows for two-way communication where the metering device can not only transmit 

data to YCUA but also enables YCUA to transmit data to the meter and, by extension, the 

customer. Data transmitted from YCUA to the customer could include notifications of 

suspected leaks due to higher-than-normal consumption registered by the metering device.  

Radio frequency network equipment will be installed to transmit the two-way 

communications between the metering devices and YCUA.   

YCUA is proposing to utilize the remaining bond proceeds to purchase the meters after 

accepting bids on the Clark Rd Pump Station and Ellsworth Water Storage Tank projects. 

At this time, the remaining proceeds are expected to be $2.67M.  Please note that this 

amount could increase or decrease depending on the accuracy of the opinions of probable 

project cost. YCUA anticipates that this funding will provide staff with enough work to 

cover 2-2.5 years of installations, or approximately 60% of the Charter Township of 

Ypsilanti’s total inventory of meters.  YCUA anticipates the replacement for all meters in 

the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, which is approximately 18,000, to take approximately 

4 years. 

Please note that the Authority’s bond counsel, Mr. Tom Colis, submitted a separate 

correspondence requesting consideration of a Bond Authorizing Resolution in the amount not to 

exceed $5,500,000 along with an Authorizing Notice.  YCUA is requesting consideration of these 

items at the Board of Trustees Meeting on May 6, 2025.  Please contact me at 734-484-4600 Ext. 

116 or by email at lblackburn@ycua.org with any questions or concerns regarding this matter. 

Sincerely, 

LUTHER BLACKBURN, Executive Director 

Ypsilanti Community Utilities Authority 

mailto:lblackburn@ycua.org


CHARTER TOWNSHIP of YPSILANTI 

Board of Trustees 

April 28, 2025 

Page 3 

LB 

cc: Ms. Angie Rogers, Township of Ypsilanti 

Mr. Tom D. Colis, Miller, Canfield, Paddock, and Stone, P.L.C. 

Mr. Nathaniel Watson, PFM Financial Advisors, L.L.C. 

Mr. Matthew Jane, Pear Sperling Eggan & Daniels, P.C. 

YCUA Board of Commissioners 

Mr. Dwayne Harrigan, YCUA 

Ms. Gail Thomas, YCUA 

Mr. Scott D. Westover, YCUA 



Miller, Canfield, Paddock and Stone, P.L.C. 

RESOLUTION 25-03 
APPROVING CONTRACT 

(Clark Road Booster Pump Station, Ellsworth Water Storage Tank, and Water Meter Project) 

Ypsilanti Community Utilities Authority 
County of Washtenaw, Michigan 

_____________________________ 

Minutes of a regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the Ypsilanti Community 
Utilities Authority, County of Washtenaw, State of Michigan (the “Authority”), on the 23rd day of 
April, 2025, at 3:00 p.m., prevailing Eastern Time. 

PRESENT: Commissioners 

ABSENT: Commissioners 

The following preamble and resolution were offered by Commissioner ______________ 
and supported by Commissioner ____________________: 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Ypsilanti Community Utilities Authority, 
County of Washtenaw, State of Michigan, intends to authorize the issuance and sale of its Water 
Supply System Bonds, Series 2025 (Charter Township of Ypsilanti) (the “Bonds”) pursuant to Act 
233, Public Acts of Michigan, 1955, as amended, in an amount of not to exceed Five Million Five 
Hundred Thousand Dollars ($5,500,000), for the purpose of defraying the cost of acquiring and 
constructing improvements to the Township’s water supply system, including the replacement of 
the Clark Road Water Booster Pump Station, improvements to the Ellsworth Water Storage Tank, 
and water meter replacements, together with all necessary appurtenances and attachments thereto 
(the “Improvements”), to service the Charter Township of Ypsilanti (the “Township”); 

WHEREAS, a Finance Contract has been prepared between the Authority and the 
Township to provide for the financing of the cost of acquiring and constructing said improvements, 
which Contract has been reviewed by the Board of Commissioners. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

1. The Finance Contract dated as of May 6, 2025, between the Authority and the
Township is hereby approved and the Chair and Secretary are each authorized to sign the same on 
behalf of the Authority. 

2. The Authority may incur expenses for the Improvements prior to receipt of
proceeds of the Bonds and may advance moneys for that purpose from funds available to the 
Authority, to be reimbursed from proceeds of the Bonds when available. The Authority makes the 



Miller, Canfield, Paddock and Stone, P.L.C. 
2 

following declarations for the purpose of complying with the reimbursement rules of Treas. Reg. 
§ 1.150-2 pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended:

(a) The Authority reasonably expects to reimburse itself with proceeds of the Bonds
for certain costs of the Improvements which were paid or will be paid from
available funds of the Authority subsequent to sixty (60) days prior to today.

(b) The maximum principal amount of debt expected to be issued for the
Improvements, including issuance costs, is $5,500,000.

(c) A reimbursement allocation of the capital expenditures described above with the
proceeds of the Bonds will occur not later than 18 months after the later of (i) the
date on which the expenditure is paid, or (ii) the date the Improvements are placed
in service or abandoned, but in no event more than three (3) years after the original
expenditure is paid.  A reimbursement allocation is an allocation in writing that
evidences the Authority’s use of the proceeds of the Bonds to reimburse the
Authority for a capital expenditure made pursuant to this resolution.

3. All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the provisions
of this resolution be and the same hereby are rescinded. 

AYES: Commissioners  

NAYS: Commissioners  

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

Secretary 

I hereby certify that the attached is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the 
Board of Commissioners of the Ypsilanti Community Utilities Authority, County of Washtenaw, 
State of Michigan, at a regular meeting held on the 23rd day of April, 2025 and that public notice 
of said meeting was given pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act, being 
Act No. 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended, and that minutes of said meeting were 
kept and will be or have been made available as required by said Act. 

Secretary 

 43570985.3/099369.00054 



 
 
 

April 29, 2025 
 
 

VIA EMAIL 
 

Ms. Debra A. Swanson, Clerk 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
7200 South Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, Michigan 48197 

Re: Request to Approve - Dissolution of Environmental Reserve Fund and Transfer 
of Funds into Reserve for Construction (Township Division) 

 
Dear Clerk Swanson: 

 
Please be advised that the Board of Commissioners for the Ypsilanti Community Utilities 

Authority (YCUA) approved a resolution at its April 23, 2025, meeting to dissolve the 
Environmental Reserve Fund and to transfer these funds into the Reserve for Construction 
(Township Division). On March 23, 1995, YCUA, Ypsilanti Township, Ford Motor Company, 
General Motors Corporation, the Regents of the University of Michigan, and Wayne County 
entered into the Willow Run Creek Area Settlement Agreement, which contained certain 
obligations relating to the clean-up of the Willow Run Creek Area. Subsequently, the 
Environmental Reserve Fund was established to cover wastewater disposal costs associated with 
the Settlement Agreement. Please find enclosed a memorandum from YCUA’s legal counsel, 
Matthew Jane, regarding this matter that was presented to the YCUA Board of Commissioners. 

 
YCUA and Ypsilanti Township’s obligations regarding wastewater disposal costs under 

the Settlement Agreement expired, at the latest, on March 23, 2025, 30 years from its effective 
date. Because this thirty-year period has ended, the monies in the Environmental Fund are no 
longer needed to fund any costs under the Settlement Agreement. Therefore, YCUA is 
requesting to dissolve the Environmental Reserve Fund and move its balance into the Reserve for 
Construction Fund (Township Division) for future infrastructure projects. Please find enclosed a 
proposed resolution regarding this matter that YCUA is requesting to be considered at the Board 
of Trustees Meeting on May 6, 2025. 

 
Please contact me at 734-484-4600 Ext. 116 or by email at lblackburn@ycua.org with 

any questions or concerns regarding this matter. 

mailto:lblackburn@ycua.org


CHARTER TOWNSHIP of YPSILANTI 
Board of Trustees 
April 29, 2025 
Page 2 

 
 

Sincerely, 

 
LUTHER BLACKBURN, Executive Director 

Ypsilanti Community Utilities Authority 
 
 

Enclosures 
cc w/encl.: Ms. Angie Rogers, Township of Ypsilanti 

Mr. Matthew Jane, Pear Sperling Eggan & Daniels, P.C. 
YCUA Board of Commissioners 
Mr. Dwayne Harrigan, YCUA 



ATTORNEY CLIENT COMMUNICATION AND ATTORNEY WORK PRODUCT 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: Board of Commissions of Ypsilanti Community Utilities Authority (“YCUA”): 

Michael Bodary, Chair 
Gloria C. Peterson, Vice Chair 
Jon R. Ichesco, Secretary / Treasurer 
Larry J. Doe, Commissioner 
David Ostrowski, Commissioner 

FROM: Matthew T. Jane - Pear Sperling Eggan & Daniels, P.C. 
 

RE: Transferring the YCUA Environmental Reserve Fund to the YCUA Reserve 
Construction Fund – Township Division 

 
DATE: April 17, 2025 

 

 
On March 23, 1995, Ford Motor Company, General Motors Corporation, Ypsilanti 

Township (“Township”), YCUA, the Regents of the University of Michigan, and Wayne County 
entered into the Willow Run Creek Area Settlement Agreement (“Settlement Agreement”). Under 
the Settlement Agreement, the above parties agreed to certain obligations relating to the clean-up 
of the Willow Run Creek Area. 

 
As part of the Settlement Agreement, YCUA and the Township jointly and severally agreed 

to, among other things, provide the necessary funding for the disposal of leachate that involved the 
Fons/Old Wayne Landfill (referred to in the Settlement Agreement as the “Wastewater Disposal 
Costs”), which leachate was transported for treatment to the Wayne County Wastewater Treatment 
Plant. Specifically, YCUA and the Township were responsible to provide funding for Wayne 
County and/or Van Buren Township disposal rates and connection fees associated with disposal 
of dewatered waters and leachate, for a thirty year period or to a maximum of $500,000, whichever 
occurred first. Such funding was to be paid in annual payments of $50,000 or less, depending on 
the actual disposal costs and connection fees incurred, with YCUA and the Township having no 
further obligations if, at the end of the thirty year period, the actual costs were less than 
$500,000. 

 
To pay the Wastewater Disposal Costs under the Settlement Agreement, YCUA and the 

Township agreed that beginning in 1996, YCUA would transfer $125,000 annually from the 
Township Division operating revenue, plus a charge of one cent per unit of sewage revenue, into 
an environmental cleanup reserve fund established by YCUA (“Environmental Fund”). It is my 
understanding that such funds came from Ypsilanti Township’s ratepayers and did not involve any 
monies collected from residents or ratepayers of the City of Ypsilanti. 

On May 28, 2002, YCUA’s Board of Commissioners passed a resolution directing YCUA 
to discontinue the $125,000 transfer (beginning in the year 2002 of operating revenue) from the 
Township Division to the Environmental Fund and to begin transferring the $125,000 annually 
into the Reserve for Construction Account. This was because it was determined that the 

 

 
1 



ATTORNEY CLIENT COMMUNICATION AND ATTORNEY WORK PRODUCT 

 
Environmental Fund was adequately funded. It is my understanding that YCUA and the Township 
only had to pay a small portion of the monies that were set aside for the treatment of leachate and, 
as such, the monies in the Environmental Fund continued to earn interest and has now reached an 
amount of approximately $2 million. 

YCUA’s and the Township’s obligations regarding the Wastewater Disposal Costs under 
the Settlement Agreement expired, at the latest, on March 23, 2025, 30 years from the effective 
date of the Settlement Agreement. Because this thirty year period has ended, the monies in the 
Environmental Fund are no longer needed to fund the Wastewater Disposal Costs under the 
Settlement Agreement. Accordingly, moving the balance of the Environmental Fund to YCUA’s 
Reserve Construction Fund – Township Division for future infrastructure projects makes sense. 

 

 
cc:   Luther Blackburn, Director of YCUA 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2 



RESOLUTION 2025-17 
APPROVING DISSOLUTION OF THE YCUA ENVIRONMENTAL 

RESERVE FUND AND TRANSFERRING THE MONIES HELD 
THEREIN TO THE YCUA RESERVE FOR CONSTRUCTION FUND 

– TOWNSHIP DIVISION

Charter Township of Ypsilanti
County of Washtenaw, State of 
Michigan 

Minutes of a regular meeting of the Township Board (the “Governing Body”) 

of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of Michigan (the 

“Township”), held on the 6 t h day of May, 2025, at 6:00 p.m., prevailing Eastern 

Time. 

PRESENT: Members:  

ABSENT: Members: 

The following preamble and resolutions were offered by Member 

and supported by Member  : 

WHEREAS, on March 23, 1995, Ford Motor Company, General Motors 

Corporation, the Township, Ypsilanti Community Utilities Authority (“YCUA”), the 

Regents of the University of Michigan, and Wayne County entered into the Willow 

Run Creek Area Settlement Agreement (“Settlement Agreement”). Under the 

Settlement Agreement, the above parties agreed to certain obligations relating to the 

clean-up of the Willow Run Creek Area; and 

WHEREAS, as part of the Settlement Agreement, the Township and YCUA 

jointly and severally agreed to, among other things, provide the necessary funding for 



the disposal of leachate that involved the Fons/Old Wayne Landfill, which leachate 

was transported for treatment to the Wayne County Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

Specifically, the Township and YCUA were responsible to provide funding for Wayne 

County and/or Van Buren Township disposal rates and connection fees associated 

with disposal of leachate, for a thirty year period or to a maximum of 

$500,000, whichever occurred first; and 

WHEREAS, per the agreement of the Township and YCUA, funding for the 

treatment of this leachate came from the Township’s ratepayers and such funds were 

maintained in a Township Division Environmental Reserve Fund established by 

YCUA (“Environmental Fund”); and 

WHEREAS, on May 28, 2002, the YCUA Board of Commissioners passed a 

resolution directing YCUA to discontinue the $125,000 transfer beginning in the year 

2002 of operating revenue from the Township Division to the Environmental Fund 

and to begin transferring the 

$125,000 annually into the Reserve for Construction Account; and 

WHEREAS, the obligations of YCUA and the Township regarding the leachate 

disposal costs under the Settlement Agreement expired, at the latest, on March 23, 

2025, meaning the monies in the Environmental Fund are no longer needed to fund 

any leachate disposal costs under the Settlement Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Governing Body finds it prudent to adopt the following 

resolution approving YCUA’s dissolution of the Environmental Fund and transferring 

the balance therein to YCUA’s Reserve Construction Fund – Township Division for 

future infrastructure projects, which action has been approved by YCUA’s Board of 



Commissioners. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the undersigned hereby 

approve the dissolution of the Environmental Fund and the transferring of the balance 

therein to YCUA’s Reserve Construction Fund – Township Division for future 

infrastructure projects. 

AYES: Members:    

NAYS: Members:    

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 
 
 

Debra A. Swanson, Township Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Township 
Board of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of Michigan, at a regular meeting held 
on May 6 t h , 2025, and that said meeting was conducted and public notice of said meeting was given pursuant 
to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act, being Act 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as 
amended, and that the minutes of said meeting were kept and will be or have been made available as required 
by said Act. 

 
 

Debra A. Swanson, Township Clerk 



Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Karen Lovejoy Roe 
LaResha Thornton 

Memorandum 

To: Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees  

From: Michael Saranen, Operations Manager 

Re: Request by DTE for easements, for gas line relocation project, within 5365 Bridge Road – 
South Hydro Park (K-11-24-300-011) and 2599 Bridge Road – North Hydro Park (K-11-24-
300-001).

Date:    April 29, 2025 

The DTE Company, is a Michigan public utility in Detroit Michigan servicing customers in the 
Ypsilanti Township and neighboring communities. They wish to relocate a section of an existing 
gas line that is located on the Ford Lake Dam and bridge that crosses over the Huron River along 
Bridge Road.  The proposed location for the gas line is through North and South Hydro Parks, 
which will require easements from the Township.  As part of this request, the applicant has 
offered a payment of $49,943.00 for the two easements. 

The relocation of the gas line off the dam and bridge and through the Hydro Parks will: 

• reduce hazard exposure during a flood event

• Improve service reliability to local customers

• lower cost for future concrete repairs to the dam’s turbine intakes

• lesson the emergency preparedness efforts around the existing gas line at the dam

A review of these proposed easements and legal descriptions have been confirmed by OHM, the 
Township’s Engineer, and have been determined to be in proper form by the Township attorney. 

Please place this request on the May 6th Board Meeting Agenda, thank you. 

Attached are the proposed easements for your consideration:  

• 2599 Bridge Road (K-11-24-300-001)

• 5365 Bridge Road (K-11-24-300-011)



                                                                                                          1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EASEMENT 
                            

 
                            

 
For good and valuable consideration of Twenty-Two Thousand Seven Hundred Dollars ($22,700.00), receipt of which is 
hereby acknowledged, 
 
The Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Michigan, a municipal corporation 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
 
 
(Grantor) hereby grants to DTE Gas Company, a Michigan Corporation (Grantee), with its principal office at One Energy 
Plaza, Detroit, Michigan 48226, its successors and assigns, an easement to construct, test, reconstruct, renew, operate, maintain, 
inspect, alter, repair and remove a pipeline or pipelines for the transportation of gas, oil or other substances which can be 
transported through a pipeline or pipelines, and such mains, service laterals, drips, valves, regulators, fittings, meters and other 
equipment and appurtenances as may be necessary or convenient for its operations (collectively, “Grantee’s Facilities”), over 
and through the following described real estate in the Township of Ypsilanti, Washtenaw County, State of Michigan, to wit:  
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
 

REAL ESTATE DESCRIPTION:               “See Exhibit A” 
Parcel#: K-11-24-300-011 
 
 
EASEMENT DESCRIPTION:                          “See Exhibit A” 
 
 
THE PARTIES FURTHER AGREE THAT: 
 
Structures and Trees: No buildings or other structures shall be erected or placed, and no trees shall be planted, on or in the 
above-described easement without the written consent of the Grantee.  Additionally, Grantee may remove any vegetation, 
buildings, or structures placed within the above-described easement that Grantee believes could interfere with the safe and 
reliable construction, operation, maintenance and repair of Grantee’s Facilities. 
 
Additional Work Space: Additional workspace, contiguous to the easement may be used temporarily during construction, 
maintenance or removal of the pipeline or pipelines installed hereunder. 
 



                                                                                                       2 
 

Ground Elevation: Grantee shall initially bury said pipeline or pipelines at a minimum depth of 24-inches. Grantor shall not 
materially alter the ground elevation within the above-described easement without a prior written agreement executed by Grantee 
allowing said alteration.  
 
Damages/Restoration: Grantee shall pay reasonable damages to improvements occasioned by said installation or by any of its 
subsequent operations under this easement or shall replace the damaged area to its original condition as reasonably practical. 
Grantee shall replace in good workmanlike manner all tile cut in the construction of the pipeline or pipelines. 
 
Assignment/Successors: Grantee’s rights herein granted may be assigned in whole or in part. This easement runs with the land, 
and all rights, privileges and obligations created by this instrument shall inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon, the heirs, 
devisees, administrators, executors, successors, and assigns of the parties hereto. 
 
Ownership: Grantor covenants that they are the lawful fee simple owner of the above-described property and that they have 
the right and authority to make this grant, and that they will forever warrant and defend the title thereto against all claims 
whatsoever. 
 
Exercise of Easement: Grantee’s nonuse or limited use of this easement shall not preclude Grantee’s later use of this easement 
to its full extent. 
 
Indemnity: Grantee shall indemnify, defend, and hold Grantor harmless from and against all claims and liabilities for injury to 
persons or property, including without limitation, reasonable attorney’s fees expended in defending against any such claims, to 
the extent caused by Grantee’s willful or negligent acts or omissions in exercising the rights granted in this Easement. 
 
This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which, taken 
together, shall constitute one and the same agreement. 
 
It is understood that the person securing this easement is without authority from Grantee to make any agreement in respect of 
the subject matter hereof not herein expressed. 
 
 
 
 
Executed this    day of __________________________________, 2025. 
 
 
 
 
 
The Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Michigan, a municipal corporation 
 
 
By: ______________________________ By: ______________________________ 
Name: Brenda L. Stumbo   Name: Debra A. Swanson 
Title:  Ypsilanti Township President  Title: Ypsilanti Township Clerk 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 



                                                                                                       3 
 

 

                                                                           ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 

County of   
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this_____________day of _______________, 2025, by Brenda L. 
Stumbo, the President of The Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Michigan, a municipal corporation, on behalf of the municipal 
corporation. 
 
 
 
                                                                           ______________________________________ 

 
                         Notary Public _____________ County, Michigan  

                Acting in _______________ County, Michigan 

 

My Commission Expires:______________________________________ 

 

 

 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN 

County of   
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this_____________day of _______________, 2025, by Debra A. 
Swanson, the Township Clerk of The Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Michigan, a municipal corporation, on behalf of the 
municipal corporation. 
 
 
 
                                                                           ______________________________________ 

 
                         Notary Public _____________ County, Michigan  

                Acting in _______________ County, Michigan 

 

My Commission Expires:______________________________________ 

 

 
Prepared by and return to:            Tyler Remington 
                DTE Gas Company 
                                                       PO Box 279 
                Kalkaska, MI 49646     
 
 
                                                                 



N

CHECKED:

DRAWN:

FIELD:

REVISION:

SHEET:

DATE:

SCALE:

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING FILE NAME:

DTE PROJECT NUMBER:

DTE Gas Company
Land & Survey Department

OF

TOWN:

RANGE:

SECTION:

TOWNSHIP:

COUNTY:

CITY:

REVISION DATE:

VENDOR JOB NO.:

EXHIBIT A

.

S. SMITH

S. BLISS

12/11/2024

1 3

1" = 250'

.

5365
BRIDGE ROAD
24

T03S

R07E

YPSILANTI

WASHTENAW

DED4231.01F-FORD LAKE DAM

.
555 S. Saginaw Street, Suite 201

810.235.2555
Flint, MI  48502

www.wadetrim.com PARCEL/EASEMENT SKETCH



N

CHECKED:

DRAWN:

FIELD:

REVISION:

SHEET:

DATE:

SCALE:

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING FILE NAME:

DTE PROJECT NUMBER:

DTE Gas Company
Land & Survey Department

OF

TOWN:

RANGE:

SECTION:

TOWNSHIP:

COUNTY:

CITY:

REVISION DATE:

VENDOR JOB NO.:

EXHIBIT A

.

S. SMITH

S. BLISS

12/11/2024

2 3

1" = 250'

.

5365
BRIDGE ROAD
24

T03S

R07E

YPSILANTI

WASHTENAW

DED4231.01F-FORD LAKE DAM

.
555 S. Saginaw Street, Suite 201

810.235.2555
Flint, MI  48502

www.wadetrim.com PARCEL/EASEMENT SKETCH



CHECKED:

DRAWN:

FIELD:

REVISION:

SHEET:

DATE:

SCALE:

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING FILE NAME:

DTE PROJECT NUMBER:

DTE Gas Company
Land & Survey Department

OF

TOWN:

RANGE:

SECTION:

TOWNSHIP:

COUNTY:

CITY:

REVISION DATE:

VENDOR JOB NO.:

EXHIBIT A

.

S. SMITH

S. BLISS

12/11/2024

3 3

-N/A-

.

5365
BRIDGE ROAD
24

T03S

R07E

YPSILANTI

WASHTENAW

DED4231.01F-FORD LAKE DAM

.
555 S. Saginaw Street, Suite 201

810.235.2555
Flint, MI  48502

www.wadetrim.com PARCEL/EASEMENT DESCRIPTION



                                                                                                          1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EASEMENT 
                            

 
                            

 
For good and valuable consideration of Twenty-Seven Thousand Two Hundred and Forty-Three Dollars ($27,243.00), receipt 
of which is hereby acknowledged, 
 
The Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Michigan, a municipal corporation 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
 
 
(Grantor) hereby grants to DTE Gas Company, a Michigan Corporation (Grantee), with its principal office at One Energy 
Plaza, Detroit, Michigan 48226, its successors and assigns, an easement to construct, test, reconstruct, renew, operate, maintain, 
inspect, alter, repair and remove a pipeline or pipelines for the transportation of gas, oil or other substances which can be 
transported through a pipeline or pipelines, and such mains, service laterals, drips, valves, regulators, fittings, meters and other 
equipment and appurtenances as may be necessary or convenient for its operations (collectively, “Grantee’s Facilities”), over 
and through the following described real estate in the Township of Ypsilanti, Washtenaw County, State of Michigan, to wit:  
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
 

REAL ESTATE DESCRIPTION:               “See Exhibit A” 
Parcel#: K-11-24-300-001 
 
 
 
EASEMENT DESCRIPTION:                          “See Exhibit A” 
 
 
THE PARTIES FURTHER AGREE THAT: 
 
Structures and Trees: No buildings or other structures shall be erected or placed, and no trees shall be planted, on or in the 
above-described easement without the written consent of the Grantee.  Additionally, Grantee may remove any vegetation, 
buildings, or structures placed within the above-described easement that Grantee believes could interfere with the safe and 
reliable construction, operation, maintenance and repair of Grantee’s Facilities. 
 
Additional Work Space: Additional workspace, contiguous to the easement may be used temporarily during construction, 
maintenance or removal of the pipeline or pipelines installed hereunder. 
 



                                                                                                       2 
 

Ground Elevation: Grantee shall initially bury said pipeline or pipelines at a minimum depth of 24-inches. Grantor shall not 
materially alter the ground elevation within the above-described easement without a prior written agreement executed by Grantee 
allowing said alteration.  
 
Damages/Restoration: Grantee shall pay reasonable damages to improvements occasioned by said installation or by any of its 
subsequent operations under this easement or shall replace the damaged area to its original condition as reasonably practical. 
Grantee shall replace in good workmanlike manner all tile cut in the construction of the pipeline or pipelines. 
 
Assignment/Successors: Grantee’s rights herein granted may be assigned in whole or in part. This easement runs with the land, 
and all rights, privileges and obligations created by this instrument shall inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon, the heirs, 
devisees, administrators, executors, successors, and assigns of the parties hereto. 
 
Ownership: Grantor covenants that they are the lawful fee simple owner of the above-described property and that they have 
the right and authority to make this grant, and that they will forever warrant and defend the title thereto against all claims 
whatsoever. 
 
Exercise of Easement: Grantee’s nonuse or limited use of this easement shall not preclude Grantee’s later use of this easement 
to its full extent. 
 
Indemnity: Grantee shall indemnify, defend, and hold Grantor harmless from and against all claims and liabilities for injury to 
persons or property, including without limitation, reasonable attorney’s fees expended in defending against any such claims, to 
the extent caused by Grantee’s willful or negligent acts or omissions in exercising the rights granted in this Easement. 
 
This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which, taken 
together, shall constitute one and the same agreement. 
 
It is understood that the person securing this easement is without authority from Grantee to make any agreement in respect of 
the subject matter hereof not herein expressed. 
 
 
Executed this    day of __________________________________, 2025. 
 
 
 
The Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Michigan, a municipal corporation 

 

 

By: ______________________________ By: ______________________________ 

Name: Brenda L. Stumbo   Name: Debra A. Swanson 

Title:  Ypsilanti Township President  Title: Ypsilanti Township Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 



                                                                                                       3 
 

                                                                           ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN 
County of   

 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this_____________day of _______________, 2025, by Brenda L. 

Stumbo, the President of The Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Michigan, a municipal corporation, on behalf of the 

municipal corporation. 

 

 

                                                                           ______________________________________ 

 

                         Notary Public _____________ County, Michigan  
                Acting in _______________ County, Michigan 
 
My Commission Expires:______________________________________ 
 
 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 
County of   

 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this_____________day of _______________, 2025, by Debra A. 

Swanson, the Township Clerk of The Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Michigan, a municipal corporation, on behalf of the 

municipal corporation. 

 

 

                                                                           ______________________________________ 

 

                         Notary Public _____________ County, Michigan  
                Acting in _______________ County, Michigan 
 
My Commission Expires:______________________________________ 
 

 
 
 
Prepared by and return to:            Tyler Remington 
                DTE Gas Company 
                                                       PO Box 279 
                Kalkaska, MI 49646     



CHECKED:

DRAWN:

FIELD:

REVISION:

SHEET:

DATE:

SCALE:

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING FILE NAME:

DTE PROJECT NUMBER:

DTE Gas Company
Land & Survey Department

OF

TOWN:

RANGE:

SECTION:

TOWNSHIP:

COUNTY:

CITY:

REVISION DATE:

VENDOR JOB NO.:

EXHIBIT A

.

S. SMITH

S. BLISS

12/11/2024

1 3

1" = 350'

.

2599
BRIDGE ROAD
24

T03S

R07E

YPSILANTI

WASHTENAW

DED4231.01F-FORD LAKE DAM

.
555 S. Saginaw Street, Suite 201

810.235.2555
Flint, MI  48502

www.wadetrim.com PARCEL/EASEMENT SKETCH

N



N

CHECKED:

DRAWN:

FIELD:

REVISION:

SHEET:

DATE:

SCALE:

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING FILE NAME:

DTE PROJECT NUMBER:

DTE Gas Company
Land & Survey Department

OF

TOWN:

RANGE:

SECTION:

TOWNSHIP:

COUNTY:

CITY:

REVISION DATE:

VENDOR JOB NO.:

EXHIBIT A

.

S. SMITH

S. BLISS

12/11/2024

2 3

1" = 350'

.

2599
BRIDGE ROAD
24

T03S

R07E

YPSILANTI

WASHTENAW

DED4231.01F-FORD LAKE DAM

.
555 S. Saginaw Street, Suite 201

810.235.2555
Flint, MI  48502

www.wadetrim.com PARCEL/EASEMENT SKETCH



CHECKED:

DRAWN:

FIELD:

REVISION:

SHEET:

DATE:

SCALE:

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING FILE NAME:

DTE PROJECT NUMBER:

DTE Gas Company
Land & Survey Department

OF

TOWN:

RANGE:

SECTION:

TOWNSHIP:

COUNTY:

CITY:

REVISION DATE:

VENDOR JOB NO.:

EXHIBIT A

.

S. SMITH

S. BLISS

12/11/2024

3 3

-N/A-

.

2599
BRIDGE ROAD
24

T03S

R07E

YPSILANTI

WASHTENAW

DED4231.01F-FORD LAKE DAM

.
555 S. Saginaw Street, Suite 201

810.235.2555
Flint, MI  48502

www.wadetrim.com PARCEL/EASEMENT DESCRIPTION



Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Karen Lovejoy Roe 
LaResha Thornton 

Memorandum 

To: Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees  

From: Michael Saranen, Operations Manager 

Re: Request to Approve Change Order #1 - Spillway Gate Programmable Logic Controller 
Isolation Project in the Amount of $9,825.00, budgeted in line 252-535-971.001 

The Board approved in November 2024 the PLC Isolation Project at the Hydro Station to 
upgrade the computers operational platform to include redundancy in the event of system 
failure. 

Additional work was identified with the turbine air valves and the dam’s warning horn. 

I am asking the Board to approve Change Order #1 (UIS Quote 250818) in the amount of 
$9,825.00 and is budgeted in Hydro Fund line 252-535-971.001. 

If you have any questions, please contact me. 



Date Ypsilanti Township To
Description

Quote #
Estimator Email

Date

Client Acceptance

Name Title Date

Signature

3. Prices. Prices for Products and/or Services shall be set forth in the Order Confirmation. Unless otherwise expressly stated in the Order Confirmation: (a) prices for Products specified in the Order Confirmation do not include storage, handling, 
packaging, or transportation charges; and (b) prices do not include any applicable taxes.

2. Acceptance. A contract is formed when Client accepts the Order Confirmation by written acknowledgement, by accepting the Products and/or Services, or other issued acceptance documents for the Products and/or Services. Acceptance is 
expressly limited to the Agreement and shall not include any terms and conditions contained in Client’s purchase order or similar document. Notwithstanding any contrary provision in Client’s purchase order or other acceptance document or similar 
document, delivery of Products, performance of Services or commencement of Services by Team UIS shall not constitute acceptance of Client’s terms and conditions to the extent any such terms or conditions are inconsistent with or in addition to 
the terms and conditions contained in the Agreement.

Exclusions and Clarifications
Pricing includes only the items listed above; anything not explicitly listed above is not included in our proposed scope of work.
Our quote is based on straight time during normal hours of 7:00 A.M. to 3:30 P.M., Monday through Friday, unless specified otherwise.

Our price is valid for thirty (30) days, after which time UIS SCADA, Inc. reserves the right to review and modify any and all portions of its proposal.

This proposal contains pricing and other information confidential and proprietary to UIS SCADA, Inc. and disclosure of the contents of this letter and any 
attachments to persons or organizations outside of this agreement is not authorized without specific written permission from UIS SCADA, Inc.

Team UIS  - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Ken Wesley ken.wesley@teamuis.com

Scope of Work Cost

Provide necessary labor and materials to interface and program the Horn relay output from the Sluice Gate PLC 
to the existing Horn relay.

April 30, 2025 Michael Saranen

250818
Hydro Gate PLC Isolation Change Order #1

Customer

Furnish and install one (1) Allen Bradley 16-channel DC Input module for the Air Vacuum Valve Controls.

Provide necessary labor and materials to interface and program the Air Vacuum Valve Controls.

1. Offer. These Terms and Conditions (“Terms”) apply to all products and services, including without limitation, computer software program(s) and software as a service (“SaaS Services”) provided to Client under an Order Confirmation with 
Utilities Instrumentation Services, Inc., Utilities Instrumentation Services – Ohio, LLC., UIS SCADA, Inc., and/or UIS Renewable Power, Inc., as applicable (“Team UIS”). These Terms are incorporated into each Order Confirmation issued by Team 
UIS to a Client of such products or services (“Client”). A confirmation or acknowledgement of an order (“Order Confirmation”) will be issued to Client after the Client has submitted an order to Team UIS. The Order Confirmation constitutes Team 
UIS’s offer to the Client identified in the Order Confirmation to sell the products and/or provide the services identified in the Order Confirmation ( “Products” and “Services”, respectively) and otherwise to enter into the agreement that the Order 
Confirmation and these Terms describe (the “Agreement”), and the Order Confirmation and these Terms shall be the complete and exclusive statement of such Agreement.

Client Acceptance when the Client will not be providing a PO or Contract to UIS SCADA, Inc.

Client authorizes Utilities Instrumentation Service, Inc. to proceed with the work and agrees to comply with the attached Terms and Conditions.

Please make Purchase Orders/Subcontracts out to:  UIS SCADA, Inc. and reference Quote #250818

Total: $9,825.00

UIS SCADA Approved by April 30, 2025

Team UIS
2290 Bishop Circle East
Dexter, MI  48130
(734) 424-1200 1 of 3

Utilities Instrumentation Service
UIS SCADA

UIS Renewable Power
Utilities Instrumentation Service-Ohio



10. Warranty. (a) Team UIS warrants, that at the time of delivery, the Products will conform to the specifications, if any, that are a part of the Order Confirmation. Client understands and hereby expressly agrees that any claim for defective 
materials, defective manufacture, or any other claim with respect to the Products shall be made directly to the manufacturer of the Product and not the Team UIS. Team UIS makes no warranties, either express or implied, regarding defective 
materials, defective manufacture, or any other claim with respect to Products. Team UIS may, at its sole election, and as Client’s sole remedy, make an allowance, repair, or replace such quantity of the Products as shall prove to be defective, then 
Client shall hold and make available for inspection and testing by Team UIS all Products claimed by Client to be defective. (b) Services provided by Team UIS under an Order Confirmation will be performed in a manner consistent with that degree 
of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing under similar circumstances. (c) THE TEAM UIS DISCLAIMS, AND CLIENT HEREBY EXPRESSLY WAIVES, ANY AND ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, 
WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY, WITH RESPECT TO THE PRODUCTS AND/OR SERVICES, AND/OR THE RESULTS OBTAINED FROM THEIR USE BY CLIENT AND/OR ITS USERS, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, 
ANY STATUTORY OR IMPLED WARRANTIES OF NON-INFRINGEMENT, MERCHANTIBILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. TEAM UIS HEREBY DISCLAIMS ANY AND ALL LIABILITY FOR THE USE OR PERFORMANCE 
OF THE SERVICES AND/OR PRODUCTS SELECTED BY THE PARTIES HEREBY EXPRESSLY ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE THAT THE UNIFORM COMMERCIAL CODE AND ANY SPECIFIC STATE ADOPTIONS THEREOF SHALL NOT 
GOVERN THE RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTIES UNDER THESE TERMS OR ANY ORDER CONFIRMATION.

11.  Liability Limitation. Specific performance shall not be available to Client as a remedy in connection with Team UIS’s providing of the Products and/or Services. Monetary damages against Team UIS shall be limited to the dollar amount 
charged to Client for the applicable order placed by Client and accepted by Team UIS for any of the Services and/or Products alleged to be the cause of any loss or damage, whether founded in contract, tort (including negligence), strict liability or 
otherwise, arising out of, or resulting from any cause whatsoever, including without limitation: (a) any order placed by Client and accepted by Team UIS or Team UIS’s performance or breach; or (b) the design, manufacture, delivery, sale, repair, 
replacement or use of any such Products. IN NO EVENT SHALL TEAM UIS BE LIABLE TO CLIENT FOR ANY SPECIAL, INDIRECT, EXEMPLARY, INCIDENTAL, PUNITIVE, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES (INCLUDING, WITHOUT 
LIMITATION, LOSS OF ANTICIPATED PROFITS, LOSS OF USE, LOSS OF REVENUE AND COST OF CAPITAL) ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THE AGREEMENT, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION THE ORDER CONFIRMATION, 
ANY RELATED PURCHASE ORDER, OR THE SERVICE AND/OR PRODUCTS. ANY AGREEMENT VARYING OR EXTENDING THE REMEDIES SPECIFICALLY STATED HEREIN WILL BE BINDING ON TEAM UIS ONLY WHEN 
SPECIFICALLY AGREED TO IN WRITING BY TEAM UIS AND SPECIFICALLY REFERENCING THIS SECTION.

12.  Insurance. Team UIS has in effect commercial general liability, umbrella, cyber, workers compensation, employer’s liability, and automobile insurance coverage. A certificate of insurance is available upon request. Customer shall have 
property and course of construction/builder’s risk insurance for the full value of the site including any improvements made pursuant to this Contract and will provide Team UIS with proof of insurance upon request.

13.  Termination. In the event that Client fails to perform any of its obligations stated in the Agreement, including the Order Confirmation or any related purchase order and fails to cure such breach within ten (10) days after receipt of written notice 
from the Team UIS specifying such breach, the Team UIS may at its option immediately terminate the Order Confirmation and/or any related purchase orders. Upon any such termination by Team UIS: (a) Team UIS shall be relieved of any further 
obligation to Client (including, without limitation, any obligation with respect to delivery or transition of supply); (b) Client shall be liable to Team UIS for the immediate payment of amounts then billed to date by Team UIS to Client; (c) Client shall 
purchase and pay Team UIS immediately for all raw materials, components, work in process and finished goods acquired by Team UIS in connection with the Order Confirmation and/or any related purchase orders; and (d) Client shall immediately 
reimburse Team UIS for all other loss, cost or expense of Team UIS as a result of the termination of the Order Confirmation or any related purchase order.

14.  Right of Entry. If applicable, Client shall provide for Team UIS’s right to enter the property owned by the Client and/or others in order for Team UIS to perform the Services in the Order Confirmation. The Client agrees, to the fullest extent 
permitted by law, to indemnify and hold Team UIS and his or her subconsultants harmless from any claim, liability or cost (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs of defense) for injury or loss arising or allegedly arising from procedures 
associated with testing or investigative activities or discovery of hazardous materials or suspected hazardous materials on said property.

9.  Design. Team UIS is not responsible for the design of the Products and will not, under any circumstances, have any warranty, indemnification or other liability or obligations with respect to Products to the extent related to or arising out of the 
design and/or specifications for such Products. Suggestions by Team UIS as to design, use and suitability of the Products are made in good faith; provided, however, Buyer assumes full responsibility for accepting and/or using such suggestions.

4. Payment Terms. Unless otherwise expressly stated in the Order Confirmation, all accounts are payable in U.S. currency thirty (30) days from the date of Team UIS’s invoice. Credit and delivery of Products shall be subject to Team UIS’s 
approval. The Client shall pay Team UIS for Services performed in accordance with the rates and charges set forth in the Order Confirmation. If the Client disputes any portion of an invoice, the Client shall notify Team UIS, in writing, within fourteen 
(14) calendar days of invoice receipt, identify the cause of the dispute, and pay when due any portion of the invoice not in dispute. Failure to provide such notification shall constitute acceptance of the invoice as submitted. If Client fails to pay 
undisputed invoiced amounts within the thirty (30) calendar days of the invoice date, Team UIS may at any time, without waiving any other claim against the Client (including lien rights) and without thereby incurring any liability to the Client, 
suspend or terminate the Order Confirmation. Client is prohibited from and shall not setoff against or recoup from any invoiced amounts due or to become due from Client or its affiliates any amounts due or to become due to Team UIS or its 
affiliates, whether arising under the Order Confirmation, any related purchase order or any other agreement.

5. Shipping and Delivery. All sales of Products are F.O.B. Team UIS’s plant unless otherwise specified in the Order Confirmation. Responsibility of Team UIS shall cease upon delivery to and receipt of the Products by a common carrier at which 
point Client will bear all risk of loss for the Products. Premium shipping expenses and/or other related expenses necessary to meet Client’s accelerated delivery schedules shall be the responsibility of Client. Deliveries of orders placed by Client 
may be changed, deferred or canceled only upon specific agreement in writing by Team UIS and Team UIS may condition such agreement upon Client’s assumption of liability and payment to Team UIS for: (a) a sum equal to the costs of work in 
process including costs accrued for labor and material; (b) any amount for which Team UIS is liable by reason of commitments made by Team UIS to its suppliers; and (c) any other loss, cost or expense of Team UIS as a result of such change, 
deferment or cancellation.

6. Proprietary Materials. Team UIS shall have and retain all rights, title and interest, including all intellectual property rights, in and to all Products, Services and associated materials, including, without limitation, all related reports, specifications, 
designs and any other property, tangible or intangible (including software and SaaS Services), furnished by Team UIS in connection with or under the applicable Order Confirmation (“Proprietary Materials”). No Proprietary Materials created by 
Team UIS in connection with an Order Confirmation or any related purchase order shall be considered “works made for hire” as that term is used in connection with the U.S. Copyright Act.

7. Licenses. Team UIS does not grant to Client any license with respect to the Products, and any such license terms with respect to the Products shall be governed solely by the licenses, if any, provided solely by the third-party manufactures of 
such products.

8. SaaS Services. A. Team UIS will provide Client with the SaaS Services, and allow Authorized Users to access the SaaS Services in connection with Client’s use of the SaaS Services, as set forth in the applicable Order Confirmation. Prior to 
obtaining access to the SaaS Services, Client shall ensure that Authorized Users are registered in the SaaS Services with a unique User ID and a unique password. For purposes of this Agreement, “Authorized Users” means individuals who are 
authorized to use the SaaS Services pursuant to this Agreement or as otherwise defined, restricted or limited in an Order Confirmation, for whom subscriptions to SaaS Services have been procured, and who have been supplied user identifications 
and passwords by Client (or by Team UIS at Client’s request). Authorized Users may include Clients’ employees and Clients’ agents and third-party contractors and their employees authorized by Client and/or approved by Team UIS to access the 
SaaS Services. B. Client is responsible for all activities conducted under its Authorized User logins and for its Authorized Users’ compliance with this Agreement. Authorized Users may only use the SaaS Services during the term of the applicable 
Order Confirmation. C. Except as otherwise explicitly provided in this Agreement, Client and its Authorized Users will not, and will not permit third parties to: (a) use the SaaS Services except as expressly authorized in this Agreement; (b) access or 
use the SaaS Services to circumvent or exceed the applicable restrictions; (c) use any device, software, or routine that interferes or disrupts any application, function, or use of the SaaS Services; (d) copy, modify, translate, transmit, reproduce, 
distribute, republish, display, frame, or mirror the SaaS Services, except as permitted by this Agreement; (e) decompile, reverse-compile, disassemble, reverse-engineer or otherwise reduce to human-perceivable form all or any part of the SaaS 
Services or any part of the SaaS Services or otherwise attempt to discover any source code or create derivative works of the SaaS Services or any part of the SaaS Services; (f) rent, lease, resell, sublicense, or otherwise permit third parties to 
access or use the SaaS Services; (g) use the SaaS Services to provide services to third parties (e.g., as a service bureau or to otherwise provide data processing services to third parties); (h) circumvent or disable any security or other 
technological features or measures of any SaaS Services or any part of the SaaS Services; (i) use the SaaS Services to build a similar or competitive product or service; (j) create user accounts under false or fraudulent pretenses; (k) except as 
provided in an Order Confirmation, create shared or generic identifications and passwords to any SaaS Services; (l) use the SaaS Services in a manner that is contrary to applicable law or in violation of any third party rights of privacy or intellectual 
property rights; (m) use the SaaS Services to send or store viruses, worms, time bombs, trojan horses, or other harmful or malicious code, files, scripts, agents or programs; (n) access the SaaS Services for purposes of monitoring its availability, 
performance or functionality, or for any other benchmarking or competitive purposes; (o) remove, alter or obscure any of the intellectual property rights notice(s) or restrictive legend(s) embedded in or that Team UIS otherwise provides with the 
SaaS Services; (p) interfere with or disrupt the integrity or performance of the SaaS Services; or (q) obtain unauthorized access to the SaaS Services (including without limitation permitting access to or use of the SaaS Services via another system 
or tool, the primary effect of which is to enable input of requests or transactions by other than Authorized Users). D. Client shall at all times: (a) provide Team UIS with good faith cooperation and access to such information, facilities, and equipment 
as may be reasonably required by Team UIS in order to provide the SaaS Services, including, but not limited to, providing Client materials and security access, information, and software interfaces to Client’s business applications; (b) provide such 
personnel assistance as may be reasonably requested by Team UIS from time to time; and (c) carry out in a timely manner all other Client responsibilities set forth in this Agreement. In the event of any delay in Client’s performance of any of the 
obligations set forth in (a), (b) or (c), or any other delays caused by Client, Team UIS may adjust its performance as reasonably necessary to account for such delays.

E. Client is responsible for complying with any applicable laws relating to its or any Authorized User’s use of the SaaS Services including, without limitation, all applicable privacy, electronic communications and data protection laws, rules, 
regulations, and regulatory guidelines, as well as any applicable self-regulatory guidelines. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Client is solely responsible for: (a) ensuring that Client and Team UIS, acting on Client’s behalf, have the 
right to collect, use and share Client any personal data and related materials via the SaaS Services; and (b) providing adequate notice to, and obtaining any necessary consents as required under applicable laws, with respect to the Client materials 
and Client intellectual property collected, used and shared by Client, or by Team UIS on Client’s behalf, via the SaaS Services. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, Client or any Authorized User shall not use the SaaS Services to 
collect, upload, retrieve, transmit, send, or store (i) any information that could directly identify a person, including, without limitation, government issued ID numbers, individual medical or health information (including protected health information 
under HIPAA), individual financial information, an individual’s name (last name plus first name or first initial), or birth date; (ii) security codes, passwords, credit or debit card numbers; (iii) any data that falls under the sensitive or special data 
definitions of any applicable privacy law or self-regulatory principle; or (iv) any data collected from sites directed to children under the age of sixteen (16) or from children whose age Client knows to be under sixteen (16) in violation pf applicable 
law. Team UIS and its designees shall have the right (but not the obligation) in their sole discretion to refuse or remove any Client materials or Client intellectual property that violate any of the terms of this Agreement or any applicable law. F. In 
connection with the operation of the SaaS Services, Team UIS may collect and analyze data in aggregate and anonymous form with respect to the use and effectiveness of the SaaS Services (the “Aggregate Data”). Client hereby irrevocably 
authorizes Team UIS to collect data in an aggregate and anonymous form for supporting, improving, and marketing the SaaS Services. Customer acknowledges and agrees that Team UIS will exclusively own all right, title, and interest in and to all 
Aggregate Data and other analytics and output data generated or provided by Team UIS or the SaaS Services. G. Client or Authorized Users providing any suggestions, enhancement requests, recommendations, corrections or other feedback 
(collectively, “Feedback”) is strictly voluntary. If Client of any Authorized User provides any Feedback to Team UIS, orally or in writing, Client hereby grants to Team UIS and its affiliates a worldwide, perpetual, irrevocable, royalty-free license to use 
and incorporate into the SaaS Services any Feedback. H. Team UIS may immediately suspend the SaaS Services if Team UIS reasonably determines that the Client is not materially complying with this Agreement, or Client is using the SaaS 
Services in a manner that could cause damage to Team UIS’s business or reputation, or otherwise reflect unfavorably upon Team UIS, its affiliates, or its partners. Team UIS shall notify the Client promptly following any such suspension taking 
effect.

Team UIS
2290 Bishop Circle East
Dexter, MI  48130
(734) 424-1200 2 of 3

Utilities Instrumentation Service
UIS SCADA

UIS Renewable Power
Utilities Instrumentation Service-Ohio



30 5.00%
15 7.50%
7 10.00%
3 15.00%

16.  Governing law.  The contract shall be governed by the laws of Michigan

17.  Employee Solicitation. Employee Solicitation. Client agrees not to hire, attempt to hire, or retain as consultants or otherwise, employees and/or consultants of Team UIS directly or through a third-party entity during the employment or 
consulting period and for a period of one (1) year subsequent to the employee’s and/or consultant’s last day of work for Team UIS regardless of the circumstances surrounding employee’s cause of termination of employment.

18.  Indemnification. Client holds harmless, indemnifies, and will defend Team UIS and its related or affiliated entities including their respective officers, agents and employees against any claims, liabilities, expenses, charges, fines and related 
losses including attorney's fees and expenses to the extent directly or indirectly caused by Client's (including those acting on behalf of Client) (a) negligent acts of omissions and involving property damage or bodily injury; (b) breach of the terms of 
the Agreement between the parties; or (c) violation of applicable law. This provision shall apply even if there is concurrent negligence but shall not apply to property damage or bodily injury arising solely from Team UIS's negligence. Liability per 
above is not limited by limits of workers compensation coverage.

19.  Survival/Entire Agreement/Waiver/Applicable Laws. These Terms shall survive and continue in full force and effect following the expiration, cancellation or termination of an Order Confirmation and any related purchase order. The Order 
Confirmation, including these Terms and any other attachments, exhibits or supplements specifically referenced in the Order Confirmation, constitutes the entire agreement between Team UIS and Client with respect to the matters contained in the 
Order Confirmation and supersedes all prior oral or written representations and agreements. Except as otherwise provided in these Terms, the Order Confirmation may only be modified by a written agreement signed by Team UIS. Waiver by 
Team UIS of any of the terms or conditions of the Order Confirmation shall be effective only if in writing and signed by Team UIS, and shall not constitute a waiver of such terms as to any subsequent events or conditions, whether similar or 
dissimilar. No course of dealing or custom in the trade shall constitute a modification or waiver by Team UIS of any right. This Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of Michigan, except for its choice of laws provisions.

20. Electronic Signature.  THE CONTRACT MAY BE SIGNED OR ACCEPTED ELECTRONICALLY, CONVEYING CUSTOMER’S ACCEPTANCE.  COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONTRACT THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS INCLUDING, BUT 
NOT LIMITED TO, EMAIL ACKOWLEDGEMENT, AND CUSTOMER’S ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE WILL BE DEEMED VALID AND BINDING.   IF CUSTOMER CONTESTS THE VALIDITY OF THE CONTRACT BASED ON THE MEANS OF 
ELECTRONIC OR OTHER FORM OF EXECUTION OR ACCEPTANCE BY THE PARTIES AND THE CONTRACT IS HELD BY A COURT OR ARBITRATOR TO BE VALID, THE CUSTOMER SHALL PAY THE ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND 
EXPENSES OF TEAM UIS ARISING FROM THE CUSTOMER’S CONTEST OF THE CONTRACT’S VALIDITY.

21. Escalation.  Any material that has been quoted as a part of this project is calculated based upon current prices.  The market for these materials is volatile, and sudden price increases could occur.  Team UIS agrees to use its best efforts to 
obtain the lowest prices price possible from our suppliers.  However, should there be an increase in the price of materials that are purchased after the execution of contract Team UIS reserves the right to adjust the contract for the increase.  Team 
UIS will provide timely written notice to the Client if this were to occur.

22. Postponement.  In the event that the Client postpones the project, Team UIS reserves the right to charge the Client for costs incurred that will cause the project to exceed the original cost estimate.  Team UIS will provide timely written notice to 
the Client if this were to occur.

23. Cancellation.  In the event that the Client cancels the work once the work has been scheduled by Team UIS, Team UIS reserves the right to charge the Client as follows:

# of Days Prior to
Scheduled Work

Cancellation Fee
(% of Contract)

15.  Force Majeure. Team UIS shall not be liable for any delay or failure to perform any obligation under this Agreement if such delay or failure is caused by circumstances beyond its reasonable control, including, without limitation, acts of God or 
public authority, riots or other public disturbances, labor disputes of any kind, electrical or power outages, utilities or telecommunications failures, earthquake, storms or other elements of nature, acts or orders of government, pandemics, acts of 
terrorism or war, or acts by third parties, failure of Client to provide required information, or the change in cost or availability of raw materials, components or services based on market conditions, supplier actions or contract disputes (“Force 
Majeure Event”). During a Force Majeure Event, Team UIS’s obligations under the Order Confirmation and any related purchase order shall be suspended and Team UIS shall not have any obligation to provide Client with Products or Services from 
other sources or to pay or reimburse Client for any additional costs to Client of obtaining substitute Products or Services, nor shall Team UIS be liable for any damages to Client arising from or related to a Force Majeure Event.

Team UIS
2290 Bishop Circle East
Dexter, MI  48130
(734) 424-1200 3 of 3

Utilities Instrumentation Service
UIS SCADA

UIS Renewable Power
Utilities Instrumentation Service-Ohio



Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Karen Lovejoy Roe 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

LaResha Thornton 

MEMORANDUM 

To:      Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees 

From:  Brenda Stumbo, Township Supervisor 

Date:   April 28, 2025 

RE:     Request to renew agreement with the Washtenaw County Water Resource 
Commissioner (WCWRC) for Vermin Management Services for up to $150,000 
budgeted from account 101.445-818.025, contingent on budget amendment 

On February 1, 2022, The Board of Trustees (BOT) approved a contract with the WCWRC for 
Vermin abatement in an amount up to $150,000. This amount has been met, and the Supervisor’s 
Office recommends renewing this program. We receive frequent calls from residents regarding 
vermin activity and we would like to continue to aggressively tackle this community stabilization 
issue. 

With the retirement of Evan Pratt, the newly elected Water Resource Commissioner, Gretchen 
Driskell and Chief Deputy Harry Sheehan will continue to provide updates on the vermin activity 
and findings. The updates are written reports, or more recently, video updates. 

Attached please find the proposed contract and map. Thank you for your consideration and 
please let us know if you have any questions regarding the continuance of the Vermin abatement 
program in Ypsilanti Township. 



AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE WASHTENAW COUNTY WATER RESOURCES COMMISSIONER 

AND 
THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
FOR VERMIN MANAGEMENT SERVICES 

 
This Agreement (“Agreement”), is made and entered into on the _6TH  of May, 2025, by and between the 
Washtenaw County Water Resources Commissioner’s Office (“WCWRC”), and the Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti (“Township”), a Michigan municipal corporation, for the purpose of providing vermin 
management services (“Services”).   
 
The purpose of the Services is to assist in management of issues affecting the Public Health, Safety and 
Welfare of the Township and its residents.  
 
Relevant details of the Program are set forth in Exhibits A and B, which are attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference.  The services are broken into two different categories based on 
statutory authority of the WCWRC in providing Services. 
 
Whereas, the Township has a long-standing history of successful collaboration with the WCWRC; and 
 
Whereas, it will be beneficial to all parties to continue to collaborate on vermin management; and 
 
Whereas, prior (amended) Agreements for these services have been completed; and 
 
Whereas, vermin issues remain a priority for the Township, resulting in an increased level of service and 
work effort desired by the Township from the WCWRC; and 
 
Whereas, WCWRC has statutory authority through PA 40 of 1956 (the Drain Code) to “purify” the flow of 
water in legally established County drains but requires Agreement by the Township to furnish Services not 
specifically included or otherwise allowed in the Drain Code; and 
 
Whereas, past collaboration has determined that vermin management issues require a collaborative 
effort of Community Standards enforcement, public outreach to affected neighborhoods and residents, 
adequate refuse and debris management services and infrastructure, rodent baiting in storm drains 
and/or sewers, and land-based rodent baiting or burrow gassing in areas of public or private property; 
and 
 
Whereas, Township and WCWRC officials have determined that a holistic program of vermin management 
requires a collaborative effort as noted in the paragraph above; and 
 
Whereas, the WCWRC agrees to contract on behalf of the Township for rodent baiting services in storm 
drains under the authority of the Drain Code AND other areas as requested by the Township on an ongoing 
basis; and 
 
Whereas, the Township has budgeted $150,000 for 2025 for an aggressive program due to the extent of 
issues found to date; and  
 



2 

Whereas, WCWRC will continue to provide regular updates and service area maps to Township staff and 
the Supervisor for rodent baiting and/or related program costs performed under authority of both the 
Drain Code as well as other areas specified herein; and 
 
Whereas, Township and WCWRC officials have agreed that the Township will provide necessary 
Community Standards and outreach services (similar to past vermin control programs) as determined 
necessary by the Township; and  
 
Whereas, WCWRC will coordinate as needed with Washtenaw County Department of Public Health 
(WCDPH) to provide electronic copies of any informational flyers for distribution to residents by the 
Township as needed to support collaborative efforts; and  
 
Whereas, Exhibit B is provided to illustrate the need and focus areas for the Services provided and is not 
intended to limit areas for providing Services; and 
 
Whereas, Exhibit B provides a depiction of both current reported vermin sightings and other areas of 
future investigation desired within the Township, Exhibit B is provided to illustrate the need and initial 
focus areas for the Services provided; and 
 
Whereas, Township and WCWRC officials have agreed that regular updates will be provided to evaluate 
program effectiveness and incorporate adjustments to address new or changing program needs within 
the program budget and/or timeframe specified herein; and  
 
Whereas, Township and WCWRC officials fully understand that this new Agreement is a continuation of 
services that can be renewed annually by consent of both parties, and terminated by either party by giving 
30 days notice; and 
 
Whereas, given the persistence of vermin in other communities, Township and WCWRC officials anticipate 
and fully understand the program will in all likelihood result in a recommendation for a longer-term 
program and recommended program funding amounts continuing program experiences; and 
 
Whereas, the primary program goals are to: 

1. Reduce the frequency of vermin activity  
2. Determine a cost-effective “maintenance level” of longer-term baiting after initial aggressive 

baiting;  
 
Therefore, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual undertakings of the parties and in 
conformity with applicable law, the Township and the WCWRC agree:  
 

1. The Washtenaw County Water Resources Commissioner’s Office shall provide resources and 
expertise required to administer the Services in collaboration with the Township based on Exhibits 
A, B, and any mutually agreed upon adjustments during implementation of Services. 
 

2. The duration of this Agreement shall be at the discretion both parties, or “Good Until Cancelled” 
with 30-days notice.   
 



3 

3. The Township shall make payments for work noted in Exhibit A, Section 1 based on annual 
December invoices in accordance with regular payment procedures for annual invoices of work 
performed on legally established County Drains.   
 

4. The Township shall make payments for work noted in Exhibit A, Section 2 based on monthly 
invoices for Services provided in areas outside of legally established County Drains.  The WCWRC 
will be providing Section 2 services based on the authority of this Agreement due to the 
efficiencies of bundling Section 2 and Section 1 services in a single vendor contract with a single 
point of contact.   
 

5. Either party may terminate this agreement with 30-day notification with or without cause.  If 
vendor contracts allow a shorter timeframe for vendor termination without cause, the WCWRC 
shall take this into consideration with any Township request to terminate some or all Services. 
 

6. The WCWRC assumes no additional liability beyond that normally accorded for work on public 
drains.  WCWRC staff will not enter private property or be on-site providing services. The 
contracted vendor providing the Services will be the only entity with staff entering the work areas 
shown in Exhibit B or as otherwise mutually determined. 
 

7. Parties agree that this contract may be amended administratively as needed to extend the 
allowable timeframe and/or reduce the monthly expenditures. 
 

8. Parties agree that any amendment to increase monthly charges at any time must be approved by 
the Township Board. 
 

And Whereas, based on the terms and information provided above the Township Board may wish to 
authorize additional efforts; 
 
Be It Therefore Resolved, that the terms of this Agreement are hereby modified to allow continued 
vermin control services for a total amount not to exceed $150,000. 

 
Each of the persons signing this Agreement represents and warrants that he or she has authority to sign 
this Agreement on behalf of the Washtenaw County Water Resources Commissioner or the Charter 
Township of Ypsilanti, respectively. 
 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI     WCWRC    
 
By: ______________________________            By:     _______________________________ 
 Brenda Stumbo                     (DATE)            Gretchen Driskell       (DATE)
 Township Supervisor     Water Resources Commissioner 
 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI       
 
By: ______________________________            
 Debra A. Swanson                    (DATE)              
 Township Clerk  
 
 



4 

 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
For the duration of this agreement, the WCWRC will contract with a pest control vendor for services in 
areas agreed to by the Township and WCWRC on an ongoing basis, not to exceed billing totals of $150,000. 
It is anticipated that this amount will be adequate for the duration of 2025 and every year thereafter until 
this agreement is terminated by either party.  The intent of this agreement is also to allow flexibility 
between Section 1 and Section 2 costs which must be tracked separately as described in the Agreement. 
 
Section 1 
 
WCWRC will contract with a pest control vendor for services to bait within legally established County 
Drainage structures or other structures where the presence of vermin would also impact legally 
established County Drainage structures. 
 
Section 2 
 
WCWRC will contract with a pest control vendor for services to bait in other areas as needed. 
 
 

 



Location Map

N

The information contained in this cadastral
map is used to locate, identify and inventory
parcels of land in Washtenaw County for
appraisal and taxing purposes only and is not
to be construed as a "survey description."
The information is provided with the understanding
 that the conclusions drawn from such information
are solely the responsibility of the user.
Any assumption of legal status of this data
is hereby disclaimed.

NOTE: PARCELS MAY NOT BE TO SCALE

Geographic
Information
System

¬«17

£¤12

R
aw

sonville
R

d

E Cross St

S

Grove St

W
iard R

d
W

iard
R

d

Grove Rd

Tyler Rd

Airport Dr

S
 H

ar
ris

 R
d

Holmes Rd

M
cG

re
go

r 
R

d

North
St

SpinnakerW
ay

G
le

n
w

o
o

d
 A

ve

Lakeview Ave

Holmes
Rd

Emmet St

Lagoon
Dr

E
lm

 S
t

N
a

n
cy

S
t

Woods

Dr

Raintree

Dr

Davis St

F
ir

st A
ve

Railroad St

O
re

g
o

n
 S

t

N
 R

iv
e

r 
S

t

Ecorse

Rd

HarryS
t

H
a

ye
s 

S
t

A
irp

or
t

In
du

st
ria

l
D

r

W
o

o
d

g
le

n
 A

ve

H
ig

h
R

id
g

e
D

r

R
a

w
so

n
vi

lle
R

d

Towner St

Tyler Rd

Morris
St

E
m

e
ri

ck
S

t

State St

B
ig

P
in

e
D

r

Village
Ln

E
u

g
e

n
e

 S
t

St
Johns

St

M
cC

a
rt

n
e

y
A

ve

D
e

vo
n

sh
ir

e
S

t

Russell St

O
n

a
n

d
a

g
a

S
t

M
ich

a
e

l

D
r

S
ha

re

Ave

N
a

sh
 A

ve

B
ell

S
t

Duncan
Ave

W
o

o
d

a
le

A
ve

Young
St

B
rooks

S
t

D
e

so
to

 A
ve

M
id

w
a

y 
S

t

Coolidge Rd

Bria
rb

ro
ok Dr

Maple St

G
eo

rg
in

a
Dr

A
n

n
 S

t

State St

N
P

a
rk

S
tGrant

St

B
a

lla
rd

 S
t

N
A

d
a

m
s

S
t

Hull St

S
m

ith
 S

t

C
asler

S
t

N
 R

iv
e

r 
S

t

Valley View Dr

Mollie
St

N
G

ro
ve

S
t

Dorothy
St

N
ew

Meadow

D
r

Minion
St

Chevrolet St

Pa
rk

w
oo

d
Av

e

Jarvis St

H
u

n
t

P
l

Melvin
St

W
en

de
ll

Ave
Foley

Ave

E
ve

ly
n

A
veRuth

Ave

M
ary Catherine St

George
Ave

Oak
St

S S
u

m
m

it
S

t

Eileen
Ave

Oak St

Conway

Ave

Frederick

St

Service
Dr

O
sb

a
n

d
 S

t

C
h

a
rl

e
s 

S
t

O
rchard

S
t

Hill

St

Marcus
St

Juneau

Rd

Farm

Ln

Janet
St Clarita

St

Andrea St

Russell
St

JayA
ve

Knowles St

I9
4

Ser
vi

ce
R

d

C
ol

em
an

S
t

H
unter

A
ve

L
e

st
e

r 
A

ve

James LHartPkwy

Tyler
Rd

H
o

lli
s 

A
ve

Seneca
St

N
 N

o
rm

a
l S

t

L
o

ri
S

t

A
rn

e
t

S
t

David

Ave

Davis St

S
econd

S
t

Monroe St

R
o

se
w

o
o

d
A

ve

R
ice S

t

E
m

e
rick S

t

E Forest

Ave

O
a

kla
w

n
 A

ve

N
M

o
h

a
w

k
A

ve

Lake Crest
Dr

Buffalo St

E
 G

ra
n

d
 B

lvd

R
u

e
D

e
a

u
ville

B
lvd

P
e

rr
in

 S
t

A
pplew

ood

D
r

E
 G

ra
n

d
B

lv
d

Morris
St

Harm
on

St

S
e

a
ve

r
D

r

Joe Hall Dr

Olive
St

High
St

Woodward
St

W
o

o
d

a
le

A
ve

S
P

a
sa

d
e

n
a

A
ve

Watling

St

G
re

e
n

la
w

n
 S

t

C
a

ry
D

r

Madison

St

Jefferson
St

C
h

a
rl

e
s

S
t

Village
Ln

S
w

e
e

t 
R

d

F
o

x
A

ve

W
o

o
d

la
w

n
 A

ve

B
e

ve
rly S

t

L
a

m
a

y
A

ve

Shirley Dr

D
a

ko
ta

A
ve

L
e

vo
n

a
S

t

Wismer St

Je
ro

m
e

 A
ve

B
a

g
le

y 
A

ve

W
orden

S
t

Id
e

 A
ve

Woburn Dr

G
a

u
lt

D
r

S
co

tt
C

t

A
lle

n
 A

ve

N
o

rr
is

 S
t

D
o

n
s

D
r

M
cG

re
g

o
r

R
d

Ford
St

JefferyS
t

Maplewood
Ave

Parkwood Ave

Hawthorne Ave

D
w

ig
h

t
S

t S
ta

n
le

y
S

t

H
e

m
p

h
ill

S
t

T
w

in
To

w
e

rs
S

t

M
o

e
lle

r A
ve

B
ra

d
le

y A
ve

C
a

m
p

b
e

ll 
A

ve

G
ates

A
ve

W
in

g
a

te
B

lvd

Pearl
St

O
u

te
r 

L
n

S
W

ia
rd

Ware
Ct

F
o

re
st

C
t

K
a

n
sa

s
A

ve

P
e

rry
S

t C
a

ld
e

r
S

t

Shelly
St

C
a

rv
e

r
A

ve

E
m

e
rso

n
 A

ve

M
id

d
le

D
r

F
rank

D
aniels

D
r

N
O

u
te

r
L

n

B
o

rg
st

ro
m

A
ve

D
u

b
ie

A
ve

Mill Ln

W
a

tso
n

S
t

W
h

a
rto

n
S

t

Martin
Pl

I94
Service

Dr

Z
e

p
h

yr
S

t

C
h

id
e

st
e

r
S

t

C
a

d
illa

c
S

t

B
u

ick
A

ve
Je

ff S
t

M
a

in
 A

ve

S
e

co
n

d
 S

t

O
h

io
 S

t

Crestwood
Ave

W
ia

rd
 R

d

O
sw

eg
o

S
t

Ly
n

n
e

A
ve

S
un

se
t

T
rl

Wildwood St

SnowRd

S
p

e
n

ce
r L

n

V
e

te
ra

n
s

M
e

m
o

ri
a

lD
r

W
a

tso
n

S
t

Cliffs

Dr

Kalitta

Ct

§̈¦94
§̈¦94

3

1
2

4

Not to scale

EXHIBIT B
Vermin Treatment Areas

Map date 4/8/25



Page 1 of 4 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Karen Lovejoy Roe 
LaResha Thornton 

To: Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 

From: Belinda Kingsley, Community Compliance Director 

Re: Request authorization to initiate Circuit Court litigation to abate a public 
nuisance violation at a property identified as  958 Ecorse Road; funded in 
account 101-729-801.023. 

Date: April 30, 2025 

The Ypsilanti Township Ordinance Department has investigated a public nuisance violation at 
958 Ecorse Road.  Authorization by the Board of Trustees is requested to abate said violation by 
initiating Circuit Court litigation. 

958 Ecorse Road 



 

Page 2 of 4 
 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Karen Lovejoy Roe 
LaResha Thornton 

 
The property identified as 958 Ecorse Rd. is located on the south side of Ecorse, west of 
Oaklawn, in a NC – Neighborhood Corridor zone.  It is currently owned by Jaamiah Ajax USA, 
Inc. and was previously owned by the corporation’s Resident Agent, Abdul Majid Khan. The 
property was transferred from Mr. Khan to the corporation in 2016.  Mr. Khan purchased the 
property in a foreclosure sale for $19,900 on December 3, 2008.  
 
There has been an overwhelming multitude of Ordinance violations at this address since it was 
purchased by Mr. Khan.  In the fifteen years of Mr. Khan’s ownership, the only time that the 
Township did not mow this property was from 2016 – 2018.  Most years the mowing has been 
done numerous times during the growing season.  This is not a service we provide for residents, 
it is a violation, but Mr. Khan has been content to have us provide lawn care services for his 
property.  It is a drain on Township resources to have officers repeatedly inspect a property and 
arrange for our contract mowing company to perform the mowing.    
 
There have also been many other violations cited, including blight, an unsecured structure and 
solid waste.  Trash accumulation, furniture, and other items of blight have accumulated outside 
of the house at different times over the years, requiring enforcement action. 
 
The most challenging violation that we have encountered is the failure or refusal to register as a 
rental or as a vacant structure.  The property owner is unresponsive when asked to register, 
and generally either cancels inspections, or does not show up to provide access.  An 
Administrative Search Warrant was executed in September 2014, while the house was vacant, 
and the interior and exterior conditions were documented in a 61 page Notice of Violation – 
Condemnation.  The violations included failed roof/gutter systems, boarded up windows, an 
unsafe fence on the roof porch, mold, electrical system hazards, plumbing, furnace and hot 
water heater failures, along with unsanitary conditions.  Based on our records it appears that 
the property was brought into compliance in December 2015. 
 
The pattern of the Township attempting to determine if the house is vacant or rented has 
continued over the years, without cooperation from the property owner.  In 2020 he stated 
that the house is being used for a non-profit business, however it has continued to appear to be 
vacant and has deteriorated without maintenance being performed.  In December 2024, while 
attempting to gain access for a vacant structure inspection, the property owner stated that he 
lives in the house!   
 
A Default Judgment was entered on April 3, 2025, by the District Court for failing to appear in 
Court on the citation issued for not registering a vacant structure.  On April 8, 2025, our 
Ordinance Administrator contacted the property owner after learning that YCUA shut off the 
water due to constant running water, likely from a broken pipe.  Although Mr. Khan stated that 



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Karen Lovejoy Roe 
LaResha Thornton 

he lived in the house three months prior, he was not aware of the shut off.  During this phone 
conversation he stated that he doesn’t stay in the house, and that they use it for storage of 
religious materials that they periodically retrieve.  He also stated that they use it as an office 
and stay in a hotel when they are in the area. This is interesting because he has provided us 
with an address on Maplewood as his residence and mailing address.   
 
It is apparent that the property owner is not honest and truthful with the Township regarding 
the use of the property.  We believe it to be vacant, and it has become a source of blight in the 
community due to the lack of maintenance on the interior and exterior.  Therefore, we are 
requesting approval to initiate Circuit Court litigation to obtain a court order requiring 
compliance or demolition.  
   
Thank you for your consideration and your continued support for our public nuisance 
abatement efforts. 
 
 

 



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Karen Lovejoy Roe 
LaResha Thornton 

 

 
 
 
 
 



Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Karen Lovejoy Roe 
LaResha Thornton 

To: Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 

From: Belinda Kingsley, Community Compliance Director 

Re: Request authorization to initiate Circuit Court litigation to abate a public 
nuisance violation at a property identified as 1521 Holmes Rd; funded in 
account 101-729-801.023. 

Date: April 30, 2025 

The Ypsilanti Township Ordinance Department has investigated a public nuisance violation at 
1521 Holmes Road.  Authorization is requested to abate said violation by initiating Circuit Court 
litigation. 

1521 Holmes Road 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Karen Lovejoy Roe 
LaResha Thornton 

The property identified as 1521 Holmes Rd. is located on the northeast corner of Holmes and N 
Ford Blvd, south of E Clark Rd, in an NB – Neighborhood Business zone.  It is owned by Holmes 
Road Enterprise LLC, with Fadi Kajy of Sylvan Lake, MI listed as the Resident Agent.  Holmes 
Road Enterprise LLC purchased the property in 2016 and continued the existing gas 
station/convenience store use.  
 
In 2019, the Township initiated litigation against Holmes Road Enterprise LLC regarding the 
exterior conditions of the property.  On December 5, 2019, the parties entered into a Stipulated 
Order requiring the owner to keep the property free from exterior blight and maintained in 
conformity with the requirements of the Township’s Fire Marshall.  Since that time there have 
been countless violations of the Order, including many violations not covered by the existing 
Order. 
 
There have been numerous issues with Liquor Control Commission inspections performed by 
Township Ordinance Officers, including an LCC hearing held in 2023 based on violations 
observed during an inspection and submitted to the State of Michigan.  At the time of the LCC 
inspection in 2023, there were also a large number of fire code violations, building code 
violations and ordinance violations cited.  The Fire Marshall condemned the building and 
required the business to be closed until the necessary fire code repairs and violations were 
resolved.   
 
After the fire code violations were resolved, the business was permitted to re-open in 2023. 
Unfortunately, multiple ordinance violations were not resolved and continue to exist despite 
repeated notifications to the property owner.  Specifically, there is an issue with the roof of the 
building that has caused water damage inside, including the collapse of sections of ceiling tiles 
and extensive water damage to other tiles.  The dumpster enclosure is damaged beyond repair, 
partially due to a fire in the dumpster in 2023.  Additionally, there are structural issues with the 
building, such as holes in the foundation, an ongoing issue with sanitation on the interior and 
blight on the exterior of the building, along with unmaintained vegetation.  
 
This property owner does not voluntarily comply with bringing the site into compliance without 
drastic measures, such as being shut down by the Fire Marshall.  The Ordinance Department 
has requested that the dumpster enclosure be replaced since 2023, trash cans be maintained 
(installed and emptied) in the parking lot, a roof inspection and repair be performed by a 
licensed contractor and the overall sanitation of the inside and outside of the building be 
brought up to standards.  Additionally, the property owner needs to remain compliant with the 
State of Michigan LCC requirements by discontinuing the sale of loose cigarettes and selling 
drug paraphernalia, both of which are present during each LCC inspection performed.   
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Karen Lovejoy Roe 
LaResha Thornton 

At this time, we have devoted enough resources in an effort to gain compliance and are 
requesting approval to initiate Circuit Court litigation to obtain a permanent Order requiring 
compliance for the interior of the building and exterior of the property.  
   
Thank you for your consideration and your continued support for our public nuisance 
abatement efforts. 
 

 
 

 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Karen Lovejoy Roe 
LaResha Thornton 

 

 
 

 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Karen Lovejoy Roe 
LaResha Thornton 

 

 
 

 



Page 1 of 11 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Karen Lovejoy Roe 
LaResha Thornton 

To: Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 

From: Belinda Kingsley, Community Compliance Director 

Re: Request authorization to initiate Circuit Court litigation to abate a public 
nuisance violation at a property identified as  6016 Merritt Road; funded in 
account 101-729-801.023. 

Date: April 30, 2025 

The Ypsilanti Township Ordinance Department has investigated a public nuisance violation at 
6016 Merritt Road.  Authorization by the Board of Trustees is requested to abate said violation 
by initiating Circuit Court litigation. 

6016 Merritt Road 



 

Page 2 of 11 
 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Karen Lovejoy Roe 
LaResha Thornton 

The property identified as 6016 Merritt Rd. is a ten-acre parcel located on the south side of 
Merritt Rd, west of Stony Creek Rd, in an R-1 – One Family Residential zone.  It is owned by 
Daniel and Ancuta Jurca and was purchased in 2021.  The property contains a single-family 
home that was built in 2021.  
 
Prior to constructing their single-family home, the Township received complaints from 
neighbors that the property owners installed a driveway and used asphalt millings to create a 
parking area to store semi-trucks, semi-trailers, towing vehicles and other vehicles, in violation 
of the Township’s Zoning Ordinance.  The noise and fumes from idling semi-trucks were also 
unacceptable to them on their residential properties. This activity was confirmed, and the 
property owner was advised by the former Planning Director that semi-truck parking and 
storage of vehicles on this site is not permitted.  Additionally, Mr. Jurca was advised that 
asphalt millings are not a permitted paving material in the Township.  
 
Trucks continued to deliver asphalt millings to the property and the driveway was constructed 
with approximately 12” of millings.  As can be seen in the attached photos, there is also a large 
pile of millings remaining on the site today.  Asphalt millings are harmful to the environment 
because they contain toxic substances such as petroleum products, lead, solvents and other 
heavy metals, especially if they come from industrial areas or heavily trafficked roadways.  
There is potential health issues associated with contact with the millings, along with the 
environmental concerns when the contaminants leach into the soil and water sources.  This 
property is in an area of the Township that is dependent on well water. 
 
The site was partially brought into compliance during the home building process, except for the 
asphalt millings. In October of 2024 the Township received complaints from neighbors 
regarding the truck parking, noise, exhaust fumes, blight and millings. Ordinance Administrator 
Robert Kelch  and Staff Planner Lauren Doppke visited the property and unsuccessfully 
attempted to make contact with the owner. The property owner came to the township offices 
and talked to the Planning Coordinator, who advised him of the complaints received and the 
violations noted during the recent visit. Mr. Jurca’s response was that he would not be making 
the requested changes to his property.   A Notice of Violation (NOV) was issued to the property 
owner on October 16, 2024, detailing the violations noted: 
 
1.  Stockpiling of materials is not compliant with Sec. 1157, Outdoor Storage, of the Zoning 

Ordinance. Also, unconsolidated debris, such as wood, is creating a blighted condition, and 
needs to be cleaned up. The blighted condition is non-compliant with Chapter 26, Article II, 
Blight, of the Township Code. 

2.  Driveway materials. Asphalt millings are not a permitted driveway material. Per the 
Township’s Engineering Standards and Design specifications, Driveway material shall be 



 

Page 3 of 11 
 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Karen Lovejoy Roe 
LaResha Thornton 

equal to or better than the road surface the driveway is connected to. Merritt Road is paved 
which means your driveway must be paved. 

3. During your visit to the Township Hall, you stated that you are not using the property as 
part of a commercial operation. Per Sec. 420, Residential Use Table, in the Zoning 
Ordinance, commercial uses are not permitted in the R-1 zoning district. Also, outdoor 
storage as part of a Home Occupation is prohibited (Sec. 1102, Home Occupations, of the 
Zoning Ordinance). 

4.  Outdoor parking of a commercial vehicle (semi-trailer truck) in a residential district is not 
compliant with Sec. 1157, Outdoor Storage, of the Zoning Ordinance. 

5.  An unpermitted accessory structure in the front yard is not compliant with Sec. 802, 
Accessory Buildings and Accessory Uses, of the Zoning Ordinance. This structure may have 
been subsequently moved; however, it was constructed without a permit from the 
Township, which is required by the ordinance. Also, the cargo container located on the site 
is also non-compliant via this same section. 

 
The property owner was advised in the NOV:   
To cure this violation, the Office of Community Standards requests that you immediately 
replace the driveway with permitted paving materials, remove all stockpiled materials 
(including unconsolidated asphalt millings), commercial vehicles and trailers parked outside, 
inoperable vehicles, and refuse from the premises, and submit applications for the necessary 
permits for the accessory structure no later than October 30, 2024. 
 
On our most recent inspection, via a neighboring parcel, Robert Kelch and I documented with 
photos that the previous violations remain uncorrected.  There is an additional area of blight 
south of the house that is visible on the attached Google image.   
 
We have been unable to obtain compliance with the Township’s Ordinances, and the property 
owner has defiantly stated that it is his intent not to cooperate.  Therefore, we are requesting 
approval to initiate Circuit Court litigation to obtain a court order requiring compliance. 
   
Thank you for your consideration and your continued support for our public nuisance 
abatement efforts. 
 
  



 

Page 4 of 11 
 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Karen Lovejoy Roe 
LaResha Thornton 

Photos obtained 4/25/25:

 

 



 

Page 5 of 11 
 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Karen Lovejoy Roe 
LaResha Thornton 

 
 

 



 

Page 6 of 11 
 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Karen Lovejoy Roe 
LaResha Thornton 

Photos obtained 10/8/24:

 

 

 



 

Page 7 of 11 
 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Karen Lovejoy Roe 
LaResha Thornton 

 

 
 

 



 

Page 8 of 11 
 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Karen Lovejoy Roe 
LaResha Thornton 

 

 
 

 
 



 

Page 9 of 11 
 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Karen Lovejoy Roe 
LaResha Thornton 

 
 
 
Photos obtained 11/4/20:

 

 



 

Page 10 of 11 
 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Karen Lovejoy Roe 
LaResha Thornton 

 
 

 



 

Page 11 of 11 
 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Karen Lovejoy Roe 
LaResha Thornton 

Google Image 2025 

 



Motion to Amend the 2025 Budget (#6)  

 

Move to increase the General Fund budget by $130,610 to $21,277,412 and approve 

the department line item changes as outlined. 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI

 2025 BUDGET AMENDMENT # 6

MAY 7, 2025

AMOUNTS ROUNDED UP TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR 

101 - GENERAL OPERATIONS FUND Total Increase $130,610.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-699.999 $128,745.00

Net Revenues $128,745.00

Expenditures: Washtenaw County Drains 101-445-818.025 $128,745.00

Net Expenditures $128,745.00

Revenues: Insurance Reimbursement 101-000-676.012 $1,865.00

Net Revenues $1,865.00

Expenditures: Motor Pool - Misc Repairs 101-770-935.000 $1,865.00

Net Expenditures $1,865.00

Request to increase the budget for contract with Washtenaw County Water Resources Commissioner (WCWRC) 

for vermin management services by $128,745. The contract is for $150,000 and we budgeted for $21,255.  This 

will be funded by an appropriation of prior year fund balance. 

Request to increase budget for the damage to the  Township's 2014 F250 Ford truck. This will be funded by an 

insurance reimbursement. 

1 of 1



AUTHORIZATIONS AND BIDS 



Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Karen Lovejoy Roe 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

LaResha Thornton 

MEMORANDUM 
To:      Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 

From: John Hines, Municipal Services Director 

Date:  April 30, 2025 

RE: Request authorization to accept the bid for $380,559.71 from KAB 
Enterprises for the Appleridge Park playground replacement and walkway 
paving which is funded through the Washtenaw County Development Block 
Grant program budgeted in GL# 213-901-974.008. 

The Residential Services Department is requesting authorization to accept Spicer Group’s 
updated recommendation of the bid and authorize the signing of the agreement with KAB 
Enterprises for $380,559.71 for the paving of the walkway and playground replacement at 
Appleridge Park which is budgeted in 213-901-974.008 and funded through a Washtenaw 
County Development Block Grant.  This award would be contingent upon the contractor’s 
compliance with all applicable CDBG requirements and approvals.   

At the April 1, 2025 Board of Trustees meeting, the board approved The Diamond Firm, Inc. for 
the project.  On April 28, 2025, The Diamond Firm submitted a letter formally withdrawing their 
bid after they, “determined that they are unable to allocate the necessary resources to ensure the 
high-quality standard of service both they and the Charter Township of Ypsilanti expect.” 

KAB Enterprises is being requested for approval due to being the next lowest qualified bidder 
and their quality of work performed in the Township prior.  KAB Enterprises was approved at 
the July 16, 2024 BOT meeting for the American Rescue Plan Act Funded projects of park 
improvements at Burns Park and West Willow Park.  The work performed at both parks is 
extremely similar to what is being requested at Appleridge Park, which consists of the 
playground being replaced and walkway being paved.  If KAB is approved, the project will 
remain on a timeline of completion by Fall 2025. 

John Hines 
Municipal Services Director 
jhines@ypsitownship.org 











Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Karen Lovejoy Roe 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

LaResha Thornton 

MEMORANDUM 
To: Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 

From: John Hines, Municipal Services Director 

Date: April 29, 2025 

Subject:  Request Authorization to accept the bid of $34,188.45 from Superior 
Groundcover, Inc. for our annual playground mulch installation for 2025-2026.  

The Residential Services Department is requesting authorization to accept the low bid with 
Superior Groundcover, Inc. for $34,188.45 for the annual playground mulch service budgeted in 
GL#101-770-818.011.  The price would be $16,393.20 in 2025 and $17,795.25 in 2026.   

Superior Groundcover provided mulch services for Ypsilanti Township for the 2023-2024 mulch 
installations.  Superior Groundcover is being recommended due to being the lowest bidder and 
the quality of their past performance.   

Township staff accepted six (6) bids at the April 8, 2025 bid opening. They are listed below: 

Superior Groundcover Inc.: $34,188.45 for 2025-2026 
Frank’s Landscaping & Supplies: $34,748.00 for 2025-2026 
Meadows Lawn & Trim: $55,480.00 for 2025-2026  
Eco Lawns:   $61,815.00 for 2025-2026 
CQC Inc.:  $85,312.00 for 2025-2026  
Berns Landscaping:   $86,911.89 for 2025-2026  

John Hines 
Municipal Services Director 
jhines@ypsitownship.org 
734-544-3515

mailto:jhines@ypsitownship.org


CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Playground Mulch Contractor 

Bid Opening: April 8, 2025 2:00 p.m. 

1 

COMPANY NAME BID AMOUNT INSURANCE BOND –IF APPLICABLE 

Meadows Lawn & Trim $55,480.00 Y N/A 

Superior Groundcover $34,188.45 Y N/A 

Berns Landscaping $86,911.89 Y N/A 

CQC Inc. $85,312.00 Y N/A 

Eco Lawns $61,815.00 Y N/A 

Frank’s Landscaping & Supplies $34,748.00 Y N/A 









 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Karen Lovejoy Roe 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

LaResha Thornton 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
To: Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board  
 
From: Karen Wallin, Human Resource Manager 
 Erica Holmes, Human Resource Specialist 
 
CC: Attorney Winters   
 
Date: April 29, 2025 
 
Subject: Request to meet with the Township Board in Closed Session regarding the tentative 

agreement reached with the TPOAM union, and that following the Closed Session, the 
item be placed on Board Agenda for approval. 

 
As prior correspondence from Attorney Winters to the Township Board noted, the 
Township Negotiation Team has reached a 5-year tentative agreement with the TPOAM 
Bargaining Committee, and the tentative agreement has been voted on and approved by 
the TPOAM membership. 
 
The Township Negotiation Team is requesting a Closed Session meeting with the Township 
Board as allowed under MCL 15.268(c) that states “for strategy and negotiation sessions 
connected with the negotiation of a Collective Bargaining Agreement if either 
negotiating party requests a closed hearing.”   During this Closed Session, the Township 
Negotiation Team will review a PowerPoint Presentation that has been prepared that 
summarizes all the proposed changes.  
 
Following the Closed Session, the Township Negotiation Team request that the item be 
placed on the Agenda for approval. 
 
Your consideration in the matter is appreciated.  Should you have any additional questions, 
please contact the HR Department.  
 



 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

 



BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS



ADJOURNMENT 


	May 6th, 2025 Township Board Meeting
	Approval of Agenda
	Regular Meeting Agenda- May 6, 2025
	Consent Agenda
	Minutes from April 1, 2025 Regular Meeting
	Statements & Checks from April 15, 2025
	Minutes from April 15, 2025 Regular Meeting
	Statements & Checks from May 6, 2025
	Attorney Report
	New Buisness
	1. Time Clock Upgrade
	2. Resolution 2025-16: YCUA Water System Improvements
	3. Resolution 2025-17: Dissolution of Environmental Reserve Fund
	4. DTE Easements
	5. Change Order #1- Spillway Gate at Hydro Station
	6. Vermin Managment Services
	7. Public Nuisance- 958 Ecorse Rd.
	8. Public Nuisance- 1521 Holmes Rd.
	9. Public Nuisance-6016 Merritt Rd.
	10. Budget Amendment #6
	Authorizations and Bids
	1. Award Appleridge Park Project
	2. Award Playground Mulch
	Other Business
	1. Close Session for TPOAM Union Contract
	Public Comments
	Board Member Comments
	Adjournment
	2025-04-15-DRAFT-Township-Board-Regular-Meeting.pdf
	Sheetz Development Agreement Board Memo.pdf
	Contract clean copy.pdf
	development agreement
	SHEETZ
	1.1 The parties acknowledge and represent that the foregoing recitals are true, accurate and binding on the respective parties, their successors, heirs and assigns.
	1.2 The Final Site Plan for the Commercial Site, which is attached hereto as Exhibit B, has been approved in accordance with the authority granted to and vested in the Township pursuant to Act. No. 110, Public Acts of 2006, and Act No. 33, Public Acts...
	1.3 The terms, provisions and conditions of this Agreement shall be deemed to be of benefit to the Property described on Exhibit A and shall be incorporated by the appropriate executed instruments into the title of said Property and shall be deemed a ...


	Final Site Plan.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	01-COVR
	02-DEMO
	03-TREE INV
	04-TREE INV
	05-SITE
	06-GRAD
	07-GRAD (CANOPY)
	08-UTIL
	09-PROF-SANI
	10-PROF-WATR
	11-STRM
	12-STRM-DRNG
	13-STRM-DRNG
	14-STRM-CALC
	15-PROF-STRM
	16-DETL
	17-DETL
	18-DETL
	19-DETL
	20-DETL
	21-DETL
	22-DETL
	23-DETL
	24-DETL
	25-DETL
	26-DETL
	27-DETL
	28-DETL
	29-DETL
	30-DETL
	31-DETL
	32-SESC
	33-LAND
	34-LAND
	35-TRCK
	36-TRCK
	37-OVER


	Sheetz - Ypsilanti Development Agreement  - EXECUTION DRAFT(59480020.8).pdf
	development agreement
	1.1 The parties acknowledge and represent that the foregoing recitals are true, accurate and binding on the respective parties, their successors, heirs and assigns.
	1.2 The Final Site Plan for the Commercial Site, which is attached hereto as Exhibit B, has been approved in accordance with the authority granted to and vested in the Township pursuant to Act. No. 110, Public Acts of 2006, and Act No. 33, Public Acts...
	1.3 The terms, provisions and conditions of this Agreement shall be deemed to be of benefit to the Property described on Exhibit A and shall be incorporated by the appropriate executed instruments into the title of said Property and shall be deemed a ...




	2025-05-06-Resolution 2025-17-Dissolution of Funds-Ypsilanti Township Env Fund Request.pdf
	Re: Request to Approve - Dissolution of Environmental Reserve Fund and Transfer of Funds into Reserve for Construction (Township Division)

	DTE Easement 5365 Bridge Rd_ with consideration.pdf
	20250122-DED423103F-5365 BRIDGE ROAD corrected (1).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	VSP-BASE-DED423103F-FORD LAKE DAM EASEMENT-5365-SHT1
	VSP-BASE-DED423103F-FORD LAKE DAM EASEMENT-5365-SHT2
	VSP-BASE-DED423103F-FORD LAKE DAM EASEMENT-5365-SHT3



	DTE Easement 2599 Bridge Rd_ with consideration.pdf
	20241211-DED423103F-2599 BRIDGE ROAD (1).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	VSP-BASE-DED423103F-FORD LAKE DAM EASEMENT-2599-SHT1
	VSP-BASE-DED423103F-FORD LAKE DAM EASEMENT-2599-SHT2
	VSP-BASE-DED423103F-FORD LAKE DAM EASEMENT-2599-SHT3



	250818 Ypsilanti Township Hydro Gate PLC Isolation Change Order #1.pdf
	Quote

	Ypsilanti, MI (Hewitt) - Developer's Request.pdf
	Slide 1
	Slide 2: OVERVIEW
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5: A SIGNATURE SHEETZ LOCATION
	Slide 6: A SIGNATURE SHEETZ LOCATION
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9
	Slide 10
	Slide 11
	Slide 12
	Slide 13: QUESTIONS? Reach out to our team: Alex Siwicki - asiwicki@sheetz.com Aman Walia - awalia@sheetz.com David Bruckelmeyer - dbruckel@sheetz.com Scott Armstrong - sarmstro@sheetz.com  Find out more and take a digital tour! sheetz.com/content/Michiga
	Slide 14
	Slide 15: APPROVALS
	Slide 16




